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PART I
When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”), the words “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “allows,” “can,” “may,”
“designed,” “will,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These are statements that relate to future periods and
include statements about market trends, our business model and our services, our market strategy, including expansion of our product and service lines, our
infrastructure, our investment in our information technology, or IT, systems, our employee hiring, impact of MiTAC Holdings Corporation, or MiTAC
Holdings, ownership interest in us, our revenue, sources of revenue and operating results, our gross margins, our inventory, competition, including with
Synnex Technology International Corp., our future needs for additional financing, the likely sources for such funding and the impact of such funding,
concentration of customers and suppliers, customer contract terms, customer forecasts, adequacy of our facilities, our legal proceedings, our operations
and trends related thereto, our international operations, foreign currency exchange rates, expansion of our operations and related effects, including our
Concentrix business, our strategic acquisitions and divestitures of businesses and assets, including the impact of the Westcon-Comstor Americas business,
Tigerspike and Minacs acquisitions on our business, our goodwill and seasonality, adequacy of our cash resources to meet our capital needs, our debt and
financing arrangements, cash held by our foreign subsidiaries, our tax liabilities, adequacy of our disclosure controls and procedures, dependency on
personnel, pricing pressures, competition, impact of rules and regulations affecting public companies, impact of our pricing policies, impact of economic
and industry trends, changes to the market in which we compete, impact of our accounting policies and recently issued accounting pronouncements, impact
of inventory repurchase obligations and commitments and contingencies, our tax rates and the impact of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, impact of any
impairment of our goodwill and intangible assets, our share repurchase and dividend program, and statements regarding our securitization programs, term
loans and revolving credit lines and our investments in working capital, personnel and our succession planning, facilities and operations. Forward-looking
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those risks discussed herein, as well as the seasonality of the buying patterns of our customers, concentration of sales to
large customers, dependence upon and trends in capital spending budgets in the IT, and consumer electronics, or CE, industries, fluctuations in general
economic conditions and other risk factors contained below under Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” These forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date hereof. We expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained
herein to reflect any change in our expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is
based.
In the sections of this Report entitled “Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” all
references to “SYNNEX,” “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company” mean SYNNEX Corporation and its subsidiaries, except where it is made clear that the term
means only the parent company or one of its segments.
SYNNEX, the SYNNEX Logo, CONCENTRIX, MINACS and all other SYNNEX company, product and services names and slogans are trademarks or
registered trademarks of SYNNEX Corporation. SYNNEX, the SYNNEX Logo, CONCENTRIX and MINACS Reg. U.S. Pat. & Tm. Off. Other names and marks
are the property of their respective owners.
Item 1. Business
We are a Fortune 500 corporation and a leading business process services company, providing a comprehensive range of distribution, logistics and
integration services for the technology industry and providing outsourced services focused on customer engagement to a broad range of enterprises. We are
organized to provide our products and services through two reportable business segments: Technology Solutions and Concentrix. Our Technology Solutions
segment distributes peripherals, IT systems including data center server and storage solutions, system components, software, networking, communications,
security equipment, consumer electronics, or CE, and complementary products. Within our Technology Solutions segment, we also provide systems design
and integration solutions. Our Concentrix segment offers a portfolio of strategic solutions and end-to-end business services focused on customer engagement
strategy, process optimization, technology innovation, front and back-office automation and business transformation to clients in ten identified industry
verticals.
In our Technology Solutions segment, we distribute more than 30,000 technology products (as measured by active SKUs) from more than 300 IT, CE
and original equipment manufacturers, or OEM suppliers to more than 25,000 resellers, system integrators, and retailers throughout the United States,
Canada, and Japan. Our Technology Solutions business expanded on September 1, 2017 when we acquired Westcon-Comstor Americas, a business focused
on the distribution of security, unified communications and collaboration, or UCC, and networking products, serving customers in the United States, Canada,
and Central and South America. We purchase peripherals, IT systems, system components, software, networking, communications, security equipment, CE
and complementary products from our suppliers and sell them to our reseller and retail customers. We perform a similar function for our distribution of
licensed software products. Our reseller customers include value-added
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resellers, or VARs, corporate resellers, government resellers, system integrators, direct marketers, and national and regional retailers. We combine our core
strengths in distribution with demand generation, supply chain management and design and integration solutions to help our customers achieve greater
efficiencies in time to market, cost minimization, real-time linkages in the supply chain and after-market product support. We also provide comprehensive IT
solutions in key vertical markets such as government and healthcare and we provide specialized service offerings that increase efficiencies in the areas of
print management, renewals, networking, logistics services and supply chain management. Additionally, we provide our customers with systems design and
integration solutions for data center servers and networking solutions built specific to our customers’ workloads and data center environments.
Our Technology Solutions business is characterized by low gross profit as a percentage of revenue, or gross margin, and low income from operations as
a percentage of revenue, or operating margin. The market for IT and CE products is generally characterized by declining unit prices and short product life
cycles. We set our sales price based on the market supply and demand characteristics for each particular product or bundle of products we distribute and
services we provide.
In our Technology Solutions segment, we are highly dependent on the end-market demand for IT and CE products, and on our partners’ strategic
initiatives and business models. This end-market demand is influenced by many factors including the introduction of new IT and CE products and software
by OEMs, replacement cycles for existing IT and CE products, trends toward cloud computing, overall economic growth and general business activity. A
difficult and challenging economic environment may also lead to consolidation or decline in the IT and CE industries and increased price-based
competition.
In our Concentrix segment, we provide a comprehensive range of strategic services and solutions to enhance our clients’ customer life cycles to acquire,
support and renew customer relationships, to automate and optimize processes, to maximize the value of every customer interaction and to improve business
outcomes. Our portfolio of services includes end-to-end process outsourcing to customers in various industry vertical markets delivered through omnichannels that include both voice and non-voice mediums and in more than 40 languages. Our portfolio of solutions and services support our clients and their
customers globally. In fiscal 2017, we acquired Tigerspike which enhanced Concentrix' digital and mobility competencies by providing improved business
intelligence and performance for its clients through enabling technologies that are designed to create effortless, personalized end-user engagements. In fiscal
year 2016, we acquired Minacs, which provides greater scale and expanded our services in key industries such as automotive and service offerings such as
marketing optimization.
Our Concentrix segment generates revenue from performing services that are generally tied to our clients’ products and services and how they are
received in the marketplace. Any shift in business or size of the market for our customers’ products, any failure of technology or failure of acceptance of our
customers’ products in the market may impact our business. The employee turnover rate in this business and the risk of losing experienced employees is high.
Higher turnover rates can increase costs and decrease operating efficiencies and productivity.
We have been in business since 1980 and are headquartered in Fremont, California. We have significant operations in North and South America, AsiaPacific and Europe. We were originally incorporated in the State of California as COMPAC Microelectronics, Inc. in November 1980, and we changed our
name to SYNNEX Information Technologies, Inc. in February 1994. We later reincorporated in the State of Delaware under the name of SYNNEX Corporation
in October 2003. As of November 30, 2017, we had over 113,000 full-time and temporary employees worldwide.
Financial information by segment is provided in our Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Report.
Our Products and Suppliers
In our Technology Solutions segment, we distribute a broad line of IT products, including peripherals, IT systems, system components, software,
security, UCC and networking equipment from more than 300 OEM suppliers, enabling us to offer comprehensive solutions to our reseller and retail
customers. Our Technology Solutions segment represented 88%, 89% and 89% of our consolidated revenue for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Our product offerings also include systems design and full rack integration solutions, build-to-order, and configure-to-order assemblies.
2
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For fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, our product mix by category in the Technology Solutions segment was in the following ranges:
Product Category:
Peripherals
IT Systems
System Components and Integration Solutions
Software
Networking Equipment

25% - 31%
25% - 31%
23% - 33%
7% - 8%
7% - 10%

Our suppliers include leading peripherals, IT systems, system components, software, networking equipment and CE manufacturers. Our primary OEM
suppliers are Asus Tek Computer Inc., Dell, Inc. HP Inc. (formerly Hewlett-Packard Company) (“HP”), Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company, Intel
Corporation, Lenovo Group Ltd, Microsoft Corporation, Panasonic Corporation, Samsung Semiconductor Inc., Seagate Technologies LLC and Xerox
Corporation. The acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas enhanced our line card with the addition of OEM suppliers such as Avaya Inc., Cisco Systems,
Inc. ("Cisco"), F5 Networks Inc., FireEye, Inc., and Palo Alto Networks Inc. in the areas of IT security, network infrastructure and UCC.
Our largest OEM supplier is HP. Revenue from the sale of products and services provided by HP represented approximately 13%, 17% and 25% of our
consolidated revenue for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Before November 1, 2015, revenue from HP included the sale of products and
services from both HP Inc. and Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company. As is typical with our OEM supplier agreements, our United States Business
Development Partner Agreement with HP is short-term and may be terminated without cause upon short notice. In the event of any breach of the agreement by
us, HP may terminate the agreement and we may be required to refund HP any discounts or program payments paid during the period we were in breach of the
agreement and reimburse HP for reasonable attorneys’ fees. In the event the agreement is terminated for cause or if we fail to perform our obligations under the
agreement, our agreement with HP for the resale of products, support and services will automatically terminate upon such default or termination. If either
party becomes insolvent or bankrupt, the other party may terminate the agreement without notice and cancel any unfulfilled obligations, except for payment
obligations. Some of our subsidiaries also have territorial supplier agreements with subsidiaries of HP located in the respective countries.
We have distribution agreements with most of our suppliers, including HP. These agreements usually provide for nonexclusive distribution rights and
pertain to specific geographic territories. The agreements are also generally short-term, subject to periodic renewal, and often contain provisions permitting
termination by either our supplier or us without cause upon relatively short notice. An OEM supplier that elects to terminate a distribution agreement will
generally repurchase its products carried in our inventory.
Our Technology Solutions business subjects us to the risk that the value of our inventory will be affected adversely by suppliers’ price reductions or by
technological changes affecting the usefulness or desirability of the products comprising our inventory. Many of our OEM suppliers offer us limited
protection from the loss in value of our inventory due to technological change or a supplier’s price reduction. Under many of these agreements, we have a
limited period of time to return or exchange products or claim price protection credits. We monitor our inventory levels and attempt to time our purchases to
maximize our protection under supplier programs.
Our Customers
In our Technology Solutions segment, we distribute IT products to more than 25,000 resellers, system integrators and retailers, including customers of
Westcon-Comstor Americas. Resellers are classified primarily by their end-user customers. End-users include large corporations or enterprises, federal, state
and local governments, small/medium sized businesses, or SMBs, and individual consumers. In addition, resellers vary greatly in size and geographic reach.
Our reseller customers buy from us and other distributors. Our larger reseller customers also buy certain products directly from OEM suppliers. System
integrators offer services in addition to product resale, primarily in systems customization, integration, and deployment. Retailers serve mostly individual
end-users and to a small degree, small office/home office customers. We also provide system design and integration solutions for data center servers built for
our customers’ data center environments.
In our Concentrix segment, we serve over 450 clients, primarily in ten industry verticals: automotive, banking & financial services, consumer
electronics, energy & public sector, healthcare, insurance, media & communications, retail & e-commerce, technology, and travel, transportation & tourism.
3
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In fiscal years 2017 and 2016, one customer accounted for 21% and 12%, respectively, of our consolidated revenue. In fiscal year 2015, no customer
accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated revenue. We do not believe that the loss of any single customer would have a material adverse effect on the
Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole.
Our Services and Solutions
We offer a variety of business process services to our customers. These services can be purchased individually or they can be purchased in combination
with others in the form of supply chain solutions and after-market product support. The two major categories of services and solutions include Technology
Solutions and Concentrix:
Technology Solutions. We have sophisticated pick, pack and ship operations, which allows us to efficiently receive shipments from our OEM suppliers
and quickly fill orders for our reseller and retail customers. We generally stock or otherwise have access to the inventory of our OEM suppliers to satisfy the
demands of our reseller and retail customers. In addition, we design and integrate energy efficient and cost effective data center servers which are built
specific to the data center environments and actual workloads of our large scale data center customers.
The above services are complemented by the following:
Systems Design and Integration Solutions. We provide our customers with systems design and full rack integration solutions, build-to-order, and
configure-to-order assembly capabilities. In both of these cases, we offer design, integration, test and other production value-added solutions such as thermal
testing, power-draw efficiency testing, burn-in, quality and logistics support.
Logistics Services. We provide logistics support to our reseller customers such as outsourced fulfillment, virtual distribution and direct ship to endusers. Other logistics support activities we provide include generation of customized shipping documents, multi-level serial number tracking for customized,
configured products and online order and shipment tracking. We also offer full turn-key logistics solutions designed to address the needs of large volume or
specialty logistics services. Our full turn-key service offering is modular in nature and is designed to cover all aspects of the logistics life cycle including,
transportation management, inventory optimization, complementary product matching, reverse logistics, asset refurbishment and disposal and strategic
procurement.
Online Services. We maintain electronic data interchange, or EDI, extensible markup language or XML, web-based communication links and mobile
applications with many of our reseller and retail customers. These links improve the speed and efficiency of our transactions with our customers by enabling
them to search for products, check inventory availability and prices, configure systems, place and track orders, receive invoices, review account status and
process returns. We also have web-based application software that allows our customers or their end-user customers to order software and take delivery
online.
Financing Services. We offer our reseller customers a wide range of financing options, including net terms, third party leasing, floor plan financing and
letters-of-credit backed financing and arrangements where we collect payments directly from the end-user. The availability and terms of our financing
services are subject to our credit policies or those of third party financing providers to our customers.
Marketing Services. We offer our OEM suppliers a full range of marketing activities targeting resellers, system integrators and retailers including direct
mail, external media advertising, reseller product training, targeted telemarketing campaigns, national and regional trade shows, trade groups, database
analysis, print on demand services and web-based marketing.
Concentrix. Our Concentrix segment represented 12% of our consolidated revenue in fiscal year 2017, and 11% in fiscal years 2016 and 2015. We offer
a portfolio of comprehensive solutions and end-to-end business services to enhance our clients’ customer life cycles, to acquire, support and renew customer
relationships, to automate and optimize processes, to maximize the value of every customer interaction, and to improve business outcomes, primarily in ten
identified industry verticals. Our Concentrix segment portfolio also includes technology assets and embedded analytics. In fiscal 2017, we acquired
Tigerspike which enhanced Concentrix' digital and mobility competencies. We operate over 125 delivery centers and administrative facilities in numerous
countries throughout North and South America, Asia-Pacific and Europe. Services are provided from these global locations to customers worldwide in more
than 40 languages.
Sales and Marketing
In our Technology Solutions segment, we serve our large commercial, government reseller, and retail customers through dedicated sales professionals.
We market to smaller resellers and OEMs through dedicated regional sales teams. In addition, we have dedicated product management and business
development specialists that focus on the sale and promotion of products and services of selected suppliers or for specific end-market verticals. These
specialists are also directly involved in establishing
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new relationships with leading OEMs to create demand for their products and services and with resellers for their customers’ needs. We also have a direct
sales approach for our design and integration solutions business. Our sales and marketing professionals are complemented by members of our executive
management team who are integral in identifying potential new customer opportunities, promoting sales growth and ensuring customer satisfaction. We have
sales and marketing professionals in close geographic proximity to our reseller, retail and OEM customers.
In our Concentrix segment, we market our services through a sales force organized by industry vertical and geography. The length of our selling cycle
varies depending on the type of engagement. Our efforts may begin in response to our lead generation program, a perceived opportunity, a reference by an
existing client, a request for proposal or otherwise. The sales cycle varies depending on the type of services work as well as whether there is an existing
relationship with the client.
We have designated client partners or global relationship managers for each of our strategic relationships. The relationship manager is supported by
process improvement, quality, transition, finance, human resources, information technology and industry or subject matter expert teams to ensure the best
possible solution is provided to our clients.
We also strive to foster relationships between our senior leadership team and our clients’ senior management. These “C-level” relationships ensure that
both parties are focused on establishing priorities, aligning objectives and driving client value from the top down. High-level executive relationships have
been particularly constructive as a means of increasing business from our existing clients. It also provides us with a forum for addressing client concerns. We
constantly measure our client satisfaction levels to ensure that we maintain high service levels for each client.
Our Operations
In our Technology Solutions segment, we operate approximately 60 distribution and administrative facilities in the United States, Canada, Japan,
China, Central and South America. Our distribution processes are highly automated to reduce errors, ensure timely order fulfillment and enhance the
efficiency of our warehouse operations and back office administration. Our distribution facilities are geographically dispersed to be near reseller customers
and their end-users. This decentralized, regional strategy enables us to benefit from lower shipping costs and shorter delivery lead times to our customers.
Furthermore, we track several performance measurements to continuously improve the efficiency and accuracy of our distribution operations. Our regional
locations also enable us to make local deliveries and provide will-call fulfillment to more customers than if our distribution operations were more centralized,
resulting in better service to our customers. Our workforce is comprised of permanent and temporary employees, enabling us to respond to short-term changes
in order activity.
Our proprietary IT systems and processes enable us to automate many of our distribution operations. We use radio frequency and bar code scanning
technologies in all of our warehouse operations to maintain real-time inventory records, facilitate frequent cycle counts and improve the accuracy of order
fulfillment.
To enhance the accuracy of our distribution order fulfillment and protect our inventory from shrinkage, our distribution systems also incorporate
numerous controls. These controls include order weight checks, bar code scanning, and serial number profile verification. We also use digital video imaging
to record our small package shipping activities by order. These images and other warehouse and shipping data are available online to our customer service
representatives, enabling us to quickly respond to order inquiries by our customers.
We operate our principal system design and integration solutions facilities in the United States and we operate integration facilities in the United
Kingdom and China. We generally design and integrate IT systems, data center servers and networking solutions and IT appliances, by incorporating system
components purchased directly from vendors or obtained from our distribution inventory. Additionally, we perform other production value-added services,
including thermal testing, power-draw efficiency testing, burn-in, quality and logistics support. Some of our design and integration solutions facilities are
ISO 9001:2008 and ISO 14001:2004 certified.
Concentrix has global delivery capability which allows us to scale people and other resources from around the world, including foreign language
fluency, proximity to clients and time-zone advantages. A critical component of this capability is our over 125 delivery and administrative centers in 24
countries throughout North and South America, Asia-Pacific and Europe. Our delivery centers improve the efficiency of our engagement teams through the
reuse of processes, solution designs and infrastructure by leveraging the experience of delivery center professionals. Services are provided from these global
locations to customers worldwide in multiple languages. These services are supported by proprietary technology to enable efficient and secure customer
contact through various methods including voice, chat, web, email, social media and digital and mobility competencies by providing improved business
intelligence and performance through enabling technologies. Some of our Indian delivery centers are ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management System)
certified and 12 of our delivery centers around the world are certified to COPC (Customer Operation Performance Center) OSP standard.
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International Operations
Approximately 27% of our consolidated revenue for fiscal years ended November 30, 2017 and 2016 and approximately 26% of our consolidated
revenue for fiscal year ended November 30, 2015, originated outside of the United States. Approximately 58% and 59% of our net property and equipment
were located outside the United States as of November 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Our end market strategy for our Technology Solutions business,
while focused on the Americas, is expanding internationally on a selective basis in order to provide our distribution capabilities to OEMs in locations that
meet their regional requirements. A key element in our business strategy has been to locate our Concentrix services in markets that are strategic to our
customer requirements and cost beneficial.
Sales concentrations in foreign jurisdictions subject us to various risks, including the impact of changes in the value of these foreign currencies relative
to the US Dollar, which in turn can impact reported sales.
Additional financial information related to foreign and domestic operations is provided in our Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in
this Report.
Seasonality
Our operating results in the Technology Solutions segment are affected by the seasonality of the IT and CE products industries. We have historically
experienced higher sales in our fourth fiscal quarter due to patterns in capital budgeting, federal government spending and purchasing cycles of our
customers and end-users. These patterns may not be repeated in subsequent periods. With the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas, seasonality may
change given the incremental OEM partners, services provided and the countries in which we transact business.
Revenue in our Concentrix segment is typically the highest in our fourth fiscal quarter.
Purchasing
In our Technology Solutions segment, product cost represents our single largest expense and IT and CE product inventory is one of our largest working
capital investments. Furthermore, product procurement from our OEM suppliers is a highly complex process that involves incentive programs, rebate
programs, price protection, volume and early payment discounts and other arrangements. Consequently, efficient and effective purchasing operations are
critical to our success.
Our purchasing group works closely with many areas of our organization, especially our product managers who work closely with our OEM suppliers
and our sales force, to understand the volume and mix of IT products that should be purchased.
In addition, the purchasing group utilizes an internally developed, proprietary information systems application tool that further aids in forecasting future
product demand based on several factors, including historical sales levels, expected product life cycle and current and projected economic conditions. We
may also rely on our receipt of good-faith, non-binding, customer forecasts. We maintain electronic data interchange, or EDI, connection with our OEM
suppliers to send purchase orders, receive purchase order status and receive notification once the product has shipped from our supplier. Our information
system tool also tracks warehouse and channel inventory levels and open purchase orders on a real-time basis enabling us to stock inventory at a regional
level closer to the customer as well as to actively manage our working capital resources. This level of automation promotes greater efficiencies of inventory
management by replenishing and turning inventory, as well as placing purchase orders on a more frequent basis. Furthermore, our system tool also allows for
automated checks and controls to prevent the generation of inaccurate orders.
Managing our OEM supplier incentive programs is another critical function of our purchasing and product management teams. We attempt to maximize
the benefits of incentives, rebates and volume and early payment discounts that our OEM suppliers offer us from time to time. We carefully evaluate these
supplier incentive benefits relative to our product handling and carrying costs so that we do not over-invest in our inventory. We also closely monitor
inventory levels on a product-by-product basis and plan purchases to take advantage of OEM supplier provided price protection. By managing inventory
levels and monitoring customer purchase patterns at each of our regional distribution facilities, we believe we can minimize our shipping costs by stocking
products near our resellers and retailers, and their end-user customers.
Financial Services
In our Technology Solutions segment, we offer various financing options to our customers as well as prepayment, credit card and cash on delivery
terms. In issuing credit terms to our reseller and retail customers, we closely and regularly monitor their creditworthiness through our information systems,
credit ratings information and periodic detailed credit file reviews by our financial services staff. We have also purchased credit insurance in some
geographies to further control credit risks. Finally, we establish reserves for estimated credit losses in the normal course of business based on the overall
quality and aging of our accounts receivable portfolio, the existence of a limited amount of credit insurance and specifically identified customer risks.
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We also sell to certain reseller customers pursuant to third party floor plan financing. The expenses charged by these financing companies are
subsidized either by our OEM suppliers or paid by us. We generally receive payment from these financing companies within 15 to 30 days from the date of
sale, depending on the specific arrangement.
Information Technology
Within our Technology Solutions segment, our IT systems manage the entire order cycle, including processing customer orders, customer billing and
payment tracking. These internally developed IT systems make our operations more efficient and provide visibility into our operations. We believe our IT
infrastructure is scalable to support further growth. We continue to enhance and invest in our IT systems to improve product and inventory management,
streamline order and fulfillment processes, and increase operational flexibility. We currently operate Westcon-Comstor Americas by licensing certain
technologies from Datatec Limited in perpetuity and others for a limited period of time at no additional cash cost. We anticipate transferring WestconComstor Americas to our proprietary systems in the future without incurring material additional cost. Within our Concentrix segment, we invest in IT systems
and infrastructure to enhance workforce management and improve productivity. Our Minacs acquisition in 2016 has provided us enhanced technology
platforms that accelerate our Marketing Optimization and Internet of Things solutions.
To allow our customers and suppliers to communicate and transact business with us in an efficient and consistent manner, we have implemented a mix
of proprietary and off-the-shelf software programs that integrate our IT systems with those of our customers and suppliers. In particular, we maintain EDI,
XML, web-based communication links and mobile platform applications with many of our reseller and retail customers to enable them to search for products,
check real-time pricing, inventory availability and specifications, place and track orders, receive invoices and process returns.
Competition
We operate in a highly competitive global environment. The IT product industry is characterized by intense competition, based primarily on product
availability, credit terms, price, speed and accuracy of delivery, effectiveness of sales and marketing programs, ability to tailor specific solutions to customer
needs, quality and depth of product lines, pre and post-sale technical support, flexibility and timely response to design changes, technological capabilities
and product quality, service and support. We compete with a variety of regional, national and international IT product distributors and manufacturers.
Our major competitors in our Technology Solutions segment include Arrow Electronics, Inc., Ingram Micro, Inc., ScanSource, Inc., and Tech Data
Corporation and, to a lesser extent, regional distributors. We also face competition from our OEM suppliers that sell directly to resellers, retailers and endusers. The distribution industry has historically undergone, and continues to undergo, consolidation. Over the years, a number of providers within the IT
distribution industry exited or merged with other providers. For example, during fiscal year 2017, we acquired the Westcon-Comstor Americas' distribution
business and Tech Data Corporation acquired the Technology Solutions operating group of Avnet Inc. In fiscal year 2016, Ingram Micro Inc. was acquired
and became part of HNA Group. We have participated in this consolidation and expect to continue to assess other opportunities.
As we enter new business areas, we may encounter increased competition from our current competitors and/or new competitors. Some of our competitors
are substantially larger and may have greater financial, operating, manufacturing and marketing resources than us. Some of our competitors may have broader
geographic breadth and range of services than us. Some may have more developed relationships with their existing customers. We attempt to offset our
comparative scale differences by focusing on a limited number of leading OEMs in the Technology Solutions segment, by running a more efficient and low
cost operation, and by offering a high level of value-added and customer services in both the Technology Solutions and Concentrix segments.
In our Concentrix segment, we operate in a highly competitive and rapidly evolving global marketplace. Our competitors are both regional players as
well as global companies. Our major competitors include Accenture, Convergys Corporation, Genpact Limited, SITEL Worldwide Corporation (a whollyowned subsidiary of Groupe Acticall), Sykes Enterprises Inc., Teleperformance, TeleTech Holdings, Inc., Conduent Inc., Transcosmos Inc., and Globant S.A.
In the future, we may face greater competition due to the consolidation of business process outsourcing providers. Consolidation activity may result in
competitors with greater scale, a broader footprint or more attractive pricing than ours. In addition, a client or potential client may choose not to outsource its
business, by setting up captive outsourcing operations or by performing formerly outsourced services for themselves, or may switch customer care providers.
We constantly seek to expand our business into areas primarily related to our core distribution and outsourced business services as well as other
support, logistics and related value-added services, both organically and through strategic acquisitions.
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Employees
As of November 30, 2017, we had approximately 107,400 full-time employees. Given the variability in our business and the quick response time
required by customers, it is critical that we are able to rapidly ramp-up and ramp-down our operational capabilities to maximize efficiency. As a result, we use
temporary or contract workers, who totaled approximately 6,200, on a full-time equivalent basis, as of November 30, 2017. Except for a small number of our
employees in certain countries, generally required by local regulations or brought in through acquisitions, our employees are not represented by a labor
union, nor are they covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our employee relations to be good.
Available Information
Our website is http://www.synnex.com. We make available free of charge, on or through our website, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, if any, or other filings filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing or furnishing these reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC.
Information contained on our website is not a part of this Report. We have adopted a code of ethics applicable to our employees including our principal
executive, financial and accounting officers, and it is available free of charge, on our website’s investor relations page.
The SEC maintains an Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains our Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, if any, or other filings filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, and our proxy
and information statements. All reports that we file with the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, DC, 20549. Information about the operation of the Public Reference Room can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
The following are certain risk factors that could affect our business, financial results and results of operations. These risk factors should be considered in
connection with evaluating the forward-looking statements contained in this Report because these factors could cause the actual results and conditions to
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. Before you invest in our Company, you should know that making such an
investment involves some risks, including the risks described below. The risks that have been highlighted here are not the only ones that we face. If any of
the risks actually occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be negatively affected. In that case, the trading price of our common
stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.
Risks Related to Our Business
We anticipate that our revenue and operating results will fluctuate, which could adversely affect the enterprise value of our Company and our
securities.
Our operating results have fluctuated and will fluctuate in the future as a result of many factors, including:
•

the impact of the business acquisitions and dispositions we make;

•

general economic conditions and level of IT and CE spending and outsourced business services;

•

the loss or consolidation of one or more of our significant OEM suppliers or customers;

•

consolidation of our Concentrix competitors, including insourcing by clients;

•

market acceptance, quality, pricing, availability and useful life of our products and services, as well as the mix of our products and services sold;

•

competitive conditions in our industry;

•

pricing, margin and other terms with our OEM suppliers;

•

decline in inventory value as a result of product obsolescence and market acceptance;

•

variations in our levels of excess inventory, vendor reserves and doubtful accounts;

•

fluctuations in rates in the currencies in which we transact;

•

changes in the terms of OEM supplier-inventory protections, such as price protection and return rights; and
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•

the expansion of our design and integration solutions sales and operations, globally.

Although we attempt to control our expense levels, these levels are based, in part, on anticipated revenue. Therefore, we may not be able to control
spending in a timely manner to compensate for any unexpected revenue shortfall.
Our operating results in the Technology Solutions segment also are affected by the seasonality of the IT and CE products and services industry. We
have historically experienced higher sales in our fourth fiscal quarter due to patterns in the capital budgeting, federal government spending and purchasing
cycles of end-users. Revenue in our Concentrix segment is typically higher in our fourth quarter due to seasonal patterns in our clients’ business. These
patterns may not be repeated in subsequent periods. You should not rely on period-to-period comparisons of our operating results as an indication of future
performance. In future years, our operating results may be below our expectations or those of our public market analysts or investors, which would likely
cause our share price to decline.
We are subject to uncertainties and variability in demand by our customers, which could decrease revenue and adversely affect our operating results,
and we have customer contracts with provisions that could cause fluctuations in our revenue.
In our Technology Solutions segment, we sell to our customers on a purchase order basis, rather than pursuant to long-term contracts or contracts with
minimum purchase requirements. Consequently, our sales are subject to demand variability by our customers. The level and timing of orders placed by our
customers vary for a variety of reasons, including seasonal buying by end-users, the introduction of new hardware and software technologies and general
economic conditions. Customers submitting a purchase order may cancel, reduce or delay their orders. If we are unable to anticipate and respond to the
demands of our reseller, retail and design and integration solutions customers, we may lose customers because we have an inadequate supply of products, or
we may have excess inventory, either of which could harm our business, financial position and operating results.
With regard to our design and integration solutions customers, unique parts are purchased based both on customer purchase orders and forecasted
demand. We have limited protection against excess inventory should anticipated demand not materialize.
In our Concentrix segment, we provide global business services to our customers under contracts with provisions that, if triggered, could impact our
profitability. For example, many of our contracts may be terminated with a short amount of notice, and to the extent our customers terminate these contracts,
we could experience unexpected fluctuations in our revenue and operating results from period to period. Additionally, some contracts have performancerelated bonus or penalty provisions, whereby we could receive a bonus if we satisfy certain performance levels or have to pay a penalty for failing to do so.
Whether we receive a bonus or are required to pay a penalty is unpredictable, and may cause additional fluctuations in our financial results. In addition, our
customers may not guarantee a minimum volume; however, we hire employees based on anticipated average volumes. If we fail to anticipate volumes
correctly, our operations and financial results may suffer. The reduction of volume, loss of customers, payment of penalties or inability to terminate any
unprofitable contracts could have an adverse impact on our operations and financial results.
In our Technology Solutions segment, we depend on a small number of OEMs to supply the IT and CE products and services that we sell and the loss of,
or a material change in, our business relationship with a major OEM supplier could adversely affect our business, financial position and operating
results.
Our future success is highly dependent on our relationships with a small number of OEM suppliers. For example, sales of HP products and services
comprised approximately 13%, 17%, and 25% of our consolidated revenue for fiscal years 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively. Our OEM supplier agreements
typically are short-term and may be terminated without cause upon short notice. The loss or deterioration of our relationship with HP or any other major OEM
supplier, the authorization by OEM suppliers of additional distributors, the sale of products by OEM suppliers directly to our reseller and retail customers and
end-users, or our failure to establish relationships with new OEM suppliers or to expand the distribution and supply chain services that we provide OEM
suppliers could adversely affect our business, financial position and operating results. In addition, OEM suppliers may face liquidity or solvency issues that
in turn could negatively affect our business and operating results.
Our business is also highly dependent on the terms provided by our OEM suppliers. Generally, each OEM supplier has the ability to change the terms
and conditions of its distribution agreements, such as reducing the amount of price protection and return rights or reducing the level of purchase discounts,
incentive rebates and marketing programs available to us.
From time to time we may conduct business with a supplier without a formal agreement because the agreement has expired or was otherwise terminated.
In such case, we are subject to additional risk with respect to products, warranties and
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returns, and other terms and conditions. If we are unable to pass the impact of these changes through to our reseller and retail customers, our business,
financial position and operating results could be adversely affected.
In our Technology Solutions segment our gross margins are low, which magnifies the impact of variations in gross margin, operating costs and our
operating results.
As a result of significant price competition in the IT and CE products and services industry, our gross margins are low, and we expect them to continue
to be low in the future. Increased competition arising from industry consolidation and low demand for certain IT and CE products and services may hinder
our ability to maintain or improve our gross margins. These low gross margins magnify the impact of variations in revenue, operating costs and our operating
results. A portion of our operating expense is relatively fixed, and planned expenditures are based in part on anticipated orders that are forecasted with
limited visibility of future demand. As a result, we may not be able to reduce our operating expense to sufficiently mitigate any further reductions in gross
profit or margin in the future. If we cannot proportionately decrease our cost structure in response to competitive price pressures, our business and operating
results could suffer.
We also receive purchase discounts and rebates from OEM suppliers based on various factors, including sales or purchase volume and breadth of
customers. A decrease in net sales could negatively affect the level of volume rebates received from our OEM suppliers and thus, our gross margin. Because
some rebates from OEM suppliers are based on percentage increases in sales of products, it may become more difficult for us to achieve the percentage growth
in sales required for larger discounts due to the current size of our revenue base. A decrease or elimination of purchase discounts and rebates from our OEM
suppliers would adversely affect our business and operating results.
We are subject to the risk that our inventory value may decline, and protective terms under our OEM supplier agreements may not adequately cover
the decline in value, which in turn may harm our business, financial position and operating results.
The IT and CE products industry is subject to rapid technological change, new and enhanced product specification requirements, and evolving industry
standards. These changes may cause inventory on hand to decline substantially in value or to rapidly become obsolete. Most of our OEM suppliers offer
limited protection from the loss in value of inventory. For example, we can receive a credit from many OEM suppliers for products held in inventory in the
event of a supplier price reduction. In addition, we have a limited right to return a certain percentage of purchases to most OEM suppliers. These policies are
often subject to time restrictions and do not protect us in all cases from declines in inventory value. In addition, our OEM suppliers may become unable or
unwilling to fulfill their protection obligations to us. The decrease or elimination of price protection, or the inability of our OEM suppliers to fulfill their
protection obligations, could lower our gross margins and cause us to record inventory write-downs. If we are unable to manage our inventory with our OEM
suppliers with a high degree of precision, we may have insufficient product supplies or we may have excess inventory, resulting in inventory write-downs,
either of which could harm our business, financial position and operating results.
We depend on OEM suppliers to maintain an adequate supply of products to fulfill customer orders on a timely basis, and any supply shortages or
delays could cause us to be unable to timely fulfill orders, which in turn could harm our business, financial position and operating results.
Our ability to obtain particular products in the required quantities and to fulfill reseller and retail customer orders on a timely basis is critical to our
success. In most cases, we have no guaranteed price or delivery agreements with our OEM suppliers. We occasionally experience a supply shortage of certain
products as a result of strong demand or problems experienced by our OEM suppliers. If shortages or delays persist, the price of those products may increase,
or the products may not be available at all. Such delays could also impact our ability to procure critical components required to complete customer orders. In
addition, our OEM suppliers may decide to distribute, or to substantially increase their existing distribution business, through other distributors, their own
dealer networks, or directly to resellers, retailers or end-users. Accordingly, if we are not able to secure and maintain an adequate supply of products to fulfill
our customer orders on a timely basis, our business, financial position and operating results could be adversely affected.
Our delivery center activities in our Concentrix business are significantly concentrated in India and the Philippines, which may expose us to
operational risks.
Operations in our Concentrix segment are based on a global delivery model with client services provided from delivery centers located in several
countries with a significant percentage of our workforce located in India and the Philippines. Socio-economic situations which are specific to these countries
can severely disrupt our operations and impact our ability to fulfill our contractual obligations to our clients. If these regions experience severe natural
calamities or political unrest, our personnel resources may be affected, our IT and communication infrastructure may be at risk and the client processes that
we manage
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may be adversely affected. Changes in governments, laws, regulations, minimum wages, and taxation rules may severely impact our ability to do business in
these countries, our business practices, our operating costs and our results of operations.
Both our Technology Solutions and Concentrix segments have customer concentration and intense competition which could adversely impact our
revenue.
Our business experiences customer concentration from time to time. For example, in 2017, one customer accounted for 21% of our consolidated
revenue. While we do not believe that the loss of any single customer would have a material adverse effect on the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a
whole, such loss could result in an adverse impact on certain of our businesses. For example, the systems design and integration solutions business of our
Technology Solutions segment has significant customer concentration, requires investments in working capital and infrastructure, and has customer contracts
that often offer limited or no volume guarantees or protection for end-of-life investments. The loss of a customer or reduction in order volumes could
adversely impact our revenue, provision for inventory losses, the absorption of fixed overhead costs and our future expansion plans. The system design and
integration solutions business operates in a competitive environment. Volumes can fluctuate based on customer demand, delivery quality and the
competitive landscape. Our ability to deliver customized solutions on a timely basis is critical to our success. Any delay could impact our competitive
position and result in loss of customer orders, which could impact our financial position and operating results.
In our Concentrix segment, we have experienced customer concentration. This customer concentration increases the risk of quarterly fluctuations in our
operating results, depending on the seasonal pattern of our top customers’ business. In addition, our top customers could make greater demands on us with
regard to pricing and contractual terms in general. The loss of, or significant decrease in demand from, any of our top customers could affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition of the segment.
The market for CE products that we distribute is characterized by short product life cycles. Increased competition for limited retailer shelf space,
decreased promotional support from resellers or retailers or increased popularity of downloadable or online content and services could adversely
impact our revenue.
The market for CE products, such as personal computers and tablets, mobile devices, wearable devices, video game titles and hardware, and audio or
visual equipment, is characterized by short product life cycles and frequent introductions of new products. The markets in which we compete frequently
introduce new products to meet changing consumer preferences and trends. As a result, competition is intense for resellers’ and retailers’ limited shelf space
and promotions. If our vendors’ new products are not introduced in a timely manner or do not achieve significant market acceptance, we may not generate
sufficient sales or profitability. Further, if we are unable to successfully compete for resellers’ or retailers’ space and promotional resources, this could
negatively impact market acceptance of our products and negatively impact our business and operating results.
Our Concentrix business is subject to dynamic changes in its business model and intense competition, which in turn could cause our operations to suffer.
The customer engagement services industry is highly competitive, highly fragmented and subject to rapid change. We believe that the principal
competitive factors in this market are breadth and depth of process and domain expertise, service quality, the ability to attract, train and retain qualified
people, compliance rigor, global delivery capabilities, price and marketing and sales capabilities. We compete for business with a variety of companies,
including in-house captives of potential clients. If our customers place more focus in this area and internalize these operations, this could also cause a
significant reduction in the size of the available market for third party service providers like us. Similarly, if competitors offer their services at lower margins
to gain market share, this could cause a significant decrease in the available market for us. In addition, our success may depend on our ability to continue to
develop and implement services and solutions that anticipate and respond to rapid and continuing changes in technology and offerings to serve the evolving
needs of our clients. Some of these technologies, such as cloud-based services, artificial intelligence and automation, may cause an adverse shift in the way
our existing business operations are conducted or decrease the size of the available market.
If we are unable to hire and retain employees with domain expertise for our Concentrix business, our operations will be disrupted, and such disruption
may impact our ability to manage our costs, which in turn could impact our profitability.
The success of our operations and the quality of our services are highly dependent on our ability to attract and retain skilled personnel in all of our
international delivery centers. The industry is characterized by high employee attrition rates and we face competition in hiring, retaining and motivating
talented and skilled leaders and employees with domain experience.
In addition, our profitability is directly affected by the utilization rate of our personnel resources. If we are unable to achieve optimum utilization of our
personnel resources, we may experience erosions in our profit margin. However, if our
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utilization is too high, it may result in a deterioration in the quality of services provided to our clients and may also result in higher attrition rates. If we are
unable to manage our employee attrition rates, adequately motivate our employees or utilize our personnel resources efficiently, our operations will be
disrupted, and such disruption may impact our ability to manage our costs, which in turn could impact our profitability.
If we fail to maintain effective internal controls over operations we perform for our clients in our Concentrix business or if our information systems are
breached or client data are compromised, client relations may suffer, which in turn may adversely affect our revenue and results of operations.
Our customer engagement services business involves us representing our clients in certain critical operations of their business processes such as sales,
marketing and customer support. If our clients experience disruptions in these operations or are dissatisfied with the quality of service provided, our client
relationships may suffer and we may face possible legal action.
In addition, in management of our clients’ operations, we manage large volumes of customer information and confidential data. We may be liable and
our operations may be disrupted if there is a breach of confidentiality of client data, if an employee violates policies and regulations governing the
management of personal information, if we lose our client’s data or if the security of our IT systems is compromised.
We may also be liable if we do not maintain adequate internal controls over the processes we manage for our clients or if we fail to comply with the laws
and regulations applicable to the operations in which we represent our clients. Our clients may request us to obtain audit reports over our internal controls. If
we are unable to complete these audit reports in a timely manner, or if internal control deficiencies are identified in the audit process, our client relationships
may suffer.
If we are unable to successfully manage our delivery centers in the Concentrix business, our results of operations could be adversely affected.
Our Concentrix business, which has extensive international operations, may be adversely impacted if we are unable to manage and communicate with
the resources located internationally. Service quality may be placed at risk and our ability to optimize our resources may be compromised if we are unable to
manage our resources remotely. Our Concentrix business uses a wide variety of technologies to allow us to manage a large volume of work. These
technologies are designed to keep our employees productive. Any failure in technology may have a negative impact on our operations. The success of our
services primarily depends on the performance of our employees and resulting customer satisfaction. Any increase in average waiting time or handling time
or lack of promptness or technical expertise of our employees will directly impact customer satisfaction. Any adverse customer satisfaction may impact the
overall business. If we are unable to successfully manage our delivery centers, our results of operations could be adversely affected.
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates and limitations on the convertibility of foreign currencies could adversely affect our business and
operating results.
Approximately 27% of our consolidated revenue in fiscal years 2017 and 2016, and 26% for fiscal year 2015 were generated outside the United States.
Most of our international revenue, cost of revenue and operating expenses are denominated in foreign currencies. Westcon-Comstor Latin America revenue is
generally denominated in local currencies while cost of revenue is denominated in U.S. dollar. We presently have currency exposure arising from both sales
and purchases denominated in foreign currencies. Changes in exchange rates between foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar may adversely affect our
operating margins. For example, if these foreign currencies appreciate against the U.S. dollar, it will be more expensive in terms of U.S. dollars to purchase
inventory or pay expenses with foreign currencies. This could have a negative impact on us if revenue related to these purchases is transacted in U.S. dollars.
In addition, currency devaluation can result in our products, the majority of which are purchased by us in U.S. dollars, to be relatively more expensive to
procure than products manufactured locally. We currently conduct only limited hedging activities, which involve the use of currency forward contracts.
Hedging foreign currencies can be risky. Certain of these hedge positions are undesignated hedges of balance sheet exposures, such as intercompany loans,
and typically have maturities of less than one year.
In our Concentrix segment, our customer engagement services are delivered from several delivery centers located around the world, with significant
operations in India and the Philippines. As a result, our revenue may be earned in currencies that are different from the currencies in which we incur
corresponding expenses. Fluctuations in the value of currencies, such as the Indian Rupee, the Philippine Peso, and the Brazilian Real against the U.S. Dollar,
and inflation in the local economies in which these delivery centers are located, could increase the operating and labor costs in these delivery centers which
can result in reduced profitability.
There is also additional risk if the currency is not freely or actively traded. Some currencies, such as the Chinese Renminbi, Indian Rupee and
Philippines Peso, are subject to limitations on conversion into other currencies, which can limit
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our ability to hedge or to otherwise react to rapid foreign currency devaluations. We cannot predict the impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our
business and operating results.
We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative trading purposes, nor do we hedge our foreign currency exposure in a manner that
entirely offsets the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates.
As a general rule, we do not use financial instruments to hedge local currency denominated operating expenses in countries where a natural hedge
exists. For example, in many countries, revenue from the local currency services substantially offsets the local currency denominated operating expenses.
Because we conduct substantial operations in China, risks associated with economic, political and social events in China could negatively affect our
business and operating results.
A substantial portion of our IT systems operations, including our IT systems support and software development operations, and a portion of our
Concentrix services, are located in China. In addition, we also conduct general and administrative activities from our facilities in China. As of November 30,
2017, we had approximately 7,000 personnel located in China. Our operations in China are subject to a number of risks relating to China’s economic and
political systems, including:
•

a government controlled foreign exchange rate and limitations on the convertibility of the Chinese Renminbi;

•

extensive government regulation;

•

changing governmental policies relating to tax benefits available to foreign-owned businesses;

•

the telecommunications infrastructure;

•

a relatively uncertain legal system; and

•

uncertainties related to continued economic and social reform.

Our IT systems are an important part of our global operations. Any significant interruption in service, whether resulting from any of the above
uncertainties, natural disasters or otherwise, could result in delays in our inventory purchasing, errors in order fulfillment, reduced levels of customer service
and other disruptions in operations, any of which could cause our business and operating results to suffer.
We may have higher than anticipated tax liabilities.
We conduct business globally and file income tax returns in various tax jurisdictions. Our effective tax rate could be adversely affected by several
factors, many of which are outside of our control, including:
•

changes in income before taxes in various jurisdictions in which we operate that have differing statutory tax rates;

•

changing tax laws, such as Public Law 115-97, informally referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "TCJA"), regulations, and/or interpretations
of such tax laws in multiple jurisdictions;

•

effect of tax rate on accounting for acquisitions and dispositions;

•

issues arising from tax audit or examinations and any related interest or penalties; and

•

uncertainty in obtaining tax holiday extensions or expiration or loss of tax holidays in various jurisdictions.

We report our results of operations based on our determination of the amount of taxes owed in various tax jurisdictions in which we operate. The
determination of our worldwide provision for income taxes and other tax liabilities requires estimation, judgment and calculations where the ultimate tax
determination may not be certain. Our determination of tax liability is always subject to review or examination by tax authorities in various tax jurisdictions.
Any adverse outcome of such review or examination could have a negative impact on our operating results and financial condition. The results from various
tax examinations and audits may differ from the liabilities recorded in our financial statements and could adversely affect our financial results and cash flows.
On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed the TCJA into law. The TCJA contains significant changes to U.S. federal corporate income taxation,
including reduction of the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% for US taxable income, resulting in a one-time remeasurement of deferred taxes to reflect their
value at a lower tax rate of 21%, limitation of the deduction for net operating losses to 80% of current year taxable income and elimination of net operating
loss carrybacks,
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deemed repatriation, resulting in one-time taxation of offshore earnings at reduced rates, elimination of U.S. tax on foreign earnings (subject to certain
important exceptions), and immediate deductions for certain new investments instead of deductions for depreciation expense over time. Many of the TCJA's
provisions, such as the reduction in the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate apply to us in fiscal 2018. Due to this reduction, accounting rules will require
us to adjust the value of our deferred tax assets and liabilities in the first quarter of our fiscal year 2018. Any such adjustment could adversely affect our
earnings for the adjustment period. We are currently evaluating the overall effect of the TCJA on our business and financial condition.
We have pursued and intend to continue to pursue strategic acquisitions or investments in new markets and may encounter risks associated with these
activities, which could harm our business and operating results.
We have in the past pursued, and in the future expect to pursue, acquisitions of, or investments in, businesses and assets in new markets, either within or
outside the IT and CE products and services industries and the customer engagement services industry, that complement or expand our existing business. Our
acquisition strategy involves a number of risks, including:
•

difficulty in successfully integrating acquired operations, IT systems, customers, OEM supplier relationships, products, services and businesses
with our operations;

•

risk that the acquired businesses will fail to maintain the quality of services that we have historically provided;

•

loss of key employees of acquired operations or inability to hire key employees necessary for our expansion;

•

diversion of our capital and management attention away from other business issues;

•

increase in our expenses and working capital requirements;

•

in the case of acquisitions that we may make outside of the United States, difficulty in operating in foreign countries and over significant
geographical distances;

•

other financial risks, such as potential liabilities of the businesses we acquire; and

•

our due diligence process may fail to identify significant issues with the acquired company’s product and service quality, financial disclosures,
accounting practices or internal control deficiencies.

We may incur additional costs and certain redundant expenses in connection with our acquisitions and investments, which may have an adverse impact
on our operating margins. Future acquisitions may result in dilutive issuances of equity securities, the incurrence of additional debt, large write-offs, a
decrease in future profitability, or future losses. The incurrence of debt in connection with any future acquisitions could restrict our ability to obtain working
capital or other financing necessary to operate our business. Our recent and future acquisitions or investments may not be successful, and if we fail to realize
the anticipated benefits of these acquisitions or investments, our business and operating results could be harmed.
Our goodwill and identifiable intangible assets could become impaired, which could have a material non-cash adverse effect on our results of
operations.
We recorded substantial goodwill and amortizable intangible assets as a result of our previous acquisitions. We review our goodwill and intangible
assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. We assess whether there has been an
impairment in the value of goodwill at least annually. Factors that may be considered a change in circumstances indicating that the carrying value of our
goodwill or intangible assets may not be recoverable include declines in stock price, market capitalization or cash flows and slower growth rates in our
industry. We could be required to record a significant charge to earnings in our financial statements during the period in which any impairment of our
goodwill or intangible assets were determined, negatively impacting our results of operations.
Because of the capital-intensive nature of our Technology Solutions business, we need continued access to capital, which if not available to us or if not
available on favorable terms, could harm our ability to operate or expand our business.
Our Technology Solutions business requires significant levels of capital to finance accounts receivable and product inventory that is not financed by
trade creditors. If cash from available sources is insufficient, proceeds from our accounts receivable securitization and revolving credit programs are limited or
cash is used for unanticipated needs, we may require additional capital sooner than anticipated.
In the event we are required, or elect, to raise additional funds, we may be unable to do so on favorable terms, or at all, and may incur expenses in
raising the additional funds. Our current and future indebtedness could adversely affect our operating results and severely limit our ability to plan for, or react
to, changes in our business or industry. We could also be limited by financial and other restrictive covenants in securitization or credit arrangements,
including limitations on our
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borrowing of additional funds and issuing dividends. Furthermore, the cost of securitization or debt financing could significantly increase in the future,
making it cost prohibitive to securitize our accounts receivable or borrow, which could force us to issue new equity securities. If we issue new equity
securities, existing stockholders may experience dilution, or the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing
holders of common stock. If we cannot raise funds on acceptable terms, we may not be able to take advantage of future opportunities or respond to
competitive pressures or unanticipated requirements. Any inability to raise additional capital when required could have an adverse effect on our business and
operating results.
The terms of our debt arrangements impose significant restrictions on our ability to operate which in turn could negatively affect our ability to respond
to business and market conditions and therefore could have an adverse effect on our business and operating results.
As of November 30, 2017, we had $1,946.0 million in outstanding short and long-term borrowings under term loans, lines of credit, accounts receivable
securitization programs and capital leases, excluding trade payables. The terms of one or more of the agreements under which this indebtedness was incurred
may limit or restrict, among other things, our ability to:
•

incur additional indebtedness;

•

make investments;

•

pay dividends or make certain other restricted payments;

•

repurchase common stock;

•

consummate certain asset sales or acquisitions;

•

enter into certain transactions with affiliates; and

•

merge, consolidate or sell, assign, transfer, lease, convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets.

We are also required to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy certain financial condition tests under certain of our debt facilities. Our inability
to meet these ratios and tests could result in the acceleration of the repayment of the related debt, termination of the applicable facility, an increase in our
effective cost of funds or the cross-default of other credit and securitization arrangements. As a result, our ability to operate may be restricted and our ability
to respond to business and market conditions may be limited, which could have an adverse effect on our business and operating results.
We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our indebtedness and may be forced to take other actions to satisfy our obligations, which
could adversely affect our business.
Our ability to make scheduled debt payments or to refinance our debt obligations depends on our financial and operating performance, which is subject
to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to certain financial, business and other factors beyond our control. We cannot be certain that we will
maintain a level of cash flows from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal and interest on our indebtedness.
If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures,
sell assets or operations, seek additional capital or restructure or refinance our indebtedness. We cannot be certain that we would be able to take any of these
actions, that these actions would be successful and permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations or that these actions would be permitted under
the terms of our existing or future debt agreements. In the absence of such operating results and resources, we could face substantial liquidity problems and
might be required to dispose of material assets or operations to meet our debt service and other obligations. Some of our credit facilities restrict our ability to
dispose assets and use the proceeds from such disposition. As such, we may not be able to consummate those dispositions or use any resulting proceeds and,
in addition, such proceeds may not be adequate to meet any debt service obligations then due.
If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debt, we will be in default and, as a result:
•

our lenders could declare all outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable;

•

the lenders under our credit agreements could terminate their commitments to loan us money and, in the case of our secured credit agreements,
foreclose against the assets securing their borrowings;

•

we could be forced to raise additional capital through the issuance of additional, potentially dilutive securities; and
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•

we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation, which is likely to result in delays in the payment of our indebtedness and in the exercise of
enforcement remedies related to our indebtedness.

If the interest rates on our borrowings increase, our access to capital and net income could be adversely affected.
Our borrowings and securitization arrangements are variable-rate obligations and expose us to interest rate risks. If interest rates increase, debt service
obligations and our interest expense will increase even though the amount borrowed remains the same. Our net income and cash flows, including cash
available for servicing indebtedness, will correspondingly decrease.
An increase in interest rates may increase our future borrowing costs and restrict our access to capital. Additionally, current market conditions, the
recovering global economy, and overall credit conditions could limit our availability of capital, which could cause increases in interest margin spreads over
underlying indices, effectively increasing the cost of our borrowing. While some of our credit facilities have contractually negotiated spreads, any changes to
these spreads in connection with renegotiations of our credit facilities could adversely affect our results of operations.
We have entered into interest rate swaps with financial institutions to effectively convert a portion of our floating rate debt to a fixed interest rate to
manage our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. In the event of the nonperformance by the counterparties, we are exposed to credit losses.
A portion of our revenue is financed by floor plan financing companies and any termination or reduction in these financing arrangements could
increase our financing costs and harm our business and operating results.
A portion of our product distribution revenue is financed by floor plan financing companies. Floor plan financing companies are engaged by our
customers to finance, or floor, the purchase of products from us. In exchange for a fee, we transfer the risk of loss on the sale of our products to the floor plan
companies. We currently receive payment from these financing companies within approximately 15 to 30 days from the date of the sale, which allows our
business to operate at much lower relative working capital levels than if such programs were not available. If these floor plan arrangements are terminated or
substantially reduced, the need for more working capital and the increased financing cost could harm our business and operating results.
We have significant credit exposure to our customers, and negative trends in their businesses could cause us significant credit loss and negatively
impact our cash flow and liquidity position.
We extend credit to our customers for a significant portion of our sales to them and they have a period of time, generally 30 days after the date of
invoice, to make payment. However, in certain cases, for some of our larger customers, we offer longer terms of payment. As a result, we are subject to the risk
that our customers will not pay on time or at all. Our credit exposure risk may increase due to financial difficulties or liquidity or solvency issues experienced
by our customers, resulting in their inability to repay us. The liquidity or solvency issues may increase as a result of an economic downturn or a decrease in IT
or CE spending by end-users. If we are unable to collect payments in a timely manner from our customers due to changes in financial or economic conditions,
or for other reasons, and we are unable to collect under our credit insurance policies, we may write-off the amount due from the customers. These write-offs
may result in credit insurance being more expensive and on terms that are less favorable to us and may negatively impact our ability to utilize accounts
receivable-based financing. In addition, the failure of customers to pay within a specified time period after the date of an invoice could result in defaults
under our accounts receivable securitization program. These circumstances could negatively impact our cash flow and liquidity position, or result in the
cross-default to our other indebtedness and acceleration of the repayment of our indebtedness. Further, we are exposed to higher collection risk as we
continue to expand internationally, where the payment cycles are generally longer and the credit rating process may not be as robust as in the United States,
and where our access to accounts receivable financing is more limited.
We are dependent on a variety of IT and telecommunications systems and the Internet, and any failure of these systems could adversely impact our
business and operating results.
We depend on IT and telecommunications systems and the Internet for our operations. These systems support a variety of functions including inventory
management, order processing, shipping, shipment tracking, billing, and our Concentrix business.
Failures or significant downtime of our IT or telecommunications systems could prevent us from taking customer orders, printing product pick-lists,
shipping products, billing customers and handling call volume. Frequent or prolonged interruption in our ability to provide service in our Concentrix
business would adversely affect our client relationships and damage our reputation. Sales also may be affected if our reseller and retail customers are unable
to access our pricing and product availability information. We also rely on the Internet, and in particular EDI and XML, for a large portion of our orders and
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information exchanges with our OEM suppliers and reseller and retail customers. The Internet and individual websites have experienced a number of
disruptions and slowdowns, some of which were caused by organized attacks. In addition, some websites have experienced security breakdowns. If we were to
experience a security breakdown, disruption or breach that compromised sensitive information, it could harm our relationship with our OEM suppliers and
reseller and retail customers. Disruption of our website or the Internet in general could impair our order processing or more generally prevent our OEM
suppliers and reseller and retail customers from accessing information. Our Concentrix business is dependent upon telephone and data services provided by
third party telecommunications service vendors and our IT and telecommunications systems. Any significant increase in our IT and telecommunications costs
or temporary or permanent loss of our IT or telecommunications systems could harm our relationships with our customers. The occurrence of any of these
events could have an adverse effect on our operations and financial results.
We rely on independent shipping companies for delivery of products, and price increases or service interruptions from these carriers could adversely
affect our business and operating results.
We rely almost entirely on arrangements with independent shipping companies, such as FedEx and UPS, for the delivery of our products from OEM
suppliers and delivery of products to reseller and retail customers. Freight and shipping charges can have a significant impact on our gross margin. As a result,
an increase in freight surcharges due to rising fuel cost or general price increases will have an immediate adverse effect on our margins, unless we are able to
pass the increased charges to our reseller and retail customers or renegotiate terms with our OEM suppliers. In addition, in the past, carriers have experienced
work stoppages due to labor negotiations with management. An increase in freight or shipping charges, the termination of our arrangements with one or more
of these independent shipping companies, the failure or inability of one or more of these independent shipping companies to deliver products, or the
unavailability of their shipping services, even temporarily, could have an adverse effect on our business and operating results.
Because of the experience of our key personnel in the IT, CE and the customer engagement services industries and their technological and industry
expertise, if we were to lose any of our key personnel, it could inhibit our ability to operate and grow our business successfully.
We are dependent in large part on our ability to retain the services of our key senior executives and other technological and industry experts and
personnel. On January 9, 2018, Kevin Murai announced his retirement as President and Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") effective March 1, 2018 and Dennis
Polk will assume the President and CEO role of SYNNEX Corporation. Except for the employment agreements with Kevin Murai and Dennis Polk, we
generally do not have employment agreements with our executives or employees. The above actions do not insure against the loss of key personnel, but
reflect our long-term succession planning strategies in place. We also do not carry “key person” insurance coverage for any of our key executives. We
compete for qualified senior management and technical personnel. The loss of, or inability to hire, key executives or qualified employees could inhibit our
ability to operate and grow our business successfully.
We may experience theft of product from our warehouses, water damage to our properties and other casualty events which could harm our operating
results.
From time to time, we have experienced incidents of theft at various facilities, water damages to our properties and other casualty events. These types of
incidents may make it more difficult or expensive for us to obtain insurance coverage in the future. Also, the same or similar incidents may occur in the future
for which we may not have sufficient insurance coverage or policy limits to be fully compensated for the loss, which may have an adverse effect on our
business and financial results.
We may become involved in intellectual property or other disputes that could cause us to incur substantial costs, divert the efforts of our management,
and require us to pay substantial damages or require us to obtain a license, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, if at all.
From time to time, we receive notifications alleging infringements of intellectual property rights allegedly held by others relating to our business or the
products we sell or integrate for our OEM suppliers and others. Litigation with respect to patents or other intellectual property matters could result in
substantial costs and diversion of management and other resources and could have an adverse effect on our business. Although we generally have various
levels of indemnification protection from our OEM suppliers and design and integration solutions customers, in many cases any indemnification to which we
may be entitled is subject to maximum limits or other restrictions.
In addition, we have developed proprietary IT systems, mobile applications, and cloud-based technology and acquired technologies that play an
important role in our business. If any infringement claim is successful against us and if indemnification is not available or sufficient, we may be required to
pay substantial damages or we may need to seek and obtain a license of the other party’s intellectual property rights. We may be unable to obtain such a
license on commercially reasonable terms, if at all.
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We are from time to time involved in other litigation in the ordinary course of business. We may not be successful in defending these or other claims.
Regardless of the outcome, litigation could result in substantial expense and could divert the efforts of our management.
We have significant operations concentrated in North and Latin America, Asia-Pacific and Europe and any disruption in the operations of our facilities
could harm our business and operating results.
Our worldwide operations could be subject to natural disasters, adverse weather conditions and other business disruptions, which could seriously harm
our revenue and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses. We have significant operations in our facilities located in North and Latin America,
Asia-Pacific and Europe. As a result, any prolonged disruption in the operations of our facilities, whether due to technical difficulties, power failures, breakins, destruction or damage to the facilities as a result of a natural disaster, fire or any other reason, could harm our operating results. If there are related
disruptions in local or international supply chains, we may experience supply shortages or delays in receiving products from our OEM suppliers or
experience other delays in shipping to our customers. If we are unable to fulfill customer requirements in a timely manner, this could harm our operating
results. For example, our Philippines operation is at greater risk due to adverse weather conditions, such as typhoons, mudslides and floods. We currently
have a disaster recovery plan and business interruption insurance; however, they may not be sufficient to compensate for losses that may occur.
Global health and economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and negatively affect our stock
price.
Worldwide economic conditions remain uncertain due to adverse consequences concerning the United Kingdom’s referendum to vote for exit from the
European Union, market volatility as a result of political leadership in certain countries and other disruptions to global and regional economies and markets.
External factors, such as potential terrorist attacks, acts of war, geopolitical and social turmoil or epidemics and other similar outbreaks in many parts of the
world, could prevent or hinder our ability to do business, increase our costs and negatively affect our stock price. More generally, these geopolitical, social
and economic conditions could result in increased volatility in the United States and worldwide financial markets and economy. For example, increased
instability may enhance volatility in currency exchange rates, cause our customers or potential customers to delay or reduce spending on our products or
services, and limit our suppliers’ access to credit. It could also adversely impact our ability to obtain adequate insurance at reasonable rates and may require
us to incur increased costs for security measures for our domestic and international operations. We are predominantly uninsured for losses and interruptions
caused by terrorism, acts of war and similar events. These uncertainties make it difficult for us and our suppliers and customers to accurately plan future
business activities.
Part of our business is conducted outside of the United States, exposing us to additional risks that may not exist in the United States, which in turn could
cause our business and operating results to suffer.
We have significant international operations and presence which subjects us to risks, including:
•

political or economic instability;

•

extensive governmental regulation;

•

changes in import/export duties;

•

fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates;

•

trade restrictions;

•

compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, U.K. bribery laws and similar laws;

•

difficulties and costs of staffing and managing operations in certain foreign countries;

•

work stoppages or other changes in labor conditions;

•

minimum wage increases;

•

difficulties in collecting accounts receivable on a timely basis or at all;

•

taxes; and

•

seasonal reductions in business activity in some parts of the world.
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We may continue to expand internationally to respond to competitive pressure and customer and market requirements. Establishing operations in any
foreign country or region presents risks such as those described above as well as risks specific to the particular country or region. In addition, until a payment
history is established over time with customers in a new geography or region, the likelihood of collecting accounts receivable generated by such operations
could be less than our expectations. As a result, there is a greater risk that reserves set with respect to the collection of such accounts receivable may be
inadequate. Furthermore, if our international expansion efforts in any foreign country are unsuccessful, we may decide to cease operations, which would
likely cause us to incur additional expense and loss.
In addition, changes in policies or laws of the United States or foreign governments resulting in, among other things, higher taxation, currency
conversion limitations, restrictions on fund transfers or the expropriation of private enterprises, could reduce the anticipated benefits of our international
expansion. Any actions by countries in which we conduct business to reverse policies that encourage foreign trade or investment could adversely affect our
business. If we fail to realize the anticipated growth of our future international operations, our business and operating results could suffer.
We may not be able to realize all of the anticipated benefits of the acquisition of the Westcon-Comstor Americas business if we fail to integrate this
business successfully, which could reduce our profitability and adversely affect our stock price.
Our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition will depend, in part, on our ability to integrate this business
successfully and efficiently with our business. The integration of this business in several geographic locations, including ones new to us, is a complex, costly
and time-consuming process. The integration process may disrupt our business and, if implemented ineffectively, preclude realization of the full benefits
expected by us. If we are not successful in this integration, our financial results could be adversely impacted. Our management will be required to dedicate
significant time and effort to this integration process, which could divert their attention from other business concerns. In addition, the overall integration may
result in unanticipated problems, expenses, liabilities, competitive responses, loss of customer and other relationships, a loss of key employees, and diversion
of management’s attention, and may cause our stock price to decline. The difficulties of combining the operations of the two businesses include, among
others:
•

challenges associated with minimizing the diversion of management attention from ongoing business concerns;

• coordinating geographically separate organizations which may be subject to additional complications resulting from being geographically distant
from other of our operations;
•

coordinating and combining international operations, relationships, and facilities, and eliminating duplicative operations;

•

retaining key employees and maintaining employee morale, particularly in areas where we do not currently have personnel;

•

unanticipated changes in general business or market conditions that might interfere with our ability to carry out all of our integration plans;

•

unanticipated issues in integrating information, communications and other systems;

•

geopolitical events in relevant geographic locations, including natural disasters, public health issues, acts of war, and terrorism;

•

issues not discovered in our due diligence process; and

•

preserving important strategic and customer relationships.

In addition, even if the integration is successful, we may not realize the full potential benefits of the transaction, including synergies, revenues, cost
savings or sales or growth opportunities that we expect. Such benefits may not be achieved within the anticipated time frame, or at all. As a result, we cannot
assure you that this acquisition will result in the realization of the full benefits anticipated from the transaction.
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Risks Related to Our Relationship with MiTAC Holdings Corporation
The concentration of ownership of our common stock among our executive officers, directors and principal stockholders could allow them to influence
all matters requiring stockholder approval and could delay or prevent a change in control of SYNNEX.
As of November 30, 2017, our executive officers, directors and principal stockholders owned approximately 26% of our outstanding common stock. In
particular, MiTAC Holdings Corporation (“MiTAC Holdings”) and its affiliates owned approximately 24% of our common stock. MiTAC Holdings is a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. As a result, these stockholders have the potential ability to influence or control matters requiring
stockholder approval, including the election of directors and the approval of mergers and acquisitions, or exert influence on actions of the Board of Directors.
This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change of control of our company, could deprive our stockholders
of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of our company and might ultimately affect the market price of our common
stock.
There could be potential conflicts of interest between us and MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates, which could affect our business and operating results.
MiTAC Holdings’ and its affiliates’ continuing beneficial ownership of our common stock could create conflicts of interest with respect to a variety of
matters, such as potential acquisitions, competition, issuance or disposition of securities, election of directors, payment of dividends and other business
matters. For example, we currently purchase inventories from MiTAC Holdings. Similar risks could exist as a result of Matthew Miau’s positions as our
Chairman Emeritus, a member of our Board of Directors, the Chairman of MiTAC Holdings and as a director or officer of MiTAC Holdings’ affiliates. For
fiscal year 2017, Mr. Miau received the same compensation as our independent directors and during fiscal year 2018, Mr. Miau will receive the same
compensation as our independent directors. Mr. Miau’s compensation as one of our directors is based upon the approval of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee, which is solely composed of independent members of the Board of Directors. We also have adopted a policy requiring material
transactions in which any of our directors has a potential conflict of interest to be approved by our Audit Committee, which is also composed of independent
members of the Board of Directors.
Synnex Technology International Corp., or Synnex Technology International, a publicly-traded company based in Taiwan and affiliated with MiTAC
Holdings, currently provides distribution and fulfillment services to various markets in Asia and Australia, and is also a potential competitor of ours. As of
November 30, 2017, MiTAC Incorporated, a privately-held company based in Taiwan and a separate entity from MiTAC Holdings, directly and indirectly
owned approximately 13.6% of Synnex Technology International and approximately 7.8% of MiTAC Holdings. As of November 30, 2017, MiTAC Holdings
directly and indirectly owned 0.2% of Synnex Technology International and Synnex Technology International directly and indirectly owned approximately
0.0% of MiTAC Holdings. In addition, MiTAC Holdings directly and indirectly owned approximately 8.7% of MiTAC Incorporated and Synnex Technology
International directly and indirectly owned approximately 18.4% of MiTAC Incorporated as of November 30, 2017. Synnex Technology International
indirectly through its ownership of Peer Developments Limited owned approximately 10.5% of our outstanding common stock as of November 30, 2017.
Neither MiTAC Holdings, nor Synnex Technology International is restricted from competing with us. In the future, we may increasingly compete with
Synnex Technology International, particularly if our business in Asia expands or Synnex Technology International expands its business into geographies or
customers we serve. Although Synnex Technology International is a separate entity from us, it is possible that there will be confusion as a result of the
similarity of our names. Moreover, we cannot limit or control the use of the Synnex name by Synnex Technology International in certain geographies and our
use of the Synnex name may be restricted as a result of registration of the name by Synnex Technology International or the prior use in jurisdictions where it
currently operates.
Risks Related to Our Industry
Volatility in the IT and CE industries could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.
We have in the past, experienced decreases in demand and we anticipate that the industries we operate in will be subject to a high degree of cyclicality
in the future. Softening demand for our products and services caused by an ongoing economic downturn and over-capacity may impact our revenue, as well
the salability of inventory and collection of reseller and retail customer accounts receivable. In addition, if we are not able to adequately adapt to the
emergence of new technology or customer demand, such as cloud-based IT infrastructure and software-as-a-service, our future operating results could be
adversely affected.
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We are subject to intense competition in the Technology Solutions and Concentrix businesses, both in the United States and internationally, and if we fail
to compete successfully, we will be unable to gain or retain market share.
We operate in a highly competitive environment, both in the United States and internationally. This competition is based primarily on product and
service availability, credit availability, price, speed of delivery, ability to tailor specific solutions to customer needs, quality and depth of product and service
lines, pre-sales and post-sales technical support, flexibility and timely response to design changes, and technological capabilities, service and support. We
compete with a variety of regional, national and international IT and CE product and service providers and contract manufacturers and assemblers and
providers of customer engagement services. In some instances, we also compete with our own customers, our own OEM suppliers and MiTAC Holdings and
its affiliates.
Our primary competitors are substantially larger and have greater financial, operating, manufacturing and marketing resources than us. Some of our
competitors may have broader geographic breadth and range of services than us and may have more developed relationships with their existing customers.
We may lose market share in the United States or in international markets, or may be forced in the future to reduce our prices in response to the actions of our
competitors and thereby experience a reduction in our gross margins.
In addition, in our Concentrix business, we also face competition from our customers. For example, some of our customers may have internal
capabilities and resources to provide their own customer contact centers. Furthermore, pricing pressures and quality of services could impact our business
adversely. Our ability to provide a high quality of service is dependent on our ability to retain and properly train our employees and to continue investing in
our infrastructure, including IT and telecommunications systems.
We may initiate other business activities, including the broadening of our supply chain capabilities, and may face competition from companies with
more experience in those new areas. In addition, as we enter new areas of business, we may also encounter increased competition from current competitors or
from new competitors, including some that may once have been our OEM suppliers or reseller and retail customers. Increased competition and negative
reaction from our OEM suppliers or reseller and retail customers resulting from our expansion into new business areas could harm our business and operating
results.
Our business may be adversely affected by some OEM suppliers’ strategies to consolidate business or increase their direct sales, which in turn could
cause our business and operating results to suffer.
A determination by any of our primary OEMs to consolidate their business with other distributors or integration service providers could negatively
affect our business and operating results. Consolidation of OEM suppliers has resulted in fewer sources for some of the products and services that we
distribute. This consolidation has also resulted in larger OEM suppliers that have significant operating and financial resources. Other suppliers may reduce or
eliminate promotional activities to reduce their expenses, which could, in turn, result in declined demand from our reseller or retailer customers and endusers.
Some OEM suppliers, including some of the leading OEM suppliers that we service, have been selling products and services directly to reseller and
retail customers and end-users, thereby limiting our business opportunities. If large OEM suppliers increasingly sell directly to end-users or our resellers and
retailers, rather than use us as the distributor of their products and services, our business and operating results will suffer.
The IT and CE industries are subject to rapidly changing technologies and process developments, and we may not be able to adequately adjust our
business to these changes, which in turn would harm our business and operating results.
Dynamic changes in the IT and CE industries, including the consolidation of OEM suppliers and reductions in the number of authorized distributors
used by OEM suppliers, have resulted in new and increased responsibilities for management personnel and have placed, and continue to place, a significant
strain upon our management, operating and financial systems and other resources. We may be unable to successfully respond to and manage our business in
light of industry developments and trends. As end users migrate to cloud-based IT infrastructure and software-as-a-service, sales of hardware products may be
reduced, thereby negatively impacting our operating results. Also crucial to our success in managing our operations is our ability to achieve additional
economies of scale. Our failure to achieve these additional economies of scale or to respond to changes in the IT and CE industries could adversely affect our
business and operating results.
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If we are unable to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, our ability to report our financial results on a timely and accurate basis
may be adversely affected, which in turn could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires our management to report on, and our independent registered public accounting firm to attest
to, the effectiveness of our internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. We completed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting for fiscal year 2017, and we have an ongoing program to perform the system and process evaluation and testing necessary to
continue to comply with these requirements. However, internal control over financial reporting has inherent limitations, including human error, the
possibility that controls could be circumvented or become inadequate because of changed conditions, and fraud. Because of the inherent limitations,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not always be prevented or timely detected. We expect to continue to incur significant expense and to
devote management resources to Section 404 compliance. In the event that one of our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or independent
registered public accounting firm determines that our internal control over financial reporting is not effective as defined under Section 404, investor
perceptions and our reputation may be adversely affected and the market price of our stock could decline.
Changes to financial accounting standards may affect our results of operations and cause us to change our business practices.
We prepare our financial statements to conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. These accounting principles are
subject to interpretation by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the SEC and various bodies
formed to interpret and create appropriate accounting policies. A change in those policies can have a significant effect on our reported results and may affect
our reporting of transactions completed before a change is announced. Changes to those rules or the questioning of current practices may adversely affect our
reported financial results or the way we conduct our business.
For example, in May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard for contracts with
customers that will supersede most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The standard permits the use of either the
retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. This guidance will be applicable to us at the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal year 2019.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
Our principal executive offices are located in Fremont, California, and are owned by us. We operate distribution, integration, contact center and
administrative facilities in different countries.
Our Technology Solutions segment occupies approximately 60 facilities covering approximately 5.3 million square feet and includes warehouse,
logistics and administrative facilities. We own approximately 1.1 million square feet of property and lease the remainder.
Our Concentrix segment occupies over 125 facilities comprising service and delivery centers and administrative facilities covering approximately 6.1
million square feet. We own approximately three hundred eighty-three thousand square feet and lease the remainder.
We have sublet unused portions of some of our facilities. We believe our facilities are well maintained and adequate for current and near future
operating needs.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are from time to time involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that these proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on the results of our operations, our financial position or the cash flows of our business.
In addition, we have been involved in various bankruptcy preference actions where we were a supplier to the companies now in bankruptcy. These
preference actions are filed by the bankruptcy trustee on behalf of the bankrupt estate and generally seek to have payments made by the debtor within 90
days prior to the bankruptcy returned to the bankruptcy estate for allocation among all of the bankruptcy estate’s creditors. We are not currently involved in
any material preference proceedings.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers as of November 30, 2017:
Name
Kevin Murai
Dennis Polk
Peter Larocque
Marshall Witt
Christopher Caldwell
Simon Leung

Age
54
51
56
52
45
52

Position
President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director
Chief Operating Officer and a Director
President, North American Technology Solutions
Chief Financial Officer
Executive Vice President; President, Concentrix Corporation
Senior Vice President; General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Kevin Murai is our President and Chief Executive Officer and a Director. He joined us in March 2008 and served as Co-Chief Executive Officer until
December 2008. Prior to SYNNEX, Mr. Murai was employed for nineteen years at Ingram Micro, Inc., where he served in several executive management
positions, including President and Chief Operating Officer and also on the Ingram Micro, Inc. Board of Directors. He holds a Bachelor of Applied Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of Waterloo in Ontario, Canada. On January 9, 2018, Mr. Murai announced his retirement as President
and Chief Executive Officer. Effective March 1, 2018, he will relinquish this role and become Chairman of the Board of Directors.
Dennis Polk is our Chief Operating Officer and has served in this capacity since July 2006. Mr. Polk is also a Director and has served in this capacity
since February 2012. He previously served as Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Corporate Finance since joining us in February 2002.
Mr. Polk received a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Santa Clara University. Concurrent with the retirement of Mr. Murai on March 1, 2018,
Mr. Polk will assume the role of President and Chief Executive Officer and will remain on the Board of Directors.
Peter Larocque is President, North American Technology Solutions and has served in this capacity since November 2013, having previously served as
President of U.S. Distribution since July 2006, Executive Vice President of Distribution since June 2001, and Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing
from September 1997 until June 2001. Mr. Larocque is responsible for SYNNEX’ North American Technology Solutions business. He received a Bachelor of
Science degree in Economics from the University of Western Ontario, Canada.
Marshall Witt is our Chief Financial Officer and has served in this capacity since April 2013. Prior to joining SYNNEX, Mr. Witt was Senior Vice
President of Finance and Controller with FedEx Freight. During his fifteen year tenure with FedEx Corporation, Mr. Witt held progressive financial and
operational roles. Prior to FedEx Corporation, he held accounting and finance leadership positions including five years with KPMG LLP as an audit manager
for banking and transportation clients. Mr. Witt holds a Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance from Pacific Lutheran University and a Masters in
Accounting from Seattle University and is a Certified Public Accountant.
Christopher Caldwell is Executive Vice President and President of Concentrix Corporation and has served in this capacity since February 2014. He
previously served as President of Concentrix Corporation from June 2012 to February 2014, Senior Vice President and General Manager of Concentrix
Corporation from March 2007 to June 2012, and Senior Vice President, Global Business Development from March 2007 to June 2012. Mr. Caldwell joined
SYNNEX in 2004 as Vice President, Emerging Business through the acquisition of EMJ Data Systems Ltd.
Simon Leung is our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary and has served in this capacity since May 2001. Mr. Leung joined
SYNNEX in November 2000 as Corporate Counsel. Prior to SYNNEX, Mr. Leung was an attorney at the law firm of Paul, Hastings, Janofsky & Walker LLP.
Mr. Leung received a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of California, Davis in International Relations and his Juris Doctor degree from the
University of Minnesota Law School.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock, par value $0.001, is traded on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol “SNX.” The following table sets forth the
range of high and low sales prices for our common stock for each of the periods listed, as reported by the NYSE.
Price Range of
Common Stock
Low

High

Fiscal Year 2017

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$
$
$
$

116.33
101.48
108.23
110.02

$
$
$
$

129.24
121.76
131.35
137.80

$
$
$
$

75.87
77.54
89.09
100.06

$
$
$
$

96.59
102.83
108.03
118.80

Fiscal Year 2016

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

As of January 22, 2018, our common stock was held by 563 stockholders of record. Because many of the shares of our common stock are held by
brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total number of beneficial owners represented by these stockholders of
record.
Stock Price Performance Graph
The stock price performance graph below, which assumes a $100 investment on November 30, 2012, compares our cumulative total stockholder return,
the NYSE Composite Index, S&P Midcap 400 Index, Computer & Peripheral Equipment index and a peer group of our Concentrix segment for the period
beginning November 30, 2012 through November 30, 2017. The Computer & Peripheral Equipment index is based on the Standard Industrial Classification
Code 5045—Wholesale Computer and Computer Peripheral Equipment and Software. The companies selected to form the Concentrix peer group index
include Accenture plc, Convergys Corporation, Genpact Limited, Teleperformance S.A., TeleTech Holdings Inc., Conduent Inc., Transcosmos Inc., and
Globant S.A. The closing price per share of our common stock was $136.20 on November 30, 2017. The comparisons in the table are required by the SEC and
are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of our common stock.
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Fiscal Years Ended
11/30/2012

SYNNEX Corporation
NYSE Composite Index
S&P Midcap 400 Index
Computers & Peripheral Equipment
Concentrix Peer Group

$
$
$
$
$

11/30/2013

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

$
$
$
$
$

11/30/2014

200.36
126.58
132.33
150.37
120.19

$
$
$
$
$

216.81
139.63
148.52
164.43
135.10

11/30/2015

$
$
$
$
$

288.19
136.09
152.86
189.35
172.71

11/30/2016

$
$
$
$
$

360.67
145.74
173.08
229.67
192.75

11/30/2017

$
$
$
$
$

423.86
174.26
205.15
267.05
245.09

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
Information regarding the Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans can be found under Item 12 of this Report.
Dividends
On September 29, 2014, we announced the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend. Since then, dividends have been declared in January, March, June
and September and paid at the end of January, April, July and October. Dividends declared per share by fiscal quarter in 2017 and 2016 were as follows:
Fiscal Years Ended
2017

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$
$
$
$

2016

0.25
0.25
0.25
0.30

$
$
$
$

0.20
0.20
0.20
0.25

On January 9, 2018, we announced a cash dividend of $0.35 per share to stockholders of record as of January 19, 2018, payable on January 31, 2018.
Consequent to the anticipated benefit associated with the TCJA, we increased our quarterly cash dividend from $0.30 per share in the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2017 to $0.35 per share. Henceforth, we will review our dividend strategy on an annual basis in January with our board of directors. Dividends are
subject to continued capital availability, compliance with the covenants and conditions in some of our credit facilities and the declaration by our Board of
Directors in the best interest of our stockholders.
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Purchases of Equity Securities
In June 2014, our Board of Directors authorized a three-year $100 million share repurchase program pursuant to which we may repurchase our
outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. Through the expiration of the program in June
2017, we had purchased 207,498 shares at a total cost of $15.7 million. These share purchases were made on the open market and the shares repurchased by
us are held in treasury for general corporate purposes.
In June 2017, our Board of Directors authorized a three-year $300 million share repurchase program, effective July 1, 2017, pursuant to which we may
repurchase our outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. As of November 30, 2017, we
had not repurchased any shares under the program.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following selected consolidated financial data are qualified by reference to, and should be read together with, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in Item 7 of this Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes
included in Item 8 of this Report. The selected Consolidated Statements of Operations and other data presented below for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015
and the consolidated balance sheet data as of November 30, 2017 and 2016 have been derived from our audited Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere in this Report. The Consolidated Statements of Operations and other data for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 and the Consolidated Balance Sheet data
as of November 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 have been derived from our Consolidated Financial Statements that are not included in this Report. The
Consolidated Statements of Operations data include the operating results from our acquisitions from the closing date of each acquisition. Historical operating
results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future period. Please see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Notes 2 and 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Report for a
discussion of factors, such as business combinations and the adoption of new accounting guidance, that affect the comparability of the following selected
consolidated financial data.
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Statements of Operations Data: (in thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenue

$

Gross profit

17,045,700

$

14,061,837

$

13,338,397

$

13,839,590

$

10,845,164

1,550,940

1,282,965

1,191,791

1,099,004

654,970

Operating income

508,965

379,596

354,552

308,507

240,828

Net income

301,173

235,005

208,607

180,150

152,322

Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation

301,173

234,946

208,525

180,034

152,237

Earnings per share attributable to SYNNEX Corporation:
Basic:

$

7.54

$

5.91

$

5.28

$

4.61

$

4.06

Diluted:

$

7.51

$

5.88

$

5.24

$

4.57

$

3.02

$

1.05

$

0.85

$

0.58

$

0.13

$

—

Cash dividends declared per share

For fiscal year ended November 30, 2013, the numerator for the computation of “Earnings per share attributable to SYNNEX Corporation - Diluted” was
adjusted for dilutive changes in the estimated value of the conversion premium of our convertible debt from April 2013 through the final settlement date in
August 2013. The adjustment to the numerator had the effect of reducing our “Earnings per share attributable to SYNNEX Corporation - Diluted” by $0.97
for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2013.
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As of November 30,
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Balance Sheet Data: (in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents

$

550,688

$

380,717

$

336,072

$

180,143

$

151,622

Working capital

1,698,571

1,518,498

1,731,624

1,178,260

1,142,355

Total assets

7,698,526

5,215,281

4,444,147

4,713,042

3,325,889

805,471

362,889

92,093

716,257

252,523

Long-term borrowings

1,136,089

601,095

638,798

264,246

65,405

Total equity

2,283,695

1,975,798

1,799,897

1,653,985

1,411,641

2017

2016

2014

2013

Borrowings, current

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2015

Other Data: (in thousands)
Depreciation and amortization

$

159,886

$

121,293

$

103,510

$

91,699

$

24,462

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with Selected Consolidated
Financial Data and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this Report.
When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”), the words “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “allows,” “can,” “may,” “designed,”
“will,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These are statements that relate to future periods and include
statements about market trends, our business model and our services, our market strategy, including expansion of our product lines, our infrastructure, our
investment in information technology, or IT, systems, our employee hiring, impact of MiTAC Holdings Corporation, or MiTAC Holdings, ownership interest
in us, our revenue and operating results, our gross margins, our inventory, competition with Synnex Technology International Corp., our future needs for
additional financing, the likely sources for such funding and the impact of such funding, concentration of customers, our international operations, foreign
currency exchange rates, expansion of our operations and related effects, including our Concentrix business, our strategic acquisitions and divestitures of
businesses and assets, including the impact of the Westcon-Comstor Americas business, Tigerspike and Minacs acquisitions on our business, our goodwill
and seasonality, adequacy of our cash resources to meet our capital needs, cash held by our foreign subsidiaries, adequacy of our disclosure controls and
procedures, pricing pressures, competition, impact of economic and industry trends, impact of our accounting policies and recently issued accounting
pronouncements, impact of inventory repurchase obligations and commitments and contingencies, our tax rates and the impact of the TCJA, our share
repurchase and dividend program, and statements regarding our securitization programs and revolving credit lines and our investments in working capital,
personnel and our succession planning, facilities and operations. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those risks discussed herein, as well as the
seasonality of the buying patterns of our customers, concentration of sales to large customers, dependence upon and trends in capital spending budgets in
the IT, and consumer electronics, or CE, industries, fluctuations in general economic conditions and risks set forth under Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”
These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date hereof. We expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or
revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in our expectations with regard thereto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
For an understanding of SYNNEX and the significant factors that influenced the Company’s performance during the past three fiscal years, the
following discussion should be read in conjunction with the description of the business appearing in Item 1 of this Report and the consolidated financial
statements, including the related notes and schedule, and other information appearing in Item 8 of this Report.
Revenue and Cost of Revenue
We derive our Technology Solutions revenue primarily through the distribution of peripherals, IT systems, system components, software,
networking/communications/security equipment and CE products, and the delivery of servers and networking solutions for our design and integration
solutions customers’ data centers. Shipping terms are typically F.O.B. shipping point. In our Concentrix segment, we provide high value business services
and solutions for the customer relationship life cycle. Our customer contracts typically consist of a master services agreement or statement of work, which
contains the
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terms and conditions of each program or service we offer. Our agreements can range from less than one year to over five years and are subject to early
termination by our customers or us for any reason, typically with 30 to 90 days’ notice.
In fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, approximately 27%, 27% and 26% of our consolidated revenue, respectively, was generated from our international
operations, and we expect this trend to continue. As a result, our revenue growth has been impacted, and we expect will continue to be impacted, by
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
The market for IT products and services is generally characterized by declining unit prices and short product life cycles. Our overall business is also
highly competitive on the basis of price. We set our sales price based on the market supply and demand characteristics for each particular product or bundle
of products we distribute and solutions we provide. From time to time, we also participate in the incentive and rebate programs of our OEM suppliers. These
programs are important determinants of the final sales price we charge to our reseller customers. To mitigate the risk of declining prices and obsolescence of
our distribution inventory, our OEM suppliers generally offer us limited price protection and return rights for products that are marked down or discontinued
by them. We carefully manage our inventory to maximize the benefit to us of these supplier provided protections.
A significant portion of our Technology Solutions cost of revenue is the purchase price we pay our OEM suppliers for the products we sell, net of any
incentives, rebates, price protection and purchase discounts received from our OEM suppliers. Cost of products revenue also consists of provisions for
inventory losses and write-downs, freight expenses associated with the receipt in and shipment out of our inventory, and royalties due to OEM vendors. In
addition, cost of revenue includes the cost of material, labor and overhead for our systems design and integration solutions. In our Concentrix segment, cost
of revenue consists primarily of personnel costs related to contract delivery.
Revenue and cost of revenue in our Technology Solutions segment relate to products, and revenue and cost of revenue in our Concentrix segment
relate to services.
Margins
The Technology Solutions industry in which we operate is characterized by low gross profit as a percentage of revenue, or gross margin, and low
income from operations as a percentage of revenue, or operating margin. Our Technology Solutions gross margin has fluctuated annually due to changes in
the mix of products we offer, customers we sell to, incentives and rebates received from our OEM suppliers, competition, seasonality, replacement of lower
margin business, and lower costs associated with increased efficiencies and inventory obsolescence. Should we experience increased competition arising
from industry consolidation or low demand for IT products, our ability to maintain or improve our gross margin may be hindered. Generally, when our
revenue becomes more concentrated on limited products or customers, our Technology Solutions gross margin tends to decrease due to increased pricing
pressure from OEM suppliers or reseller customers. Concentrix gross margins, which are higher than those in our Technology Solutions segment, can be
impacted by the mix of customer contracts, additional lead time for programs to be fully scalable and transition and initial set-up costs. Our operating margin
has also fluctuated in the past, based primarily on our ability to achieve economies of scale, the management of our operating expenses, changes in the
relative mix of our Technology Solutions and Concentrix revenue, and the timing of our acquisitions and investments.
Economic and Industry Trends
Our Technology Solutions revenue is highly dependent on the end-market demand for IT and CE products. This end-market demand is influenced by
many factors including the introduction of new IT and CE products and software by OEMs, replacement cycles for existing IT and CE products, seasonality
and overall economic growth and general business activity. With the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas, seasonality may change given the
incremental OEM partners, services and the countries in which we transact business. A difficult and challenging economic environment may also lead to
consolidation or decline in the IT and CE distribution industry and increased price-based competition. Our Technology Solutions segment also offers system
design and integration solutions, providing purpose-built data servers. Business in our system design and solutions is highly dependent on the demand for
cloud infrastructure and the number of key players in the market. Our Technology Solutions business includes significant operations in the United States,
Canada, Japan, and with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas, Latin America, so we are affected by demand for our products in those regions and the
strengthening or weakening of local currencies relative to the U.S. Dollar.
The customer engagement services industry in which our Concentrix segment operates is competitive. Customers’ performance measures are based on
competitive pricing terms and quality of services. Accordingly, we could be subject to pricing pressure and may experience a decline in our average selling
prices for our services. Our Concentrix business is largely concentrated in the United States, India, the United Kingdom, Canada, the Philippines, Japan, and
China. Accordingly, we would be impacted by economic strength or weakness in these geographies and by the strengthening or weakening of local
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currencies relative to U.S. Dollar. During the three-year period ended November 30, 2017, the economic environment was stable.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The discussions and analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations are based on our Consolidated Financial Statements,
which have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”). The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and
liabilities at the financial statement date, and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, we review and
evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including those that relate to accounts receivable, vendor programs, inventories, goodwill and intangible assets, and
income taxes. Our estimates are based on our historical experience and a variety of other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making our judgment about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available
from other sources. Actual results could differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
We believe the following critical accounting policies involve the more significant judgments, estimates and/or assumptions used in the preparation of
our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Revenue Recognition. Revenue from our Technology Solutions segment is categorized as products revenue in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Revenue from our Concentrix segment is categorized as services revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
For the Technology Solutions segment, we generally recognize revenue on the sale of hardware and software products when they are shipped or
delivered and on services when they are performed, if persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the sales price is fixed or determinable, collection of
resulting accounts receivable is reasonably assured, risk of loss and title have transferred and product returns are reasonably estimable. Binding purchase
orders from customers together with agreement to our terms and conditions of sale by way of an executed agreement or other signed document constitutes
evidence of an arrangement. Where product acceptance provisions exist, assuming all other revenue recognition criterion are met, revenue is recognized upon
the earlier of shipment/delivery for products that have been demonstrated to meet product specifications, customer acceptance or the lapse of acceptance
provisions.
Provisions for sales returns and allowances are estimated based on historical data and are recorded concurrently with the recognition of revenue. These
provisions are reviewed and adjusted periodically by the Company. Revenue is presented net of taxes collected from customers and remitted to government
authorities. Revenue is reduced for early payment discounts and volume incentive rebates offered to customers. We recognize revenue on a net basis on
certain contracts, including service contracts, post-contract software support services and extended warranty contracts, where we are not the primary obligor,
by recognizing the margins earned in revenue with no associated cost of revenue.
For the Concentrix segment, we recognize revenue from services contracts when evidence of an arrangement exists, services are delivered, fees are fixed
or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Service contracts may be based on a fixed price or on a fixed unit-price per transaction or other
objective measure of output. Revenue on fixed price contracts is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract as services are provided.
Revenue on unit-price transactions is recognized using an objective measure of output including staffing hours or the number of transactions processed by
service agents. Customer contract terms can range from less than one year to more than five years. Revenue is reported net of any revenue-based taxes
assessed by governmental authorities that are imposed on and concurrent with specific revenue-producing transactions.
Cost of Revenue. Cost of products revenue represents cost from our Technology Solutions segment and cost of services revenue represents cost from our
Concentrix segment.
For the Technology Solutions segment, cost of revenue includes the product price paid to OEM suppliers, net of any incentives, rebates and purchase
discounts received from the OEM suppliers. Cost of revenue also consists of provisions for inventory losses and write-downs, shipping and handling costs
and royalties due to OEM vendors. In addition, cost of revenue includes the cost of material, labor and overhead and warranty for design and integration
activities.
For the Concentrix segment, recurring direct operating costs for services are recognized as incurred. Cost of services revenue consists primarily of
personnel costs. Where a contract requires an up-front investment, which typically includes transition and set-up costs related to systems and processes, these
amounts are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected period of benefit, not to exceed the fixed term of the contract. We perform
periodic reviews to assess the recoverability of deferred contract transition and setup costs. This review is done by comparing the estimated minimum
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remaining undiscounted cash flows of a contract to the unamortized contract costs. If such minimum undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the
unamortized costs, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the estimated fair value and the carrying value. If a cash flow deficiency
remains after reducing the carrying amount of the deferred costs, we evaluate any remaining long-lived assets related to that contract for impairment.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We provide allowances for doubtful accounts on our accounts receivable for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of our customers to make payments for outstanding balances. In estimating the required allowance, we take into consideration the overall quality
and aging of the accounts receivable, credit evaluations of customers’ financial condition and existence of credit insurance. We also evaluate the
collectability of accounts receivable based on specific customer circumstances, current economic trends, historical experience with collections and the value
and adequacy of collateral received from customers.
OEM Supplier Programs. We receive funds from OEM suppliers for volume promotion programs, price protection and product rebates and record them
as adjustments to cost of products revenue and/or the carrying value of inventories, as appropriate. Where there is a binding agreement, we track vendor
promotional programs for volume discounts on a program-by-program basis and record them as a reduction to cost of revenue based on a systematic and
rational allocation. We monitor the balances of vendor receivables on a quarterly basis and adjust the balances due for differences between expected and
actual sales volume. Vendor receivables are generally collected through reductions authorized by the vendor to accounts payable. Funds received for specific
marketing and infrastructure reimbursements, net of related costs, are recorded as adjustments to “Selling, general and administrative expenses,” and any
excess reimbursement amount is recorded as an adjustment to cost of products revenue.
Inventories. Our inventory levels are based on our projections of future demand and market conditions. Any sudden decline in demand and/or rapid
product improvements and technological changes can cause us to have excess and/or obsolete inventories. On an ongoing basis, we review for obsolete or
unmarketable inventories and write-down our inventories to their estimated market value based upon our forecasts of future demand and market conditions.
These write-downs are reflected in our cost of products revenue. If actual market conditions are less favorable than our forecasts, additional inventory writedowns may be required. Our estimates are influenced by the following considerations: sudden decline in demand due to economic downturns, rapid product
improvements and technological changes, our ability to return to OEM suppliers a certain percentage of our purchases, and protection from loss in value of
inventory under our OEM supplier agreements.
Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in an acquisition. We assess
potential impairment of our goodwill when there is evidence that recent events or changes in circumstances have made recovery of an asset’s carrying value
unlikely. We also assess potential impairment of our goodwill on an annual basis during our fourth quarter, regardless if there is evidence or suspicion of
impairment. The amount of an impairment loss would be recognized as the excess of the reporting unit’s carrying value over its fair value.
Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level by first performing a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not
that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value. The factors that are considered in the qualitative analysis include macroeconomic
conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors such as increases in product cost, labor, or other costs that would have a negative effect on
earnings and cash flows, and other relevant entity-specific events and information.
If the reporting unit does not pass the qualitative assessment, then the reporting unit’s carrying value is compared to its fair value. The fair values of the
reporting units are estimated using market and discounted cash flow approaches. The assumptions used in the market approach are based on the value of a
business through an analysis of multiples of guideline companies and recent sales or offerings of a comparable entity. The assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow approach are based on historical and forecasted revenue, operating costs, future economic conditions, and other relevant factors.
Goodwill is considered impaired if the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value. The annual goodwill impairment analysis did not result in
an impairment charge for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015.
Long-lived assets. We review the recoverability of our long-lived assets, such as intangible assets, property and equipment and certain other assets,
when events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate the carrying value of the asset group may not be recoverable. The assessment of possible
impairment is based on our ability to recover the carrying value of the asset or asset group from the expected future pre-tax cash flows, undiscounted and
without interest charges, of the related operations. If these cash flows are less than the carrying value of such assets, an impairment loss is recognized for the
difference between estimated fair value and carrying value.
Determining the fair value of a reporting unit, intangible asset or other long-lived asset is judgmental and involves the use of significant estimates and
assumptions. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions that we believe are reasonable, but are uncertain and subject to changes in market conditions.
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Income Taxes. We estimate our income taxes in each of the tax jurisdictions in which we operate. Our current tax expense is estimated after adjusting for
differences resulting from the different treatment of certain items and foreign tax credits. These differences may result in deferred tax assets and liabilities,
which are included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets, which include net operating loss carry forwards
and temporary differences that are expected to be deductible in future years, will be recoverable from future taxable income or other tax planning strategies. If
recovery is not likely, we provide a valuation allowance based on our estimates of future taxable income in the various tax jurisdictions, and the amount of
deferred taxes in excess of amounts that are ultimately considered more likely than not realizable. The provision for current and deferred taxes involves
evaluations and judgments of uncertainties in the interpretation of complex tax regulations by various tax authorities. Actual results could differ from our
estimates.
We recognize tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if that tax position is more likely than not to be sustained on examination by the taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. We measure the tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such positions based on the
largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits in the provisions for income taxes.
Acquisitions
We continually seek to augment organic growth in both our business segments with strategic acquisitions of businesses and assets that complement and
expand our existing capabilities. We also divest businesses that we deem no longer strategic to our ongoing operations. In our Technology Solutions
business we seek to acquire new OEM relationships, enhance our supply chain and integration capabilities, the services we provide to our customers and
OEM suppliers, and expand our geographic footprint. In our Concentrix segment we seek to further enhance our capabilities and domain expertise in our key
verticals, and further expand into higher value service offerings. We are also strategically focused on further increasing our scale to support our customers.
Acquisitions during fiscal year 2017
On September 1, 2017, we acquired the North America and Latin America distribution businesses, or the Westcon-Comstor Americas business, of
Datatec Limited ("Datatec"), for a cash purchase price of $633.6 million. The purchase price includes an estimated $33.1 million related to a potential earnout
amount of up to $200.0 million, payable in cash if certain gross profit targets are achieved by the Westcon-Comstor Americas business for the twelve-month
period ending February 28, 2018. The acquisition is related to our Technology Solutions segment and strengthens our line card in the security, UCC and
networking markets, enhances our North American position by adding complementary OEM vendors and reseller customers and expands our footprint into
Latin America. The Westcon-Comstor Americas business contributed approximately $634.8 million in revenue during fiscal year 2017.
We also made a 10% minority investment in Datatec’s EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) and APAC (Asia Pacific) distribution businesses for
$30.0 million and have an option to purchase up to an additional 10% equity interest in each of the EMEA and APAC distribution businesses by August 31,
2018, for an additional cash consideration of up to $30.0 million.
On July 31, 2017, we acquired Tigerspike, a digital products company specializing in strategy, experience design, development and systems
integration, for a preliminary purchase price of $68.5 million in cash subject to post-closing adjustments, including $10.0 million payable upon finalization
of the post-closing adjustments. The acquisition has been integrated into our Concentrix segment and is expected to enhance Concentrix' digital and
mobility competencies by providing improved business intelligence and performance for its clients through enabling technologies that are designed to create
effortless, personalized end-user engagements. The preliminary purchase price allocation consisted of net tangible liabilities of $0.7 million, goodwill of
$43.7 million and intangible assets of $25.4 million.
Acquisitions during fiscal year 2016
On August 1, 2016, we acquired the Minacs group of companies (“Minacs”), which provide integrated business process outsourcing services, for a
purchase price of $429.1 million in cash. The purchase price allocation consisted of $45.5 million of net tangible assets, $193.4 million of intangible assets
and $190.2 million of goodwill.
The acquisition has been integrated into the Concentrix segment. We believe the acquisition provides greater scale and strengthens our position as a
top global provider of customer engagement services, enhances domain expertise in Concentrix’s automotive industry vertical and accelerates Marketing
Optimization and Internet of Things solutions with Minacs’ proprietary technology.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth, for the indicated periods, data as percentages of total revenue:
Statements of Operations Data:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

Products revenue

2016

88.41 %
11.59

Services revenue
Total revenue
Cost of products revenue
Cost of services revenue
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income
Interest expense and finance charges, net
Other income (expense), net
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation

2015

88.83 %
11.17

89.49 %
10.51

100.00
(83.67)
(7.23)

100.00
(84.03)
(6.85)

100.00
(84.54)
(6.52)

9.10
(6.11)

9.12
(6.42)

8.94
(6.28)

2.99
(0.27)
0.01

2.70
(0.21)
0.04

2.66
(0.20)
(0.01)

2.73
(0.96)

2.53
(0.86)

2.45
(0.89)

1.77
(0.00 )

1.67
(0.00 )

1.56
(0.00 )

1.77

1.67

1.56

Certain non-GAAP financial information
In addition to disclosing financial results that are determined in accordance with GAAP, we also disclose certain non-GAAP financial information,
including:
•

Revenue in constant currency, which is revenue adjusted for the translation effect of foreign currencies so that certain financial results can be
viewed without the impact of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, thereby facilitating period-to-period comparisons of our business
performance. Revenue in constant currency is calculated by translating the revenue of fiscal years 2017 and 2016 in billing currency using their
comparable prior year’s currency conversion rate. Generally, when the dollar either strengthens or weakens against other currencies, the growth at
constant currency rates or adjusting for currency will be higher or lower than growth reported at actual exchange rates.

•

Non-GAAP operating income, which is operating income as adjusted to exclude acquisition-related and integration expenses, restructuring costs
and amortization of intangible assets.

•

Non-GAAP operating margin, which is non-GAAP operating income (as defined above) divided by revenue.

•

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or adjusted EBITDA, which is non-GAAP operating income as defined
above after excluding depreciation.

•

Non-GAAP diluted earnings per common share (“EPS”), which is diluted EPS excluding the per share, tax effected impact of (i) acquisition-related
and integration expenses, (ii) restructuring costs, and (iii) amortization of intangible assets.

We believe that providing this additional information is useful to the reader to better assess and understand our base operating performance, especially
when comparing results with previous periods and for planning and forecasting in future periods, primarily because management typically monitors the
business adjusted for these items in addition to GAAP results. Management also uses these non-GAAP measures to establish operational goals and, in some
cases, for measuring performance for compensation purposes. However, these non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for the comparable GAAP measures. Analysis of our non-GAAP financial measures should be used as a complement to, and in conjunction with,
data presented in accordance with GAAP. Additionally, because these non-GAAP measures are not calculated in accordance with GAAP, they may not
necessarily be comparable to similarly titled measures employed by other companies.
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Non-GAAP Financial Information:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Consolidated
Revenue
Foreign currency translation
Revenue in constant currency

$

17,045,700
(4,609)

$

14,061,837
37,268

$

13,338,397
—

$

17,041,091

$

14,099,105

$

13,338,397

Operating income
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Restructuring costs
Amortization of intangibles

$

508,965
4,781
—
79,181

$

379,596
10,393
4,255
55,490

$

354,552
10,109
—
54,756

Non-GAAP operating income
Depreciation

$

592,927
80,705

$

449,734
65,803

$

419,417
48,754

Adjusted EBITDA

$

673,632

$

515,537

$

468,171

Operating margin
Non-GAAP operating margin

2.99%
3.48%

Technology Solutions
Revenue
Foreign currency translation
Revenue in constant currency

2.70%
3.20%

2.66%
3.14%

$

15,071,185
(6,588)

$

12,490,718
12,780

$

11,936,660
—

$

15,064,597

$

12,503,498

$

11,936,660

Operating income
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Amortization of intangibles

$

394,320
3,724
14,929

$

315,485
—
2,657

$

302,950
—
2,630

Non-GAAP operating income
Depreciation

$

412,973
15,111

$

318,142
13,935

$

305,580
12,475

Adjusted EBITDA

$

428,084

$

332,077

$

318,055

$

1,990,180
1,979

$

1,587,736
24,488

$

1,416,670
—

$

1,992,159

$

1,612,224

$

1,416,670

$

114,623
1,057
—
64,252

$

63,877
10,393
4,255
52,833

$

51,127
10,109
—
52,126

$

179,932
65,617

$

131,358
52,102

$

113,362
36,755

$

245,549

$

183,460

$

150,117

Concentrix
Revenue
Foreign currency translation
Revenue in constant currency
Operating income
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Restructuring costs
Amortization of intangibles
Non-GAAP operating income
Depreciation
Adjusted EBITDA
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Non-GAAP Financial Information:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

Diluted EPS
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Restructuring costs
Amortization of intangibles
Income taxes related to the above (1)
Non-GAAP diluted EPS(2)

2016

2015

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
7.51 $
5.88 $
5.24
0.12
0.26
0.25
—
0.11
—
1.97
1.39
1.38
(0.74)
(0.60)
(0.59)

$

$

8.86

$

7.04

$

6.28

__________________________
(1) The tax effect of the non-GAAP adjustments was calculated using the applicable effective tax rate during the respective years.
(2) The sum of the components of Non-GAAP diluted EPS may not agree to totals, as presented, due to rounding.

Fiscal Years Ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015
Revenue
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

Percent Change
2015

2017 to 2016

2016 to 2015

(in thousands)

Revenue
Technology Solutions revenue
Concentrix revenue
Inter-segment elimination

$

17,045,700
15,071,185
1,990,180
(15,665)

$

14,061,837
12,490,718
1,587,736
(16,617)

$

13,338,397
11,936,660
1,416,670
(14,933)

21.2%
20.7%
25.3%

5.4%
4.6%
12.1%

In our Technology Solutions segment, we distribute in excess of 30,000 technology products (as measured by active SKUs) from more than 300 IT, CE
and OEM suppliers to more than 25,000 resellers. The prices of our products are highly dependent on the volumes purchased within a product category. The
products we sell from one period to the next are often not comparable because of rapid changes in product models and features. We also design and integrate
data center servers. The revenue generated in our Concentrix segment relates to business services focused on process optimization, customer engagement
strategy and back office automation. Inter-segment elimination represents services and transactions generated between our reportable segments that are
eliminated upon consolidation. Substantially all of the inter-segment revenue represents services provided by the Concentrix segment to the Technology
Solutions segment.
Revenue in our Technology Solutions segment increased in fiscal year 2017 compared to fiscal year 2016 primarily due to strong demand for our
systems design and integration solutions, the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas on September 1, 2017, adding approximately $634.8 million in
revenue, and higher sales across a majority of our Technology Solution product categories. On a constant currency basis, revenue in our Technology
Solutions segment increased by 20.6% during fiscal year 2017, compared to fiscal year 2016.
Sales of all Technology Solutions product categories, with the exception of IT Systems, increased in fiscal year 2017 as compared to fiscal year 2016.
Networking equipment increased by 61% due to the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas in September 2017. System Components and Integration
Solutions revenue increased by 50% in fiscal year 2017 as compared to fiscal year 2016 due to strong demand for our system design and integration
solutions.
Concentrix segment revenue increased 25.3% in fiscal year 2017, compared to fiscal year 2016, primarily due to the acquisition of Minacs in August
2016, strong volume growth and expansion of services with automotive, consumer electronics and retail & ecommerce customers. On a constant currency
basis, revenue in our Concentrix segment increased by 25.5% during fiscal year 2017, compared to fiscal year 2016.
Revenue in our Technology Solutions segment increased in fiscal year 2016 from fiscal year 2015 mainly due to strong demand for our system design
and integration solutions, partially offset by lower sales in Japan. Revenue in fiscal year 2016 was unfavorably impacted by foreign currency translation,
primarily from the weakening of the Canadian Dollar, partially offset by the strengthening of the Japanese Yen. On a constant currency basis, revenue in our
Technology Solutions segment increased by 4.7% during fiscal year 2016, compared to fiscal year 2015.
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By product category, our sales of system components and integration solutions and software in fiscal year 2016 increased 16% and 4%, respectively,
while sales of peripherals decreased 4%. Sales of IT systems and networking equipment in fiscal year 2016 were consistent with fiscal year 2015. The increase
in the sale of system components and integration solutions was due to strong demand for our system design and integration solutions. The increase in the sale
of software was primarily due to higher sales from IT system software and software related services. The decrease in the sale of peripherals was due to lower
sales of audio products and printers.
The increase in revenue in our Concentrix segment in fiscal year 2016, compared to fiscal year 2015, was primarily due to the acquisition of Minacs in
August 2016, increased volume and the expansion of services to existing customers and new customer contract signings. This increase was partially offset by
the planned lapsing of a government contract and unfavorable foreign currency translation, primarily due to the weakening of the British Pound, Indian
Rupee and Chinese Yuan, partially offset by the strengthening of the Japanese Yen. On a constant currency basis, revenue in our Concentrix segment
increased by 13.8% during fiscal year 2016, compared to fiscal year 2015.
Gross Profit
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

Percent Change
2015

2017 to 2016

2016 to 2015

(in thousands)

Gross profit
Gross margin
Technology Solutions gross profit
Technology Solutions gross margin
Concentrix gross profit
Concentrix gross margin
Inter-segment elimination

$

1,550,940
$
9.10%
809,083
5.37%
749,154
37.64%
(7,297)

1,282,965
$
9.12%
675,239
5.41%
615,447
38.76%
(7,721)

1,191,791
8.94%
659,830
5.53%
538,314
38.00%
(6,353)

20.9%

7.7%

19.8%

2.3%

21.7%

14.3%

Our Technology Solutions gross margin is affected by a variety of factors, including competition, selling prices, mix of products and services, product
costs along with rebate and discount programs from our suppliers, reserves, freight costs, inventory losses, acquisition of business units and fluctuations in
revenue. Concentrix margins, which are higher than those in our Technology Solutions segment, can be impacted by customer mix, pricing, additional lead
time for programs to be fully scalable, and transition and initial set-up costs.
In fiscal year 2017, our gross profit increased due to an increase in revenue in both the Technology Solutions and Concentrix segments, as compared to
fiscal year 2016. Consolidated gross margin decreased marginally due to the higher mix of Technology Solutions revenue as described earlier.
Our Technology Solutions gross profit increased in fiscal year 2017 as compared to fiscal year 2016 primarily due to our acquisition of WestconComstor Americas on September 1, 2017, continued demand for our system design and integration solutions and broad-based growth in the remaining
Technology Solutions product line categories. Gross margin in our Technology Solutions segment decreased slightly in fiscal year 2017 compared to the
prior year as a result of product and customer mix, partially offset by increased gross margin from Westcon-Comstor.
Our Concentrix gross profit increased in fiscal year 2017 as compared to fiscal year 2016, primarily due to the full year impact of the acquisition of
Minacs in August 2016 and the improved profitability of certain of our automotive and CE customers. Concentrix gross margin decreased in fiscal year 2017
as compared to fiscal year 2016 primarily due to customer mix, partially offset by the higher margins associated with certain automotive and CE customers.
Our Technology Solutions gross profit increased in fiscal year 2016 as compared to fiscal year 2015 primarily due to strong demand for our system
design and integration solutions. In addition, profit from our specialty services and commercial products increased. Gross margin in our Technology
Solutions segment decreased slightly in fiscal year 2016 compared to the prior year as a result of product mix and foreign currency exchange benefits
associated with our system design and integration solutions received in fiscal year 2015.
Our Concentrix gross profit in fiscal year 2016 increased as compared to fiscal year 2015, primarily due to the acquisition of Minacs and the improved
performance from one previously loss-making contract. This contract generated profit of $4.4 million in fiscal year 2016, but incurred losses of $17.8 million
in the prior year. Concentrix gross margin benefited from the profitability from the previously loss-making contract mentioned above and the lapsing of one
government contract that had lower than average gross margin. This benefit was partially offset by the mix of customer sales.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

Percent Change
2015

2017 to 2016

2016 to 2015

(in thousands)

Selling, general and administrative expenses
$
Percentage of revenue
Technology Solutions selling, general and
administrative expenses
Technology Solutions percentage of revenue
Concentrix selling, general and administrative expenses
Concentrix percentage of revenue
Inter-segment elimination

1,041,975
$
6.11%
414,763
2.75%
634,530
31.88%
(7,318)

903,369
$
6.42%

837,239
6.28%

15.3%

7.9%

359,754
2.88%
551,570
34.74%
(7,955)

356,880
2.99%
487,187
34.39%
(6,828)

15.3%

0.8%

15.0%

13.2%

Our selling, general and administrative expenses primarily consist of personnel costs such as salaries, commissions, bonuses, share-based compensation
and temporary personnel costs. Selling, general and administrative expenses also include cost of warehouse, delivery centers and other non-integration
facilities, utility expenses, legal and professional fees, depreciation on our capital equipment, bad debt expense, amortization of our intangible assets, and
marketing expenses, offset in part by reimbursements from our OEM suppliers.
The increase in our selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal year 2017, compared to fiscal year 2016, was primarily due to the acquisitions
of Minacs in August 2016 and Westcon-Comstor Americas in September 2017, and investments made in our system design and integration solutions to
improve our capabilities and expand our footprint. As a percentage of revenue, both segments generated operational efficiencies which more than offset
investments made in expansion of services, capabilities and resources. We incurred $4.8 million in acquisition-related and integration expenses in fiscal year
2017 compared to $10.4 million in fiscal year 2016. Amortization of intangible assets included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” was $77.5
million in fiscal year 2017, compared to $54.3 million in fiscal year 2016, increasing primarily due to the impact of the Westcon-Comstor Americas
acquisition and the full year impact of the Minacs acquisition in August 2016.
The increase in our selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal year 2016, compared to fiscal year 2015, was primarily due to the acquisition
of Minacs and a $17.0 million increase in depreciation primarily to support growth in our Concentrix segment. In addition, we incurred $4.3 million of
restructuring costs primarily related to lease termination and employee related costs for closed business activities in three Concentrix delivery centers in
North America during fiscal year 2016. This increase was partially offset by the favorable impact of foreign currency translation, primarily from the
weakening of the Indian Rupee, British Pound, Philippine Peso and Canadian Dollar, benefitted by a strengthening of the Japanese Yen. We incurred $10.4
million acquisition-related and integration expenses in fiscal year 2016 compared to $10.4 million in fiscal year 2015. Amortization of intangible assets
included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” was $54.3 million in fiscal year 2016, compared to $53.6 million in fiscal year 2015.
Operating Income
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

Percent Change
2015

2017 to 2016

2016 to 2015

(in thousands)

Operating income
Operating margin
Technology Solutions operating income
Technology Solutions operating margin
Concentrix operating income
Concentrix operating margin
Inter-segment elimination

$

508,965
$
2.99%
394,320
2.62%
114,623
5.76%
22

379,596
2.70%
315,485
2.53%
63,877
4.02%
234

$

354,552
2.66%
302,950
2.54%
51,127
3.61%
475

34.1%

7.1%

25.0%

4.1%

79.4%

24.9%

Operating income in our Technology Solutions segment in fiscal year 2017 increased compared to the prior year primarily due to higher revenue from
our system design and integration solutions, broad-based profitable growth and a return to
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profitability in Japan. Technology Solutions segment operating margin slightly improved from the prior year due to overall market demand for our services
and our ability to drive operational efficiencies. This margin increase was partially offset by intangible amortization associated with the acquisition of
Westcon-Comstor Americas on September 1, 2017. Operating income and margin in our Concentrix segment increased in fiscal year 2017 compared to the
prior year primarily due to a balanced mix of profitable revenue growth and operational efficiencies.
Operating income in our Technology Solutions segment in fiscal year 2016 increased compared to the prior year primarily due to higher revenue from
our system design and integration solutions, our specialty services and commercial products, partially offset by lower operating income in Japan. Technology
Solutions segment operating margin was consistent with the prior year.
Operating income and margin in our Concentrix segment increased in fiscal year 2016 compared to the prior year primarily due to the improved profit
and margin from the previously loss-making contract discussed above and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation. We have large delivery
service centers in India and the Philippines, and experienced a weakening in the Indian Rupee and Philippine Peso compared to fiscal year 2015. This foreign
currency translation benefit was partially offset by the weakening of the British Pound. The acquisition of Minacs in August 2016 contributed $3.8 million of
operating income for fiscal year 2016. The increase in operating income was partially offset by the lapsing of one government contract.
Interest Expense and Finance Charges, Net
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

Percent Change
2015

2017 to 2016

2016 to 2015

(in thousands)

Interest expense and finance charges, net
Percentage of revenue

$

45,357
$
0.27%

28,993
$
0.21%

26,296
0.20%

56.4%

10.3%

Amounts recorded in interest expense and finance charges, net, consist primarily of interest expense paid on our lines of credit and term loans, fees
associated with third party accounts receivable flooring arrangements and the sale or pledge of accounts receivable through our securitization facility, offset
by income earned on our cash investments.
The increase in our interest expense and finance charges, net in fiscal year 2017, compared to fiscal year 2016, was due to higher interest expense as a
result of additional borrowings to fund the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition, and support the continued growth in the other businesses within the
Technology Solutions segment. Our borrowings are primarily at variable rates and our interest expense has increased with the increase in benchmark interest
rates.
The increase in our interest expense and finance charges, net in fiscal year 2016, compared to fiscal year 2015, was due to additional draws against our
lines of credit in fiscal year 2016 to fund the Minacs acquisition and to support our growth, and the impact of forward starting interest rate swaps related to
our term loan in the United States. In May 2015, we borrowed an additional $411.3 million under an increased term loan commitment in the United States
and paid down our United States securitization arrangement and revolving line of credit to secure higher credit availability. The term loan carries a higher
rate of interest than our revolving lines of credit and our accounts receivable securitization arrangement.
Other Income (expense), Net
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

Percent Change
2015

2017 to 2016

2016 to 2015

(in thousands)

Other income (expense), net
Percentage of revenue

$

1,123
$
0.01%

5,461
0.04%

$

(1,061)
(0.01)%

79.4%

614.7%

Amounts recorded as other income (expense), net include foreign currency transaction gains and losses, investment gains and losses and other nonoperating gains and losses.
The decrease in other income (expense), net in fiscal year 2017, compared to fiscal year 2016, was primarily due to a benefit of $5.0 million received in
the prior fiscal year from class-action legal settlements in our Technology Solutions segment.
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The increase in other income (expense), net in fiscal year 2016, compared to fiscal year 2015, was primarily due to a $5.0 million benefit received from
class-action legal settlements in our Technology Solutions segment.
Provision for Income Taxes
Income taxes consist of our current and deferred tax expense resulting from our income earned in domestic and foreign jurisdictions.
Our effective tax rate in fiscal year 2017 was 35.2%, compared to 34.0% and 36.2% in fiscal years 2016 and 2015, respectively. The differences in
effective tax rates was primarily due to the mix of taxable income in different geographic regions and, to a lesser extent, the reversal of certain tax reserves as
a result of the expiration of the statute of limitations in certain tax jurisdiction.
Further information on the treatment of undistributed foreign earnings, a reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to our effective tax rate,
and the impact of the TCJA on our effective tax rate in fiscal year 2018 can be found in Notes 16 and 18 of the Consolidated Financial Statements included
in Part II, Item 8 of this Report.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Conversion Cycle
Three Months Ended
November 30, 2017

November 30, 2016

November 30, 2015

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Days sales outstanding
Revenue (products and services)
Accounts receivable, including receivable from related parties

Days sales outstanding
Days inventory outstanding
Cost of revenue (products and services)
Inventories

Days inventory outstanding
Days payable outstanding
Cost of revenue (products and services)
Accounts payable, including payable to related parties

Days payable outstanding
Cash conversion cycle

(a) $
(b)
(c) = (b)/((a)/the
number of days
during the period)

5,311,877
2,846,448

(d) $
(e)
(f) = (e)/((d)/the
number of days
during the period)

4,849,909
2,162,626

(g) $
(h)
(i) = (h)/((g)/the
number of days
during the period)

4,849,909
2,643,608

(j) = (c)+(f)-(i)

$

49

3,886,902
1,756,596

$

41

$

41

3,508,116
1,741,734

45

$

45

$

3,508,116
1,713,834

3,549,617
1,759,605

3,236,881
1,328,967

37

$

3,236,881
1,452,855

50

44

41

40

42

41

Cash Flows
Our Technology Solutions business is working capital intensive. Our working capital needs are primarily to finance accounts receivable and inventory.
We rely heavily on term loans, accounts receivable arrangements, our securitization
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programs and our revolver programs for our working capital needs. We have financed our growth and cash needs to date primarily through cash generated
from operations and financing activities. As a general rule, when sales volumes are increasing, our net investment in working capital dollars typically
increases, which generally results in decreased cash flow generated from operating activities. Conversely, when sales volume decreases, our net investment in
working capital dollars typically decreases, which generally results in increases in cash flows generated from operating activities. Our cash conversion cycle
was 40 days, 42 days and 41 days at the end of the fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. We calculate cash conversion cycle as days of the last
fiscal quarter’s sales outstanding in accounts receivable plus days of supply on hand in inventory, less days of the last fiscal quarter’s purchases outstanding
in accounts payable.
To increase our market share and better serve our customers, we may further expand our operations through investments or acquisitions. We expect that
such expansion would require an initial investment in working capital, personnel, facilities and operations. These investments or acquisitions would likely
be funded primarily by our existing cash and cash equivalents, additional borrowings, or issuing common stock.
Net cash provided by operating activities was $176.8 million in fiscal year 2017, primarily generated from our net income of $301.2 million,
adjustments for non-cash items of $156.1 million, and an increase in accounts payable of $342.0 million, partially offset by an increase in accounts
receivable of $478.3 million, and an increase in inventories of $243.3 million. The increase in both accounts payable and inventories was primarily due to
higher purchases as a result of strong demand for our system design and integration solutions and distribution products. The increase in accounts receivable
was primarily due to the impact of growth in our Technology Solutions business and the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition with the longer collection
cycle in the Latin American countries. The adjustments for non-cash items primarily consist of $159.9 million of depreciation and amortization expense.
Net cash provided by operating activities was $324.7 million in fiscal year 2016, primarily generated from our net income of $235.0 million,
adjustments for non-cash items of $119.4 million, an increase in accounts payable of $265.6 million and a decrease of accounts receivable of $95.0 million,
partially offset by an increase in inventory of $410.2 million. The increases in both accounts payable and inventory were primarily due to higher purchases as
a result of strong demand for our system design and integration solutions. The decrease in accounts receivable was primarily due to an improved collection
cycle. The adjustments for non-cash items primarily consist of $121.3 million of depreciation and amortization expense.
Net cash provided by operating activities was $641.3 million in fiscal year 2015, primarily generated from our net income of $208.6 million,
adjustments for non-cash items of $120.4 million and a decrease in accounts receivable of $291.2 million. The adjustments for non-cash items primarily
consist of $103.5 million of depreciation and amortization expense.
Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal year 2017 was $654.3 million, primarily due to payments of $526.7 million for the acquisition of the
Westcon-Comstor Americas and Tigerspike businesses, $97.5 million invested in capital expenditures primarily to support growth in our Concentrix segment
and $30.0 million paid to acquire a 10% interest in each of Datatec's Westcon-Comstor EMEA and APAC distribution businesses.
Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal year 2016 was $531.9 million primarily due to payments of $415.4 million for the acquisition of Minacs
and $123.2 million invested in capital expenditures primarily to support growth in our Concentrix segment.
Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal year 2015 was $59.4 million, primarily due to $100.1 million invested in capital expenditures to support
our growth as a result of our acquisition of the Customer Relationship Management business of International Business Machines Corporation ("IBM") in
fiscal year 2014 and higher organic business volumes. These outflows were partially offset by cash receipts of $37.3 million from IBM towards working
capital and other post-closing adjustments related to the acquisition, net of holdback payments to IBM.
Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal year 2017 was $638.7 million, consisting primarily of proceeds of $679.4 million from borrowings,
net of repayments and debt discount and issuance costs to fund the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas and Tigerspike and to support growth in our
Technology Solutions segment. The cash inflow was partially offset by dividend payments of $41.8 million. During the year we amended our U.S. credit
facility to increase the term loan to $1,200.0 million and the commitment under our U.S. revolving credit facility to $600.0 million.
Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal year 2016 was $180.2 million, consisting primarily of proceeds of $217.8 million from borrowings,
net of repayments, to fund the acquisition of Minacs and to support growth in both our segments. The cash inflow was partially offset by dividend payments
of $33.7 million.
Net cash used in financing activities in fiscal year 2015 was $355.1 million, consisting primarily of $245.2 million of repayments and debt discount
and issuance costs under our borrowing arrangements, net of receipts, a decrease in our book
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overdraft of $82.2 million and dividend payments of $22.6 million. During fiscal year 2015, we amended our U.S. credit facility to increase the term loan to
$625.0 million and paid in full outstanding borrowings under our U.S. securitization arrangement and our U.S. revolving credit facility.
We believe our current cash balances and credit availability are sufficient to support our operating activities for at least the next twelve months.
Capital Resources
Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $550.7 million and $380.7 million as of November 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Of our total cash and cash
equivalents, the cash held by our foreign subsidiaries was $267.2 million and $200.0 million as of November 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Repatriation
of the cash held by our foreign subsidiaries would be subject to United States federal income taxes. Also, repatriation of some foreign balances is restricted by
local laws. However, we have historically fully utilized and reinvested all foreign cash to fund our foreign operations and expansion. If in the future our
intentions change and we repatriate the cash back to the United States, we will report in our consolidated financial statements the impact of the applicable
taxes depending upon the planned timing and manner of such repatriation. Presently, we believe we have sufficient resources, cash flow and liquidity within
the United States to fund current and expected future working capital, investment and other general corporate funding requirements.
As of November 30, 2017, there were approximately $771.7 million of cumulative undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Repatriation of the
undistributed earnings would be subject to United States federal income taxes, less applicable foreign taxes. Also, repatriation of some foreign balances is
restricted by local laws. We have not provided for U.S. federal income tax or foreign withholding taxes on foreign subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings as
currently we have no plan to repatriate those earnings back to the United States. Further, it is not currently practical to estimate the amount of income tax that
might be payable if any earnings were to be distributed by individual foreign subsidiaries. However, if in the future we repatriate the undistributed earnings
of foreign subsidiaries to the United States in the form of dividend or otherwise, we will include the impact of expected U.S. taxes as well as local taxes and
withholding taxes in the provision for income taxes and also in the deferred taxes or tax payable liabilities depending upon the planned timing and manner
of such repatriation. As discussed in Note 18—Subsequent Events, to the Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item 8 of this Report,
undistributed earnings and profits of foreign subsidiaries will be taxed in fiscal year 2018. The Company is currently analyzing its impact and will provide
additional disclosure in the fiscal 2018 first quarter Form 10-Q.
We believe that our available cash and cash equivalents balances, the cash flows expected to be generated from operations and our existing sources of
liquidity will be sufficient to satisfy our current and planned working capital and investment needs for the next twelve months in all geographies. We also
believe that our longer-term working capital, planned capital expenditures, anticipated stock repurchases, dividend payments and other general corporate
funding requirements will be satisfied through cash flows from operations and, to the extent necessary, from our borrowing facilities and future financial
market activities.
Historically, we have renewed our U.S. accounts receivable securitization program and our U.S. credit facility agreement described below, on, or prior
to, their respective expiration dates. We have no reason to believe that these and other arrangements, including the borrowing arrangements assumed as part
of the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition, will not be renewed as we continue to be in good credit standing with the participating financial institutions.
We have had similar borrowing arrangements with various financial institutions throughout our years as a public company.
On-Balance Sheet Arrangements
In the United States, we have an accounts receivable securitization program, or the U.S. AR Arrangement, to provide additional capital for our
operations. The U.S. AR Arrangement expires on November 1, 2019. One of our subsidiaries, which is the borrower under the U.S. AR Arrangement, can
borrow up to a maximum of $600.0 million based upon eligible trade accounts receivable denominated in United States dollars. The U.S. AR Arrangement
includes an accordion feature to allow requests for an increase in the lenders’ commitment by an additional $120.0 million. The effective borrowing cost
under the U.S. AR Arrangement is a blended rate that includes prevailing dealer commercial paper rates and the daily London Interbank Offered Rate, or
LIBOR, plus a program fee of 0.75% per annum based on the used portion of the commitment, and a facility fee of 0.35% per annum payable on the adjusted
commitment of the lenders. As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, $288.4 million and $262.9 million, respectively, was outstanding under the U.S. AR
Arrangement.
Under the terms of the U.S. AR Arrangement, we and one of our United States subsidiaries sell, on a revolving basis, our receivables (other than certain
specifically excluded receivables) to a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote subsidiary. The borrowings are funded by pledging all of the rights, title and
interest in and to the receivables acquired by our bankruptcy40
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remote subsidiary as security. Any borrowings under the U.S. AR Arrangement are recorded as debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
In May 2017, SYNNEX Canada Limited, or SYNNEX Canada, entered into an accounts receivable securitization program with a bank to transfer
eligible trade accounts receivable, on an ongoing revolving basis, up to CAD65.0 million, or $50.4 million, through May 10, 2020. The program includes an
accordion feature to allow a request to increase the lender's commitment by an additional CAD25.0 million, or $19.4 million. Any borrowings under this
arrangement are recorded as debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The effective borrowing cost is based on the weighted average of the Canadian Dollar
Offered Rate plus a margin of 2.00% per annum and the prevailing lender commercial paper rates. In addition, SYNNEX Canada is obligated to pay a program
fee of 0.75% per annum based on the used portion of the commitment. We will pay a fee of 0.40% per annum for any unused portion of the commitment
below CAD25.0 million and an additional 0.55% per annum if the unused portion exceeds CAD25.0 million. As of November 30, 2017, borrowings
outstanding under this arrangement were $19.4 million.
In connection with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas effective September 1, 2017, we assumed a credit facility of some of the North
American subsidiaries that we acquired (the "Westcon-Comstor N.A. facility"). The facility, maintained with certain banks, comprises a $350.0 million
commitment for a revolving credit facility and matures in January 2021. We may request incremental commitments to increase the principal amount of the
revolving line of credit by $75.0 million. Advances under the Westcon-Comstor N.A. facility are subject to a borrowing base calculation based on eligible
accounts receivable and inventories of these subsidiaries and are secured by the assets of these borrowers and the stock of one of our subsidiaries which is the
direct parent company of the acquired entities. Interest on the Westcon-Comstor N.A. facility is based on LIBOR, plus a margin which could range from
1.25% to 1.75%, or an index rate, plus a margin which could range from 0.25% to 0.75%, at the borrowers option, and a commitment fee of 0.20%. The
borrower subsidiaries under the Westcon-Comstor N.A. facility are required to maintain a minimum fixed charge ratio covenant of 1.0x if excess availability
falls below a certain level. As of November 30, 2017, the balance outstanding under the Westcon-Comstor N.A. facility was $220.2 million.
In addition, in connection with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas, we also assumed the credit facilities of some of the Central and South
American subsidiaries that we acquired (the "Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities"). The Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities, maintained with financial
institutions in the respective countries, are denominated in local currency of such countries or United States Dollars and aggregate to $96.2 million in
revolving commitments. One of the Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities, comprising $40.0 million in revolving commitments, matures in February 2020.
The remaining Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities, aggregating $56.2 million in revolving commitments, mature in one year or less. We guarantee the
obligations under these credit facilities. The terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary from country to country, depending on local market
conditions, and the interest rates range from 5.50% to 15.13%. As of November 30, 2017, the aggregate balance outstanding under the Westcon-Comstor
LATAM facilities was $78.4 million.
In September 2017, our senior secured credit agreement in the United States, or the U.S. Credit Agreement, was amended to comprise of a $600.0 million
revolving credit facility and a $1,200.0 million term loan. As a result of the amendment, we can request incremental commitments to increase the principal
amount of the revolving line of credit or term loan available under the U.S. Credit Agreement by $400.0 million. The U.S. Credit Agreement was extended to
mature in September 2022. The outstanding principal amount of the term loan is repayable in quarterly installments of $15.0 million commencing on
February 28, 2018, with the unpaid balance due in full on the September 2022 maturity date. Interest on borrowings under the U.S. Credit Agreement can be
based on LIBOR or a base rate at our option. Interest on LIBOR loans was amended to range from 1.25% to 2.00% and for base rate loans, to range from
0.25% to 1.00%, provided that LIBOR shall not be less than zero. In addition, the commitment fee for the unused revolving line of credit was modified to
range from 0.175% to 0.30% per annum. The margins above our applicable interest rates and the revolving commitment fee for revolving loans are based on
our consolidated leverage ratio as calculated under the U.S. Credit Agreement. Our obligations under the U.S. Credit Agreement are secured by substantially
all of the parent company’s and its United States domestic subsidiaries’ assets and are guaranteed by certain of our United States domestic subsidiaries.
As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, balances outstanding under the term loan component of the U.S. Credit Agreement were $1,200.0 million and
$585.9 million, respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility as of either November 30, 2017 or 2016.
SYNNEX Infotec, our Japanese subsidiary, has a credit agreement with a group of financial institutions for a maximum commitment of JPY14.0 billion,
or $124.4 million. The credit agreement is comprised of a JPY6.0 billion, or $53.3 million, term loan and a JPY8.0 billion, or $71.1 million, short-term
revolving credit facility. The interest rate for the term loan and revolving credit facility is based on the Tokyo Interbank Offered Rate plus a margin of 0.70%
per annum. The unused line fee on the revolving credit facility is 0.10% per annum. This credit facility expires in November 2018. As of November 30, 2017
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and 2016, the balances outstanding under the term loan component of the facility were $53.3 million and $52.4 million, respectively. Balances outstanding
under the revolving credit facility were $52.4 million and $28.8 million, respectively, as of November 30, 2017 and 2016. The term loan can be repaid at any
time prior to the expiration date without penalty. We have guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX Infotec under this facility.
Our Indian subsidiaries have credit facilities with a financial institution to borrow up to an aggregate amount of $22.0 million. The interest rate under
the credit facilities is the higher of the bank's minimum lending rate or LIBOR plus a margin of 0.9% per annum. The credit facilities can be terminated at any
time by our Indian subsidiaries or the financial institution. We guarantee the obligations under these credit facilities. As of both November 30, 2017 and
2016, borrowings outstanding under these credit facilities were $12.0 million.
In May 2017, SYNNEX Canada entered into an uncommitted revolving line of credit with a bank under which it can borrow up to CAD35.0 million, or
$27.1 million. Borrowings under the facility are secured by eligible inventory and bear interest at a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.50% to 2.25%
depending on the base rate used. The base rate could be a Banker's Acceptance Rate, a Canadian Prime Rate, LIBOR or US Base Rate. As of November 30,
2017, there were no borrowings outstanding under this credit facility.
We also maintain other local currency denominated lines of credit and accounts receivable factoring arrangements with financial institutions at certain
locations outside the United States aggregating commitments of $30.6 million. Interest rates and other terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary
from country to country, depending on local market conditions. Borrowings under these facilities are guaranteed by us or secured by eligible inventory or
accounts receivable. As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, borrowings outstanding under these facilities were $15.2 million and $17.4 million, respectively.
The maximum commitment amounts for local currency credit facilities have been translated into United States Dollars at November 30, 2017 exchange
rates.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have financing programs in the United States and Japan under which trade accounts receivable of certain customers may be sold to financial
institutions. Available capacity under these programs is dependent upon the level of our trade accounts receivable eligible to be sold into these programs and
the financial institutions’ willingness to purchase such receivables. At November 30, 2017 and 2016, we had a total of $52.1 million and $65.4 million,
respectively, of trade accounts receivable sold to and held by the financial institutions under these programs.
Covenant Compliance
Our credit facilities have a number of covenants and restrictions that, among other things, require us to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy
certain financial condition tests. They also limit our ability to incur additional debt, make intercompany loans, pay dividends and make other types of
distributions, make certain acquisitions, repurchase our stock, create liens, cancel debt owed to us, enter into agreements with affiliates, modify the nature of
our business, enter into sale-leaseback transactions, make certain investments, enter into new real estate leases, transfer and sell assets, cancel or terminate any
material contracts and merge or consolidate. As of November 30, 2017, we were in compliance with all material covenants for the above arrangements.
Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations consist of future payments due under our loans (already recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet) and operating lease
arrangements. The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at November 30, 2017:
Payments Due by Period
Less than
1 Year

Total

1-3
Years

3-5
Years

>5
Years

(in thousands)
Contractual Obligations:

Principal debt payments
Non-cancellable operating leases
Total

$

1,946,040
383,228

$

805,471
94,006

$

120,108
152,677

$

1,020,461
78,037

$

—
58,508

$

2,329,268

$

899,477

$

272,785

$

1,098,498

$

58,508

The above table excludes estimated interest on the committed and uncommitted revolving credit facilities and term loans as these facilities are at
variable rates of interest and the amounts we draw on different revolving lines of credit facilities fluctuates from month to month depending on cash
generated from operations.
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As of November 30, 2017, we have recorded contingent consideration payable of $33.1 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. For further
information, see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report.
Guarantees
We, as the ultimate parent, guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX Investment Holdings Corporation up to $35.0 million in connection with the sale of
China Civilink (Cayman), which operated in China as HiChina Web Solutions, to Alibaba.com Limited. The guarantee expires in fiscal year 2018.
We are contingently liable under agreements, without expiration dates, to repurchase repossessed inventory acquired by flooring companies as a result
of default on floor plan financing arrangements by our customers. There have been no repurchases through November 30, 2017 under these agreements and
we are not aware of any pending customer defaults or repossession obligations. As the Company does not have access to information regarding the amount of
inventory purchased from the Company still on hand with the customer at any point in time, the Company’s repurchase obligations relating to inventory
cannot be reasonably estimated. As of November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, accounts receivable subject to flooring agreements were $65.7 million
and $65.1 million, respectively. For more information on our third-party revolving short-term financing arrangements, see Note 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Report.
As of November 30, 2017, we have established a reserve of $38.3 million for unrecognized tax benefits. As we are unable to reasonably predict the
timing of settlement of these guarantees and the reserve for unrecognized tax benefits, the table above excludes such liabilities.
Related Party Transactions
We have a business relationship with MiTAC Holdings, a publicly-traded company in Taiwan, which began in 1992 when MiTAC Holdings became
our primary investor through its affiliates. As of both November 30, 2017 and 2016, MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates beneficially owned approximately
24% of our outstanding common stock. Matthew Miau, our Chairman Emeritus of the Board of Directors and director, is the Chairman of MiTAC Holdings’
and a director or officer of MiTAC Holdings’ affiliates.
The shares owned by MiTAC Holdings are held by the following entities:
As of November 30, 2017
(shares in thousands)

MiTAC Holdings(1)
Synnex Technology International Corp.(2)

5,449
4,209

Total
_________________________

9,658

(1) Shares are held via Silver Star Developments Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MiTAC Holdings. Excludes 376 thousand shares directly held by Matthew Miau and 218
thousand shares indirectly held by Mathew Miau through a charitable remainder trust.
(2) Synnex Technology International Corp. (“Synnex Technology International”) is a separate entity from the Company and is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan. Shares
are held via Peer Development Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synnex Technology International. MiTAC Holdings owns a noncontrolling interest of 8.7% in MiTAC
Incorporated, a privately-held Taiwanese company, which in turn holds a noncontrolling interest of 13.6% in Synnex Technology International. Neither MiTAC Holdings
nor Mr. Miau is affiliated with any person(s), entity, or entities that hold a majority interest in MiTAC Incorporated.

MiTAC Holdings generally has significant influence over us regarding matters submitted to stockholders for consideration, including any merger or
acquisition of ours. Among other things, this could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change of control over us.
We purchased inventories from MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates totaling $232.4 million, $170.1 million and $87.1 million during fiscal years 2017,
2016 and 2015, respectively. Our sales to MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates during fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015 totaled $1.2 million, $1.8 million and
$1.3 million, respectively. In addition, we received reimbursements of rent and overhead costs for facilities used by MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates
amounting to $0.1 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million during fiscal years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Our business relationship with MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates has been informal and is not governed by long-term commitments or arrangements
with respect to pricing terms, revenue or capacity commitments. We negotiate pricing and other
43

Table of Contents

material terms on a case-by-case basis with MiTAC Holdings. We have adopted a policy requiring that material transactions with MiTAC Holdings or its
related parties be approved by our Audit Committee, which is composed solely of independent directors. In addition, Matthew Miau’s compensation is
approved by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, which is also composed solely of independent directors.
Synnex Technology International is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan that currently provides distribution and fulfillment services to various
markets in Asia and Australia, and is also our potential competitor. MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates are not restricted from competing with us.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For a summary of recent accounting pronouncements and the anticipated effects on our consolidated financial statements see Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which can be found under Item 8 of this Report.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Foreign Currency Risk
We are exposed to foreign currency risk in the ordinary course of business. We manage cash flow exposures for our major countries using a combination
of forward contracts. Principal currencies hedged are the Canadian Dollar, Brazilian Real, Philippine Peso, Indian Rupee, British Pound, Colombian Peso, the
Euro, and Japanese Yen. These instruments are generally short-term in nature, with typical maturities/settlement periods of six months or less. We do not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The following table presents the hypothetical changes in fair values of our outstanding foreign currency derivative instruments as of November 30,
2017 and 2016, arising from an instantaneous strengthening or weakening of the U.S. dollar by 5%, 10% and 15% (in thousands).
Loss on Derivative Instruments Given a
Weakening of U.S. dollar by X Percent
15%

Forward contracts at
November 30, 2017
Forward contracts at
November 30, 2016

10%

Gain (Loss)
Assuming No
Change in
Exchange Rate

5%

Gain on Derivative Instruments Given a
Strengthening of U.S. dollar by X Percent
5%

10%

15%

$

(15,253)

$

(9,773)

$

(4,722)

$

469

$

3,558

$

7,661

$

11,529

$

(15,259)

$

(9,310)

$

(3,986)

$

721

$

5,140

$

9,080

$

12,678

We do not apply hedge accounting to our forward contracts. Our foreign exchange contracts are marked-to-market and any material gains and losses on
our hedge contracts resulting from a hypothetical, instantaneous change in the strength of the U.S. dollar would be significantly offset by mark-to-market
gains and losses on the corresponding assets and liabilities being hedged.
Interest Rate Risk
The interest obligations of certain debt obligations have floated relative to major interest rate benchmarks. To manage interest rate risk on the U.S.
dollar-denominated floating-rate debt, the Company has entered into interest rate swaps with aggregate notional amounts of $600 million, and $400 million
as of November 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which effectively converted a portion of the floating rate debt to a fixed interest rate. The interest rate swaps
are accounted as cash flow hedges. A 15% variation in our interest rates would not have a material impact on the fair value of our swaps.
The following tables present hypothetical interest expense related to our outstanding borrowings with variable interest rates (after considering the
impact of the above mentioned swaps) for the years ended November 30, 2017 and 2016, arising from hypothetical parallel shifts in the respective countries’
yield curves, of plus or minus 5%, 10% and 15% (in thousands).
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Interest Expense Given an Interest
Rate Decrease by X Percent
15%

SYNNEX US

$
SYNNEX Canada
SYNNEX Infotec
Westcon-Comstor North America
Westcon-Comstor Latin America
Indian subsidiaries
Total for the year ended November
$
30, 2017

10%

Actual Interest
Expense Assuming
No Change in
Interest Rate

5%

Interest Expense Given an Interest
Rate Increase by X Percent
5%

10%

15%

25,421
351
881
3,117
6,085
217

$

26,196
372
886
3,300
6,443
230

$

26,971
392
890
3,483
6,801
243

$

27,746
413
833
3,666
7,159
256

$

28,521
434
900
3,850
7,517
269

$

29,295
454
904
4,033
7,874
281

$

30,070
475
909
4,216
8,232
294

36,072

$

37,427

$

38,780

$

40,073

$

41,491

$

42,841

$

44,196

Interest Expense Given an Interest
Rate Decrease by X Percent
15%

10%

Actual Interest
Expense Assuming
No Change in
Interest Rate

5%

Interest Expense Given an Interest
Rate Increase by X Percent
5%

10%

15%

SYNNEX US

$

$

6,408
701
146

$

6,583
709
154

$

6,759
716
162

$

6,934
723
170

$

7,109
731
178

$

SYNNEX Infotec
Indian subsidiaries
Total for the year ended
November 30, 2016

6,233
694
138

7,284
738
186

$

7,065

$

7,255

$

7,446

$

7,637

$

7,827

$

8,018

$

8,208

Equity Price Risk
The equity price risk associated with our marketable equity securities as of November 30, 2017 and 2016 is not material in relation to our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flow. Marketable equity securities include shares of common stock. The investments are classified as
available-for-sale securities, recorded at fair market value based on quoted market prices and unrealized gains and losses are included in other comprehensive
income. Realized gains and losses, which are calculated based on the specific identification method, are recorded in operations as incurred.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of ours are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In accordance with guidance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, companies are permitted to exclude acquisitions from their final
assessment of internal control over financial reporting for the first fiscal year in which the acquisition occurred. Our management’s evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting excluded the internal control activities of the Westcon-Comstor Americas business we acquired on September 1, 2017 as
discussed in Note 3, “Acquisitions,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. During the year ended November 30, 2017, the Westcon-Comstor Americas
business contributed $634.8 million to the Company’s consolidated revenue. As of November 30, 2017, our total assets included $1,750.5 million which
were specifically attributable to the Westcon-Comstor Americas business. We have included the financial results of the Westcon-Comstor Americas business
in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework). Based on this assessment, our
management concludes that, as of November 30, 2017, our internal control over financial reporting was effective at the reasonable assurance level based on
those criteria.
The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2017 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears on page 49 of this Report.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SYNNEX Corporation:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SYNNEX Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) as of November 30, 2017 and
2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the threeyear period ended November 30, 2017. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement
schedule in the accompanying Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
November 30, 2017 and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended November 30, 2017,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation
to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the internal control over
financial reporting of SYNNEX Corporation as of November 30, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated January 29, 2018 expressed an unqualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Santa Clara, California
January 29, 2018
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SYNNEX Corporation:
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of SYNNEX Corporation (the Company) as of November 30, 2017, based on criteria established
i n Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, SYNNEX Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2017, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).
The Company acquired Westcon Group, Inc. (Westcon-Comstor Americas) on September 1, 2017 and management excluded from its assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2017, internal control over financial reporting of WestconComstor Americas associated with total assets of $1,750.5 million, and total revenue of $634.8 million included in the consolidated financial statements of
the Company as of and for the year ended November 30, 2017. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an
evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Westcon-Comstor Americas.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets
of the Company and its subsidiaries as of November 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended November 30, 2017, and our report dated January 29, 2018 expressed
an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Santa Clara, California
January 29, 2018
49

Table of Contents

SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except for par value)
November 30,
2017

November 30,
2016

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

550,688

$

380,717

Restricted cash

5,837

Short-term investments

5,475

5,109

2,846,371

1,756,494

Accounts receivable, net
Receivable from related parties
Inventories
Other current assets

6,265

77

102

2,162,626

1,741,734

168,704

104,609

5,739,778

3,995,030

Property and equipment, net

346,589

312,716

Goodwill

872,641

486,239

Intangible assets, net

583,051

298,550

31,687

58,564

Total current assets

Deferred tax assets
Other assets

124,780
$

Total assets

64,182

7,698,526

$

805,471

$

5,215,281

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings, current

$

Accounts payable

2,626,720

Payable to related parties

362,889
1,683,155

16,888

30,679

Accrued compensation and benefits

204,665

165,585

Other accrued liabilities

354,104

217,127

Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities
Long-term borrowings

33,359

17,097

4,041,207

2,476,532

1,136,089

601,095

Other long-term liabilities

124,008

103,217

Deferred tax liabilities

113,527

58,639

5,414,831

3,239,483

—

—

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
SYNNEX Corporation stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 41,092 and 40,816 shares issued as of November 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively

41

41

Additional paid-in capital

467,948

440,713

Treasury stock, 1,419 and 1,339 shares as of November 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively

(77,133)

(67,262)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

(61,919)

Retained earnings
Total SYNNEX Corporation stockholders’ equity

(93,116)

1,954,758

1,695,400

2,283,695

1,975,776

Noncontrolling interest

—

22

Total equity

2,283,695

1,975,798

$

Total liabilities and equity
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except for per share amounts)
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

Revenue:
Products
Services
Total revenue

$

Cost of revenue:
Products
Services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income
Interest expense and finance charges, net
Other income (expense), net
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation

15,070,871
1,974,829

$

12,490,427
1,571,410

$

11,936,282
1,402,115

17,045,700

14,061,837

13,338,397

(14,262,094)
(1,232,666)

(11,815,479)
(963,393)

(11,276,819)
(869,787)

1,550,940
(1,041,975)

1,282,965
(903,369)

1,191,791
(837,239)

508,965
(45,357)
1,123

379,596
(28,993)
5,461

354,552
(26,296)
(1,061)

464,731
(163,558)

356,064
(121,059)

327,195
(118,588)

301,173
—

235,005
(59)

208,607
(82)

$

301,173

$

234,946

$

208,525

$
$

7.54
7.51

$
$

5.91
5.88

$
$

5.28
5.24

Earnings attributable to SYNNEX Corporation per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends declared per share

$

39,556

39,321

39,061

39,758

39,530

39,352

1.05

$

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(currency in thousands)
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

Net income

$

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes of $0, $0 and $(87) for
fiscal years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively
Change in unrealized losses of defined benefit plans, net of taxes of $0, $557 and $0 for
fiscal years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively
Unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges during the period, net of taxes of $(2,198),
$540 and $2,250 for fiscal years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively
Reclassification of net (gains)/losses to net income, net of tax expense (benefit) of $(677),
$(555) and $(178) for fiscal years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively
Total change in unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, net of tax

$

1,406

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes of $(983), $(952) and $3,349 for fiscal
years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income:
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest
Comprehensive income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation

2016

301,173

$

$

(234)

208,607

125

(1,463)

(1,067)

(103)

3,759

(1,800)

(3,819)

1,085

881

4,844

(919)

(3,539)

26,410

(35,634)

(45,097)

31,197

(37,854)

(48,614)

332,370
—

197,151
(84)

159,993
(77)

332,370

$

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2015

235,005

197,067

280

$

159,916
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(currency and share amounts in thousands)
SYNNEX Corporation Stockholders
Common stock
Shares
Balances, November 30, 2014

39,847

Amount
$

40

$

Treasury Stock

Additional
paid-in
capital

Shares

Amount

384,625

923

$(32,723)

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)
$

(6,628)

Retained
earnings
$1,308,244

Noncontrolling
interest
$

Total equity

427

$ 1,653,985

Share-based compensation

—

—

13,644

—

—

—

—

—

13,644

Tax benefits from equity awards

—

—

7,487

—

—

—

—

—

7,487

(3,869)

Issuance of common stock on exercise of
options, for employee stock purchase plan and
vesting of restricted stock, net of shares
withheld for employee taxes

503

—

5,959

118

(9,828)

—

—

—

Repurchases of common stock

—

—

—

120

(8,736)

—

—

—

(8,736)

Cash dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

—

(22,591)

Changes in ownership of noncontrolling
interests

—

—

(28)

—

—

Other comprehensive loss

—

—

—

—

—

Net income

—

—

—

—

—

Balances, November 30, 2015

—

(22,591)

—

—

12

—

(5)

(48,614)

208,525

82

208,607

(48,609)
—

40,350

40

411,687

1,161

1,494,178

516

1,799,897

Share-based compensation

—

—

13,971

—

—

—

—

—

13,971

Tax benefits from equity awards

—

—

8,134

—

—

—

—

—

8,134

(1,508)

Issuance of common stock on exercise of
options, for employee stock purchase plan and
vesting of restricted stock, net of shares
withheld for employee taxes

(51,287)

(55,237)

(16)

466

1

7,549

91

(9,058)

—

—

—

Repurchases of common stock

—

—

—

87

(6,917)

—

—

—

(6,917)

Cash dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

—

(33,724)

Changes in ownership of noncontrolling
interests

—

—

—

—

Other comprehensive income (loss)

—

—

—

—

—

Net income

—

—

—

—

—

Balances, November 30, 2016

(628)

—

(33,724)

—

—

(578)

(1,206)

—

25

(37,854)

234,946

59

235,005

(37,879)
—

40,816

41

440,713

1,339

1,695,400

22

1,975,798

Share-based compensation

—

—

17,368

—

—

—

—

—

17,368

Tax benefits from equity awards

—

—

5,546

—

—

—

—

—

5,546

—

—

(5,635)

—

(41,815)

Issuance of common stock on exercise of
options, for employee stock purchase plan and
vesting of restricted stock, net of shares
withheld for employee taxes

(67,262)

(93,116)

276

—

4,236

80

Cash dividends declared

—

—

—

—

—

Changes in ownership of noncontrolling
interests

—

—

85

—

—

—

—

(22)

Other comprehensive income

—

—

—

—

—

31,197

—

—

Net income
Balances, November 30, 2017

—
41,092

—
$

41

$

—

—

467,948

1,419

(9,871)

—
—

—
$(77,133)

—
$

(61,919)

(41,815)

301,173
$1,954,758

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(currency in thousands)
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

$

301,173

$

235,005

$

208,607

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation
Provision for doubtful accounts
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Unrealized foreign exchange (gains) losses
Others

159,886

121,293

103,510

17,368

13,971

13,644

8,268

1,734

(5,546)

(8,308)

(25,221)

(7,409)

(5,497)

(3,542)

(3,009)

16,029

4,861

1,156

542
(7,780)

(50)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition of businesses:
Accounts receivable, including from related parties

(478,273)

95,044

Inventories

(243,332)

(410,162)

40,121

341,962

265,609

(23,482)

Accounts payable, including to related parties
Other assets and liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

291,206

99,160

19,780

4,494

176,764

324,704

641,344

(12,942)

(92,264)

(10,066)

10,625

92,549

11,698

(97,546)

(123,233)

(100,106)

(526,658)

(414,801)

37,299

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Purchases of property and equipment
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired and refunds(1)
Purchase of cost-method investment

(30,000)

Others

2,264
Net cash used in investing activities

(654,257)

—

—

5,869

1,726

(531,880)

(59,449)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings, net of debt discount and issuance costs
Repayments of borrowings
Dividends paid

9,061,771

3,503,516

2,847,261

(8,382,379)

(3,285,687)

(3,092,506)
(22,591)

(41,815)

(33,724)

Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation

5,546

8,308

7,780

Increase (decrease) in book overdrafts

1,166

(2,499)

(82,236)

—

(6,917)

(8,736)

Repurchases of common stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repurchases of common stock for tax withholdings on equity awards
Others

4,236

7,550

5,959

(9,871)

(9,058)

(9,828)

—
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(1,337)

638,654

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year
$

(355,067)

8,414

(10,439)

(16,610)

169,575

(37,463)

210,218

387,167

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year

(170)

180,152

424,630

556,742

$

214,412

387,167

$

424,630

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid on borrowings

$

36,783

$

21,941

$

19,372

Income taxes paid

$

136,805

$

101,953

$

140,962

$

2,239

$

2,534

$

9,856

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activities:
Accrued costs for property and equipment purchases

(1) The receipt in fiscal year 2015 represents refund of purchase consideration for working capital and other post-closing adjustments related to the acquisition of the Customer
Relationship Management business of International Business Machines Corporation in fiscal year 2014.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:
SYNNEX Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, herein referred to as “SYNNEX” or the “Company”) is a business process services company
headquartered in Fremont, California and has operations in North and South America, Asia-Pacific and Europe.
The Company has two reportable segments: Technology Solutions and Concentrix. The Technology Solutions segment distributes a broad range of
information technology (“IT”) systems and products and also provides systems design and integration solutions. The Concentrix segment offers a portfolio of
strategic solutions and end-to-end global business outsourcing services focused on customer engagement strategy, process optimization, technology
innovation, front and back-office automation and business transformation to clients in ten identified industry verticals.
NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. The Company evaluates these estimates on
a regular basis and bases them on historical experience and on various assumptions that the Company believes are reasonable. Actual results could differ from
the estimates.
Principles of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries, majority-owned subsidiaries in which no
substantive participating rights are held by minority stockholders and variable interest entities if the Company is the primary beneficiary. All intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
The Consolidated Financial Statements include 100% of the assets and liabilities of majority-owned subsidiaries and the ownership interest of minority
investors is recorded as noncontrolling interest. Investments in 20% through 50% owned affiliated companies are accounted under the equity method where
the Company exercises significant influence over operating and financial affairs of the investee and is not the primary beneficiary. Investments in less than
20% owned companies are recorded under the cost method, unless the Company has significant influence.
Segment reporting
Operating segments are based on components of the Company that engage in business activity that earns revenue and incurs expenses and (a) whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resource allocation and performance and
(b) for which discrete financial information is available. The Company has two reportable segments: Technology Solutions and Concentrix. The Technology
Solutions segment represents an aggregation of the Technology Solutions United States, Canada, Japan and Latin America operating segments.
The Technology Solutions segment distributes peripherals, IT systems, including data center servers, system components, software,
networking/communications/security equipment, consumer electronics (“CE”) and complementary products to a variety of customers, including value-added
resellers, system integrators and retailers. The segment also designs and integrates energy efficient data center servers built specific to the customers’ data
center environments.
The Concentrix segment offers a range of global business services focused on process optimization, customer engagement strategy and back-office
automation to clients in ten industry verticals. The portfolio of services offered comprises end-to-end process outsourcing services that are delivered through
omni-channels including both voice and non-voice.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity or remaining maturity at date of purchase of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist principally of money market deposit accounts that are stated at cost, which approximates fair
value. The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of default by financial institutions to the extent that cash balances with financial institutions are in
excess of amounts that are insured.
Investments
The Company classifies its investments in marketable securities as trading and available-for-sale. Marketable securities related to its deferred
compensation plan are classified as trading and are recorded at fair value, based on quoted market prices, and unrealized gains and losses are included in
“Other income (expense), net” in the Company’s financial statements. All other securities are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair market
value, based on quoted market prices, and unrealized gains and losses are included in “Accumulated other comprehensive income,” a component of
stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, which are calculated based on the specific identification method, and
declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary, if any, are recorded in “Other income (expense), net” as incurred.
To determine whether a decline in value is other-than-temporary, the Company evaluates several factors, including the current economic environment,
market conditions, operational and financial performance of the investee, and other specific factors relating to the business underlying the investment,
including business outlook of the investee, future trends in the investee’s industry and the Company’s intent to carry the investment for a sufficient period of
time for any recovery in fair value. If a decline in value is deemed as other-than-temporary, the Company records reductions in carrying values to estimated
fair values, which are determined based on quoted market prices if available or on one or more of the valuation methods such as pricing models using
historical and projected financial information, liquidation values, and values of other comparable public companies.
The Company classifies its term deposits with financial institutions, with maturities from the date of purchase greater than three months and less than
one year, as held-to-maturity investments. These term deposits are held until the maturity date and are not traded.
The Company has investments in equity instruments of privately-held companies and investments for which there are not readily determinable fair
values. The investments that are included in “Short-term investments” are accounted for under the cost method of accounting. Long-term investments, which
the Company has the ability and intent to hold for more than twelve months, are included in “Other assets” and are accounted for under the cost method of
accounting. The Company monitors its cost-method investments for impairment by considering current factors, including the economic environment, market
conditions, operational performance and other specific factors relating to the business underlying the investment, and records reductions in carrying values
when necessary.
Allowance for doubtful accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is an estimate to cover the losses resulting from the inability of customers to make payments for outstanding
balances. In estimating the required allowance, the Company takes into consideration the overall quality and aging of the accounts receivable, credit
evaluations of customers’ financial condition and existence of credit insurance. The Company also evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable based
on specific customer circumstances, current economic trends, historical experience with collections and any value and adequacy of collateral received from
customers.
Inventories
Inventories as of November 30, 2016 are stated at the lower of cost or market. As of November 30, 2017 inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost is computed based on the weighted-average method. Inventories are comprised of finished goods and work-in-process. Finished goods
include products purchased for resale, system components purchased for both resale and for use in the Company’s systems design and integration business,
and completed systems. Work-in-process inventories are not material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company accounts for its derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities and carries them at fair value.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
For derivative instruments that hedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows that are designated as cash flow hedges, the gain or loss
on the derivative instrument is reported as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” in stockholders’ equity and reclassified into
earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. To receive hedge accounting treatment, cash flow hedges must
be highly effective in offsetting changes to expected future cash flows on hedged transactions.
Derivatives used to minimize foreign exchange risk on assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective entities are not designated as hedging instruments and are adjusted to fair value through earnings in the current period.
Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line method based upon the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets, or the lease term of the respective assets, if applicable. Maintenance
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and improvements are capitalized. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated
depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations in the period realized. The ranges of
estimated useful lives for property and equipment categories are as follows:
Equipment and Furniture
Software
Leasehold improvements
Buildings and building improvements

3-10 years
3-7 years
2-15 years
10-40 years

Goodwill and intangible assets
The values assigned to intangible assets are based on estimates and judgment regarding expectations for the success and life cycle of products and
technologies and length of customer relationships acquired in a business combination. Purchased intangible assets are amortized over the useful lives based
on estimates of the use of the economic benefit of the asset or on the straight-line amortization method.
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets, including the amount assigned to identifiable intangible
assets. The Company allocates goodwill to reporting units based on the reporting unit expected to benefit from the business combination and tests for
impairment annually in the fourth quarter or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it may be impaired. Goodwill is tested for
impairment at the reporting unit level by first performing a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than its carrying value. The factors that are considered in the qualitative analysis include macroeconomic conditions, industry and
market considerations, cost factors such as increases in product cost, labor, or other costs that would have a negative effect on earnings and cash flows; and
other relevant entity-specific events and information.
If the reporting unit does not pass the qualitative assessment, then the reporting unit’s carrying value is compared to its fair value. The fair values of the
reporting units are estimated using market and discounted cash flow approaches. The assumptions used in the market approach are based on the value of a
business through an analysis of sales and other multiples of guideline companies and recent sales or offerings of a comparable entity. The assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow approach are based on historical and forecasted revenue, operating costs, future economic conditions, and other relevant factors.
Goodwill is considered impaired if the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value. No goodwill impairment has been identified for any of the
years presented.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
Intangible assets consist primarily of customer relationships and lists, vendor lists, technology and trade names. Amortization is based on the pattern in
which the economic benefits of the intangible assets will be consumed or on a straight line basis when the consumption pattern is not apparent over the
following useful lives:
Customer relationships and lists
Vendor lists
Technology
Other intangible assets

4-10 years
4-10 years
5-10 years
1-10 years

Impairment of long-lived assets
The Company reviews the recoverability of its long-lived assets, such as intangible assets, property and equipment and certain other assets, when
events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate the carrying value of the asset or asset group may not be recoverable. The assessment of possible
impairment is based on the Company’s ability to recover the carrying value of the asset or asset group from the expected future pre-tax cash flows,
undiscounted and without interest charges, of the related operations. If these cash flows are less than the carrying value of such assets, an impairment loss is
recognized for the difference between estimated fair value and carrying value.
Software costs
The Company develops software platforms for internal use and for resale. The Company capitalizes costs incurred to develop software for resale
subsequent to the software product reaching technological feasibility. Capitalized costs are amortized over the economic life of the product using the greater
of the straight-line amortization or using the ratio of current revenue to future expected revenue.
The Company capitalizes the costs incurred to develop software for internal use when new software is developed, the life of existing software is
extended or significant enhancements are added to the features of existing software. The capitalized development costs primarily comprise payroll costs.
Concentration of credit risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and derivative instruments.
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and derivative instruments are transacted and maintained with financial institutions with high credit
standing, the compositions and maturities of which are regularly monitored by management. Through November 30, 2017, the Company has not experienced
any credit losses on such deposits and derivative instruments.
Accounts receivable include amounts due from customers and original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) vendors primarily in the technology industry.
The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and limits the amount of credit extended when deemed necessary,
but generally requires no collateral. The Company also maintains allowances for potential credit losses. In estimating the required allowances, the Company
takes into consideration the overall quality and aging of the receivable portfolio, the existence of a limited amount of credit insurance and specifically
identified customer and vendor risks. Through November 30, 2017, such losses have been within management’s expectations.
In fiscal years 2017 and 2016, one customer accounted for 21% and 12%, respectively of the Company’s consolidated revenue. In fiscal year 2015, no
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s consolidated revenue. Products purchased from the Company’s largest OEM supplier, HP Inc.
(formerly Hewlett-Packard Company) (“HP”), accounted for approximately 13%, 17% and 25% of the consolidated revenue for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively. Before November 1, 2015, HP included both HP Inc. and Hewlett-Packard Enterprise.
As of November 30, 2017, one customer comprised 12% of the total accounts receivable balance. As of November 30, 2016, no customer comprised
10% of the total consolidated accounts receivable balance.
Book overdrafts
Book overdrafts, representing checks issued in excess of balances on deposit in the applicable bank accounts and which have not been paid by the
applicable bank at the balance sheet date are classified as “Borrowings, current” in the Company’s
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Consolidated Balance Sheets. Under the terms of the Company’s banking arrangements, the respective financial institutions are not legally obligated to
honor the book overdraft balances. The Company’s policy is to report the change in book overdrafts as a financing activity in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows.
Revenue recognition
Products revenue represents revenue from the Company’s Technology Solutions segment and services revenue represents revenue from the Company’s
Concentrix segment.
Technology Solutions
The Company generally recognizes revenue on the sale of hardware and software products when they are shipped or delivered and on services when
they are performed, if persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the sales price is fixed or determinable, collection of resulting accounts receivable is
reasonably assured, risk of loss and title have transferred and product returns are reasonably estimable. Binding purchase orders from customers together with
agreement to our terms and conditions of sale by way of an executed agreement or other signed document constitutes evidence of an arrangement. Where
product acceptance provisions exist, assuming all other revenue recognition criterion are met, revenue is recognized upon the earlier of shipment/delivery for
products that have been demonstrated to meet product specifications, customer acceptance or the lapse of acceptance provisions.
Provisions for sales returns and allowances are estimated based on historical data and are recorded concurrently with the recognition of revenue. These
provisions are reviewed and adjusted periodically by the Company. Revenue is presented net of taxes collected from customers and remitted to government
authorities. Revenue is reduced for early payment discounts and volume incentive rebates offered to customers. The Company recognizes revenue on a net
basis on certain contracts, including service contracts, post-contract software support services and extended warranty contracts, where it is not the primary
obligor, by recognizing the margins earned in revenue with no associated cost of revenue.
Concentrix
The Company recognizes revenue from services contracts when evidence of an arrangement exists, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable
and collectability is reasonably assured. Service contracts may be based on a fixed price or on a fixed unit-price per transaction or other objective measure of
output. Revenue on fixed price contracts is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract as services are provided. Revenue on unit-price
transactions is recognized using an objective measure of output including staffing hours or the number of transactions processed by service agents. Customer
contract terms can range from less than one year to more than five years. Revenue is reported net of any revenue-based taxes assessed by governmental
authorities that are imposed on and concurrent with specific revenue-producing transactions.
Cost of Revenue
Cost of products revenue represents cost of the Company’s Technology Solutions segment and cost of services revenue represents cost of the
Company’s Concentrix segment.
Technology Solutions
Cost of revenue includes the product price paid to OEM suppliers, net of any incentives, rebates, price protection and purchase discounts received from
the OEM suppliers. Cost of revenue also consists of provisions for inventory losses and write-downs, shipping and handling costs and royalties due to OEM
vendors. In addition, cost of revenue includes the cost of materials, labor and overhead and warranty for design and integration activities.
Concentrix
Recurring direct operating costs for services are recognized as incurred. Cost of services revenue consists primarily of personnel costs. Where a contract
requires an up-front investment, which typically includes transition and set-up costs related to systems and processes, these amounts are deferred and
amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected period of benefit, not to exceed the fixed term of the contract. The Company performs periodic reviews to
assess the recoverability of deferred contract transition and setup costs. This review is done by comparing the estimated minimum remaining undiscounted
cash flows of a contract to the unamortized contract costs. If such minimum undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the unamortized costs, an
impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the estimated fair value and the carrying value.
59

Table of Contents

SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
If a cash flow deficiency remains after reducing the carrying amount of the deferred costs, the Company evaluates any remaining long-lived assets related to
that contract for impairment.
Selling, General and Administrative expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses are charged to income as incurred. Expenses of promoting and selling products and services are classified
as selling expense and include such items as compensation, sales commissions and travel. General and administrative expenses include such items as
compensation, cost of warehouse, delivery centers and other non-integration facilities, legal and professional costs, office supplies, non-income taxes,
insurance and utility expenses. In addition, selling, general and administrative expenses include other operating items such as allowances for credit losses,
depreciation and amortization of intangible assets.
OEM supplier programs
Funds received from OEM suppliers for volume promotion programs, price protection and product rebates are recorded as adjustments to cost of
revenue and/or the carrying value of inventories, as appropriate. Where there is a binding agreement, the Company tracks vendor promotional programs for
volume discounts on a program-by-program basis and records them as a reduction to cost of revenue based on a systematic and rational allocation. The
Company monitors the balances of vendor receivables on a quarterly basis and adjusts the balances due for differences between expected and actual sales
volume. Vendor receivables are generally collected through reductions authorized by the vendor to accounts payable. Funds received for specific marketing
and infrastructure reimbursements, net of related costs, are recorded as adjustments to “Selling, general and administrative expenses,” and any excess
reimbursement amount is recorded as an adjustment to cost of revenue.
Royalties
The Company’s software product purchases include products licensed from OEM vendors, which are subsequently distributed to resellers. Royalties to
OEM vendors are accrued and recorded in cost of revenue when software products are shipped and revenue is recognized.
Warranties
The Company’s OEM suppliers generally warrant the products distributed by the Company and allow returns of defective products. The Company
generally does not independently warrant the products it distributes; however, the Company does warrant the following: (1) products that it builds to order
from components purchased from other sources; and (2) its services with regard to products that it assembles for its customers. To date neither warranty
expense, nor the accrual for warranty costs has been material to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
Advertising
Costs related to advertising and product promotion expenditures are charged to “Selling, general and administrative expenses” as incurred and are
primarily offset by OEM marketing reimbursements. To date, net costs related to advertising and promotion expenditures have not been material.
Income taxes
The asset and liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements
using enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the difference is expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets
that are not likely to be realized.
The Company recognizes tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if that tax position is more likely than not to be sustained on examination by
the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such positions are then
measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provisions for income taxes.
Foreign currency translations
The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries whose functional currencies are the local currencies are translated into U.S. dollars for
consolidation as follows: assets and liabilities at the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date,
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stockholders’ equity at the historical rates of exchange, and income and expense amounts at the average exchange rate for the month. Translation
adjustments resulting from the translation of the subsidiaries’ accounts are included in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).” Transactions
denominated in currencies other than the applicable functional currency are converted to the functional currency at the exchange rate on the transaction date.
At period end, monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured to the functional currency using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities are remeasured at historical exchange rates. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included within
“Other income (expense), net.”
Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances
from non-owner sources. The primary components of comprehensive income for the Company include net income, foreign currency translation adjustments
arising from the consolidation of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s available-for-sale securities, unrealized
gains and losses on cash flow hedges and the changes in unrecognized pension and post-retirement benefits.
Share-based compensation
Share-based compensation is estimated at the grant date based on the fair value of the awards expected to vest and recognized as expense ratably over
the requisite service period of the award. The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate fair value of share-based option awards, which
requires various assumptions including estimating stock price volatility and expected life.
Pension and post-retirement benefits
Defined benefit pension costs are estimated using various actuarial assumptions including discount rates, expected return on plan assets, inflation,
mortality rates and compensation increases. The assumptions used are reviewed on an annual basis. The Company records pension expense related to multiemployer plans based on the amount of contributions that are contractually owed during the period.
Earnings per common share
Earnings per share is calculated using the two-class method. The two-class method is an earnings allocation proportional to the respective ownership
among holders of common stock and participating securities. Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income attributable to the
Company’s common stockholders by the weighted average of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per common share also
considers the dilutive effect of in-the-money stock options and restricted stock units, calculated using the treasury stock method.
Treasury Stock
Repurchases of shares of common stock are accounted for at cost, which includes brokerage fees, and are included as a component of stockholders’
equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and
the notes thereto to conform to current period presentation, primarily pursuant to the adoption of new accounting pronouncements. The impact of
reclassifications pursuant to adoption of new guidance is provided below under “Recently adopted accounting pronouncements.” Other reclassifications in
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows had no effect on cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities as previously reported.
Recently adopted accounting pronouncements
In August 2017, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (the “FASB”) issued a new accounting standard that amends and simplifies existing guidance
related to hedge accounting in order to allow companies to more accurately present the economic effects of risk management activities in their financial
statements. It is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods within those annual periods with early
adoption permitted. Entities will apply the standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first
effective reporting period. The Company adopted this guidance in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adoption did not have a material impact on the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In May 2017, the FASB issued guidance to clarify when to account for a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award as a
modification. Under the new guidance, modification accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions, or the classification of the award (as
equity or liability) changes as a result of the change in terms or conditions. The guidance is effective prospectively for all companies for annual periods and
interim periods within those annual periods, beginning on or after December 15, 2017. The Company adopted the guidance prospectively in the second
quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adoption had no impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
In January 2017, the FASB issued guidance to simplify the accounting for goodwill impairment. It removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test,
which requires a hypothetical purchase price allocation. Goodwill impairment will now be calculated as the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying
value exceeds its fair value, not exceeding the carrying amount of goodwill. In addition, income tax effects from any tax deductible goodwill shall also be
considered in measuring goodwill impairment loss, if applicable. The guidance is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2019
and should be adopted prospectively. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment test performed with a measurement date after
January 1, 2017. The Company adopted the guidance prospectively in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adoption had no impact on the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements.
In November 2016, the FASB issued new guidance which requires that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of
cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted
cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total
amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The Company adopted this new guidance in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, with retrospective effect. The
adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's cash flow statement for the year ended November 30, 2017. Cash used in investing activities
increased by $82,376 and decreased by $54,435, during the years ended November 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
In October 2016, the FASB issued new guidance that requires a reporting entity to recognize the tax expense from intra-entity transfers of assets other
than inventory in the selling entity’s tax jurisdiction when the transfer occurs, even though the pre-tax effects of that transaction are eliminated in
consolidation. Any deferred tax asset that arises in the buying entity’s jurisdiction would also be recognized at the time of the transfer. The Company
adopted this new guidance in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017 using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not have a material impact on
the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
In August 2016, the FASB issued an amendment to the statement of cash flows. It addresses eight specific cash flow issues to clarify the presentation and
classification of cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows where diversity in practice exists. The Company adopted this new standard in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, with retrospective effect. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's cash flows from operating,
investing or financing activities.
In November 2015, the FASB issued a new accounting standard that requires deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent on a
company’s balance sheet. The Company adopted this new standard in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, with retrospective effect. Although the adoption
did not materially impact the company's consolidated financial position or results of operations, it resulted in a reclassification of $44,116 of deferred tax
assets from current to noncurrent and a reclassification of $448 of deferred tax liabilities from current to noncurrent at November 30, 2016. In addition, the
Company offset $5,000 of current deferred tax assets against noncurrent deferred tax liabilities as of November 30, 2016 in order to present a single
noncurrent deferred tax balance by tax jurisdiction.
In September 2015, the FASB issued a new accounting standard that eliminates the requirement to restate prior period financial statements for
measurement period adjustments. The new guidance requires that the cumulative impact of a measurement period adjustment (including the impact on prior
periods) be recognized in the reporting period in which the adjustment is identified. Consistent with existing guidance, the new guidance requires an acquirer
to disclose the nature and amount of measurement period adjustments. In addition, companies are required to present separately on the face of the income
statement or disclose in the notes the portion of the adjustment recorded in current-period earnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous
reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The Company adopted this new standard
prospectively in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
In July 2015, the FASB issued a new accounting standard that simplifies the subsequent measurement of inventory. It replaces the lower of cost or
market test with the lower of cost or net realizable value test. Net realizable value is defined as the
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estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. The Company
adopted this new standard prospectively in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated
Financial Statements.
In April 2015, the FASB issued new guidance to customers about whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license. If the cloud
computing arrangement includes a software license, the customer should account for the software license element of the arrangement consistent with the
acquisition of other software licenses. If the cloud computing arrangement does not include a software license, the customer should account for the
arrangement as a service contract. The Company adopted this new standard prospectively in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adoption had no impact
on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
In April 2015, the FASB issued a new accounting standard that requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the
balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the corresponding debt liability. In August 2015, the FASB clarified that for a line-of-credit
arrangement, a company can continue to defer and present the debt issuance costs as an asset and subsequent amortization of debt issuance costs over the
term of the line-of-credit arrangement, whether or not there are any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. The Company adopted this new
standard in the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, with retrospective effect. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated
Financial Statements.
Recently issued accounting pronouncements
In June 2016, the FASB issued a new credit loss standard that replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP. The new impairment
model requires immediate recognition of estimated credit losses expected to occur for most financial assets and certain other instruments. It is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018 is permitted. Entities will apply the standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of
the first effective reporting period. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance.
In March 2016, the FASB issued guidance which changes the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences,
classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The guidance is effective for the
Company in the first fiscal quarter of 2018. Had the Company adopted this guidance during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2017, income tax expense
would be lower by $5,546 for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2017, and net income would be higher by approximately the same amount. The tax impact
is included in additional paid-in capital for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2017. Cash provided by operating activities during the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2017 would have been higher by $5,546.
In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard which revises various aspects of accounting for leases. The most significant impact to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements relates to the recognition by a lessee of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for virtually all of its leases other than
short-term leases. The liability will be equal to the present value of lease payments. The asset will be based on the liability, subject to adjustment, such as for
initial direct costs. Consistent with current guidance, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a
lessee primarily will depend on its classification. For income statement purposes, operating leases will result in a straight line expense while finance leases
will result in a front-loaded expense pattern. This accounting standard will be applicable to the Company at the beginning of its first quarter of fiscal year
2020 using a modified retrospective approach and early adoption is permitted. The Company expects that most of its operating lease commitments will be
subject to the new standard and recognized as operating lease liabilities and right-of-use assets upon adoption and is currently evaluating the impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements upon the adoption of this new standard.
In January 2016, the FASB issued new guidance which amends various aspects of the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of
financial instruments. With respect to the Company’s consolidated financial statements, the most significant impact relates to the accounting for equity
investments (other than those that are consolidated or accounted under the equity method) which will be measured at fair value through earnings. The new
guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted
only for certain provisions. The amendments should be applied by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the beginning of the
fiscal year of adoption, with other amendments related specifically to equity securities without readily determinable fair values applied prospectively. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to have a material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.
63

Table of Contents

SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
In May 2014, the FASB issued a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard for contracts with customers that will supersede most current revenue
recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The core principle of this standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. To achieve this core principle, the standard provides a five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is
recognized. Other major provisions include the capitalization and amortization of certain contract costs, ensuring the time value of money is considered in
the transaction price, and allowing estimates of variable consideration to be recognized before contingencies are resolved in certain circumstances. This
guidance also requires enhanced disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts
with customers. In August 2015, the FASB amended this accounting standard and postponed the implementation date to fiscal years, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early application for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2016 is permitted. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. This accounting standard will
be applicable to the Company at the beginning of its first quarter of fiscal year 2019. The Company has established an implementation team and engaged
external advisers to assess the Company’s business and contracts. The Company is in the process of determining the transition method and evaluating the
impact of several aspects of the standard including principal versus agent considerations, identification of performance obligations and the determination of
when control of goods and services transfers to the Company’s customers.

NOTE 3—ACQUISITIONS:
Fiscal 2017 acquisitions
On September 1, 2017, the Company acquired the North America and Latin America distribution businesses of Datatec Limited, a public limited
company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa (“Datatec”), through the purchase of 100% of the shares of its subsidiary, Westcon Group, Inc., a
Delaware company (“Westcon-Comstor Americas”) for a purchase price of $633,568. The acquisition is related to the Technology Solutions segment and is
expected to strengthen the Company’s line card in the security, Unified Communications and Collaboration and networking markets, enhance the
Company’s North American position and expand the Company’s footprint into Latin America. As part of the transaction, the Company entered into an
agreement with Datatec whereby Westcon-Comstor Americas and Datatec will cooperate in the global deployment of solutions to certain global customers of
Westcon-Comstor Americas and Datatec's distribution business outside the Americas for specified fees.
The acquisition was accounted for as a business combination. The total purchase price consideration is as follows:
Purchase consideration:

Fair Value

Cash
Contingent consideration payable
Receivable from Datatec related to settlement of pre-acquisition intra group transactions

$

602,739
33,098
(2,269)

$

633,568

Contingent consideration of up to $200,000 will be payable in cash if certain Westcon-Comstor Americas gross profit targets are achieved for the
twelve-month period ending February 28, 2018. The above contingent consideration represents an estimate based on a probabilistic assessment at the
acquisition date. See Note 9—Fair Value Measurements for further information. In order to fund the acquisition, the Company amended and increased its
existing senior secured credit agreement in the United States on September 1, 2017. See Note 11—Borrowings for further information.
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The preliminary purchase price allocation is as follows:
Preliminary purchase price allocation:

Preliminary Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (Gross accounts receivable: $633,971)
Inventories
Other current assets
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Borrowings, current
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Other accrued liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

$

127,390
605,666
171,034
58,008
13,051
340,440
336,000
6,891
16,995
(291,823)
(585,723)
(9,723)
(48,281)
(545)
(3,730)
(102,082)

Purchase consideration

$

633,568

The identifiable intangible assets acquired and their estimated useful lives are summarized as follows:
Preliminary
Fair Value

Customer relationships
Vendor relationships
Trade names
Technology
Others

$

$

152,000
144,000
24,000
12,000
4,000

Total intangibles acquired

$

336,000

Weighted Average Useful
Life

10 years
10 years
10 years
5 years
4 years

Amortization of intangible assets is recorded in “Selling, general and administrative expenses.”
The preliminary purchase price allocation is based upon a preliminary valuation and the Company’s estimates and assumptions are subject to change
within the measurement period (up to one year from the acquisition date). The primary areas of the preliminary purchase price allocation that are not yet
finalized relate to the fair value of certain tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the valuation of intangible assets acquired and related deferred
income taxes. The Company expects to continue to obtain information for the purpose of determining the fair value of the net assets acquired during the
measurement period. Goodwill of $5,748 is deductible for U.S. income tax purposes.
The Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended November 30, 2017 includes $634,833 of revenue from Westcon-Comstor
Americas. Earnings contributed by the acquired business is not separately identifiable due to the integration activities of the Company. Acquisition-related
and integration expenses were $3,724 during the year ended November 30, 2017, and consisted primarily of professional services and contract termination
costs incurred in connection with the acquisition. These charges were recorded in “Selling, general and administrative expenses.”
The following unaudited pro forma financial information combines the unaudited Consolidated Results of Operations as if the initial closing of the
acquisition of the Westcon-Comstor Americas business had occurred at the beginning of the periods presented. Pro forma adjustments include only the effects
of events directly attributable to transactions that are factually supportable. The pro forma results contained in the table below include pro forma adjustments
for amortization of acquired
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intangibles, modification of corporate and IT overhead costs charged by Datatec as these activities will be performed internally by the Company or under
new arrangements with Datatec, interest expense incurred on borrowings to fund the acquisition, and the related tax effects of the pro forma adjustments.
The unaudited pro forma financial information, as presented below, is for informational purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations
that would have been achieved if the acquisition and any borrowings undertaken to finance the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the respective
reporting periods.
Year Ended
November 30, 2017

Revenue
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation
Earnings attributable to SYNNEX Corporation per common share:
Basic
Diluted

November 30, 2016

$

18,699,040
297,083

$

16,235,161
242,092

$
$

7.44
7.40

$
$

6.09
6.06

On July 31, 2017, the Company acquired 100% of Tigerspike Pty Ltd (“Tigerspike”), a digital products company incorporated in Australia,
specializing in strategy, experience design, development and systems integration, for a preliminary purchase price of $68,457, subject to post-closing
adjustments. As of November 30, 2017, the Company had paid $58,457 in cash and $10,000 was payable to the sellers subject to finalization of the postclosing adjustments. The acquisition has been integrated into the Concentrix segment and is expected to enhance Concentrix' digital and mobility
competencies by providing improved business intelligence and performance for its clients through enabling technologies that are designed to create
effortless, personalized end-user engagements. Based on the preliminary purchase price allocation, the Company recorded net tangible liabilities of $692,
goodwill of $43,727 and intangible assets of $25,423, primarily comprising customer relationships. The primary area of the preliminary purchase price
allocation that is not yet finalized relates to the valuation of intangible assets acquired. Acquisition-related and integration expenses incurred were $446
during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2017. These charges were recorded in “Selling, general and administrative expenses.” Goodwill is not deductible
for tax purposes. The operating results of Tigerspike are not material for pro forma disclosure.
Fiscal year 2016 acquisition
In August 2016, the Company acquired 100% of the Minacs group of companies (“Minacs”), which provide integrated business process outsourcing
services, for a purchase price of $429,135 paid in cash, after certain post-closing adjustments. During the year ended November 30, 2017, the Company
received a refund of $6,500 related to post-closing adjustments. This amount is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows under investing
activities. The Company also recorded certain immaterial measurement period adjustments to the fair value of acquired net tangible assets during the year
ended November 30, 2017.
The acquisition has been included in the Concentrix segment. The Company believes Minacs provides greater scale and strengthens the Company’s
position as a top global provider of customer engagement services, enhances domain expertise in Concentrix’s automotive industry vertical and accelerates
Marketing Optimization and Internet of Things solutions with Minacs’ proprietary technology.
The acquisition has been accounted for as a business combination. The purchase price for the acquisition was allocated to net tangible and intangible
assets based on their fair values as of the acquisition date. The excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill, and is
attributed to the assembled workforce, expanded market opportunities due to domain expertise in the automotive industry vertical and enhanced technology
platforms resulting from the acquisition. Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.
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The purchase price allocation is as follows:
Purchase price allocation:

Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (Gross accounts receivable: $94,560)
Other current assets
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Other assets
Borrowings, current
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Other accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities, noncurrent

$

20,492
92,686
22,678
20,276
190,204
193,400
5,944
(7,974)
(1,985)
(26,726)
(17,110)
(698)
(2,005)
(60,047)

Cash consideration paid

$

429,135

The identifiable intangible assets acquired and their estimated useful lives are summarized as follows:

Fair Value
Customer relationships
Technology

$

190,000
3,400

Total intangibles acquired

$

193,400

Weighted Average
Useful Life
10 years
5 years

Amortization of customer relationships is recorded in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” and amortization of technology is recorded in
“Cost of revenue” for “services.”
Acquisition-related and integration expenses were $9,798 of which $611 and $9,187 were incurred during the years ended November 30, 2017 and
2016, respectively, and consisted of costs incurred to complete the acquisition and related integration. These charges were recorded in “Selling, general and
administrative expenses.” The operating results of Minacs are not material for pro forma disclosure.

NOTE 4—STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
2013 Stock Incentive Plan
The Company’s 2013 Stock Incentive Plan was adopted by its Board of Directors and approved by its stockholders in 2013. The 2013 Stock Plan as
amended and restated from time to time provides for the direct award or sale of shares of common stock, restricted stock awards, and restricted stock units, the
grant of options to purchase shares of common stock and the award of stock appreciation rights to employees and non-employee directors and consultants.
The number of authorized shares under the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan will not exceed the sum of 1,696 shares of common stock, plus any shares under
the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2003 Stock Incentive Plan”) that are subject to outstanding awards granted to the extent those
awards expire, terminate or are canceled for any reason prior to exercise without the issuance or delivery of such shares, any shares subject to vesting
restrictions that are subsequently forfeited, and any reserved shares not issued or subject to outstanding awards, up to 2,750 shares. No participant in the 2013
Stock Incentive Plan may receive option grants or stock appreciation rights, restricted shares or restricted stock units of more than 1,500 shares per calendar
year, or more than 2,500 shares in the participant’s first calendar year of service. The option price for incentive stock options will not be less than 100% of the
fair market value of the stock on the date of grant.
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Under the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, qualified employees are eligible for the grant of incentive stock options to purchase shares of common stock.
Qualified employees and outside directors and consultants are eligible for the grant of non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock
grants and restricted stock units. The outstanding stock options and restricted stock awards granted to qualified employees generally vest over a five-year
period and the stock options have a contractual term of ten years. Stock options granted to qualified non-employee directors vest as to one third of the stock
underlying the stock options on the first anniversary date of the grant and the remaining vest monthly over a two-year period starting one month after the first
anniversary of the date of grant. Restricted stock granted to qualified non-employee directors vests one fourth on a quarterly basis over a one-year period. The
holders of restricted stock awards are entitled to the same voting, dividend and other rights as the Company’s common stockholders. Certain restricted stock
units could vest subject to the achievement of individual, divisional or company-wide performance goals. The majority of the performance-based restricted
stock units vest at the end of three-year requisite service periods, subject to the achievement of company-wide financial performance goals approved by the
Compensation Committee.
Unless terminated sooner, the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan will terminate on March 19, 2023.
2003 Stock Incentive Plan
The Company’s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan terminated in March 2013. The number of authorized shares under the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan was
14,120 shares of common stock. The equity awards outstanding under this plan as of November 30, 2017 continue to be governed by their existing terms.
The outstanding stock options, restricted stock awards and restricted stock units granted to qualified employees generally vest over a five-year period and the
stock options have a contractual term of ten years. Certain restricted stock units could vest subject to the attachment of individual, divisional or Companywide performance goals. Stock options and restricted stock awards granted to qualified non-employee directors vest over a period ranging from one year to
three years. The exercise price of incentive stock option grants was equal to 100% of the fair market value of those shares on the date of the grant. The holders
of restricted stock awards are entitled to the same voting, dividend and other rights as the Company’s common stockholders.
2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
On January 6, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the adoption of the 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“2014 ESPP”) to succeed the Company's
2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The 2014 ESPP, as amended, commenced on January 1, 2015 with 750 authorized shares. Under the 2014 ESPP, there
are four offering periods of three months each in a calendar year. Eligible employees can choose to have a fixed percentage deducted from their bi-weekly
compensation to purchase the Company’s common stock at a discount of 5%. The maximum number of shares a participant may purchase is 0.625 during a
single accumulation period subject to a maximum purchase limit of $10 in a calendar year. Employees at associate vice president level and above are not
eligible to participate in the plan.
Share-based compensation expense related to the 2003 ESPP and 2014 ESPP was insignificant during fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015.
Share Repurchase Programs
In June 2014, the Board of Directors authorized a three-year $100,000 share repurchase program pursuant to which the Company could repurchase its
outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. Through the expiration of the program in June
2017, the Company had purchased 207 shares at a total cost of $15,654. The share purchases were made on the open market and the shares repurchased by the
Company are held in treasury for general corporate purposes.
In June 2017, the Board of Directors authorized a three-year $300,000 share repurchase program, effective July 1, 2017, pursuant to which the
Company may repurchase its outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. As of November
30, 2017, the Company had not repurchased any shares under the program.
Dividends
On January 9, 2018, the Company announced a cash dividend of $0.35 per share to stockholders of record as of January 19, 2018, payable on January
31, 2018. Future dividends are subject to continued capital availability, compliance with the covenants and conditions in some of the Company's credit
facilities and declaration by the Board of Directors.
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NOTE 5—SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION:
The Company recognizes share-based compensation expense for all share-based awards made to employees and directors, including employee stock
options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, performance-based restricted stock units and employee stock purchases, based on estimated fair values.
The Company recorded share-based compensation expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015 as
follows:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

Total share-based compensation

2016

17,523
(6,167)

Tax effect on share-based compensation
Net effect on net income

$

11,356

2015

14,023
(4,768)
$

9,255

13,704
(4,967)
$

8,737

Substantially all of the share-based compensation expense was recorded in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
Valuation Assumptions
The Company estimates the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately
expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service period in the Company’s financial statements.
The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate fair value of stock options. The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed
for use in estimating the fair value of short-lived exchange traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, optionpricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the option’s expected life and the price volatility of the underlying stock. The
expected stock price volatility assumption was determined using historical volatility of the Company’s common stock.
The fair value of stock awards is determined based on the stock price at the date of grant. For grants that do not accrue dividends or dividend
equivalents, the fair value is the stock price reduced by the present value of estimated dividends over the vesting period or performance period. For
performance-based restricted stock units, the grant-date fair value assumes that the targeted performance goals will be achieved. Over the performance period,
the number of awards will be adjusted up or down based on the probability of achievement of performance goals.
The Company is required to estimate forfeitures and only record compensation costs for those awards that are expected to vest. The assumptions for
forfeitures were determined based on type of award and historical experience. Forfeiture assumptions are adjusted at the point in time a significant change is
identified, with any adjustment recorded in the period of change, and the final adjustment at the end of the requisite service period to equal actual forfeitures.
The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes valuation model in fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

Stock option plan:
Expected life (years)
Risk free interest rate
Expected volatility
Dividend yield

5.9
2.11%
29.41%
0.93%
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A summary of the activities under the Company’s stock incentive plan is set forth below:
Options Outstanding
Shares Available
for Grant

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price
Per Share

Number of
Shares

Balances, November 30, 2016
Restricted stock awards granted
Restricted stock units granted
Restricted stock cancelled/forfeited
Options granted
Options exercised

1,696
(149)
(164)
46
(89)
—

571
—
—
—
89
(43)

$

$
$

60.64
—
—
—
128.67
32.27

Balances, November 30, 2017

1,340

617

$

72.42

Employee Stock Options
The weighted-average grant-date fair values of the stock options granted during fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $36.92, $32.66, and $26.70,
respectively. As of November 30, 2017, 617 options were outstanding and expected to vest with a weighted average life of 6.67 years, a weighted average
exercise price of $72.42 per option and an aggregate pre-tax intrinsic value of $39,324. As of November 30, 2017, 355 options were vested and exercisable
with a weighted average life of 5.25 years, a weighted average exercise price of $48.79 per share and an aggregate pre-tax intrinsic value of $31,026.
The cash received from the exercise of options and the intrinsic values of options exercised during fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

Intrinsic value of options exercised

$
$

Cash received from exercise of options

2016

3,856
1,400

$
$

2015

11,918
5,157

$
$

9,338
3,984

The Company settles employee stock option exercises with newly issued common shares.
As of November 30, 2017, the unamortized share-based compensation expense related to unvested stock options under the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan
and 2013 Stock Incentive Plan was $7,851 which will be recognized over an estimated weighted-average amortization period of 3.82 years.
Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units
A summary of the changes in the Company’s nonvested restricted stock awards and stock units during the fiscal year 2017 is presented below:

Nonvested as of November 30, 2016
Awards granted
Units granted (1)
Awards and units vested
Awards and units cancelled/forfeited (2)
Nonvested as of November 30, 2017

Number of
shares

Weighted-average,
grant-date
fair value per share

640
149
164
(206)
(46)

$79.65
$125.69
$124.39
$69.71
$79.76

701

$103.74

____________________________________

(1) For performance-based restricted stock units, the maximum number of shares that can be awarded upon full vesting of the grants is included.
(2) For performance-based restricted stock units, the difference between maximum awards and the actual number of shares issued upon full vesting is included.
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As of November 30, 2017, there was $58,770 of total unamortized share-based compensation expense related to nonvested restricted stock awards and
stock units granted under the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over an estimated
weighted-average amortization period of 3.66 years.
NOTE 6—BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS:
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the Consolidated Balance Sheets that sum to
the total of the same amounts shown in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:
As of November 30,
2017

Cash and cash equivalents

2016

$

550,688
5,837
217

$

380,717
6,265
185

$

556,742

$

387,167

Restricted cash
Restricted cash included in other assets

Restricted cash balances relate primarily to temporary restrictions caused by the timing of lockbox collections under borrowing arrangements, the
issuance of bank guarantees and government grants.
As of November 30,
2017

2016

Accounts receivable, net:
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
Less: Allowance for sales returns

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivables:
Balance at November 30, 2014
Additions
Write-offs and deductions

$

2,918,703
(19,193)
(53,139)

$

1,820,049
(13,564)
(49,991)

$

2,846,371

$

1,756,494

$

16,870
542
(2,995)

Balance at November 30, 2015
Additions
Write-offs and deductions

14,417
1,734
(2,587)

Balance at November 30, 2016
Additions
Write-offs and deductions

13,564
8,268
(2,639)
$

Balance at November 30, 2017
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As of November 30,
2017

2016

Property and equipment, net:
Land
Equipment, computers and software
Furniture and fixtures
Buildings, building improvements and leasehold improvements
Construction-in-progress
Total property and equipment, gross

$

25,922
306,665
60,892
270,649
12,049

$

23,629
255,400
51,767
219,780
12,007

676,177
(329,588)

Less: Accumulated depreciation
$

346,589

562,583
(249,867)
$

312,716

Depreciation expense for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, was $80,705, $65,803 and $48,754, respectively.
Goodwill:

Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2017
Technology
Solutions

Balance, beginning of year

$

Concentrix

96,412

$

$

Intangible assets, net:

As of November 30, 2017

340,440
373

Gross
Amounts

Customer relationships and lists

437,225

Total

389,827

Additions from acquisitions, net of adjustments (See
Note 3)
Foreign exchange translation
Balance, end of year

$

37,642
7,947
$

Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2016
Technology
Solutions

435,416

486,239

$

378,082
8,320
$

872,641

Concentrix

95,947

$

—
465
$

Total

202,838

$

196,514
(9,525)

96,412

$

298,785
196,514
(9,060)

389,827

$

486,239

As of November 30, 2016

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Amounts

Gross
Amounts

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Amounts

$

619,431
180,041
38,041
33,745

$

(236,282)
(39,016)
(6,519)
(6,390)

$

383,149
141,025
31,522
27,355

$

448,008
36,815
10,900
5,827

$

(160,033)
(34,793)
(3,227)
(4,947)

$

287,975
2,022
7,673
880

$

871,258

$

(288,207)

$

583,051

$

501,550

$

(203,000)

$

298,550

Vendor lists
Technology
Other intangible assets

Amortization expense for fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, was $79,181, $55,490 and $54,756, respectively. The increase in intangible assets, gross as
of November 30, 2017 is due to the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition in the Technology Solutions segment and the Tigerspike acquisition in the
Concentrix segment. See Note 3 - Acquisitions.
Estimated future amortization expense of the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:
Fiscal years ending November 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total
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64,305
165,443

$

583,051
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes, attributable to SYNNEX Corporation were as follows:

Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes

Unrecognized defined
benefit plan costs, net
of taxes

Unrealized gains on
cash flow hedges, net
of taxes

Balance, beginning of year
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassification
Reclassifications of (gains) losses from Other
comprehensive income (loss)

$

$

$

Balance, end of year

$

713

(850)

1,406

(1,463)

—
2,119

(4,458)

—
$

(2,313)

$

Foreign currency
translation
adjustment, net of
taxes

$

(88,521)

Total

$

(93,116)

3,759

26,410

30,112

1,085

—

1,085

386

$

(62,111)

$

(61,919)

Reclassifications of (gains) losses on cash flow hedges into earnings are recorded in "Interest expense and finance charges, net" in the Company's
"Consolidated Statements of Operations."
NOTE 7—INVESTMENTS:
The carrying amount of the Company’s investments is shown in the table below:
As of November 30, 2017
Adjusted Cost
Basis

Unrealized
Gains/(Losses)

As of November 30, 2016
Carrying
Value

Adjusted Cost
Basis

Unrealized
Gains/(Losses)

Carrying
Value

Short-term investments:
Held-to-maturity investments
Long-term investments in “Other assets:”
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity investments
Cost-method investments

$

5,475

$

$

972
5,189
33,817

$

—

2,404
(225)
—

$

5,475

$

5,109

$

—

$

5,109

$

3,376
5,189
33,817

$

928
2,102
3,884

$

955
—
—

$

1,883
2,102
3,884

Short-term held-to-maturity investments primarily consist of term deposits with maturities from the date of purchase greater than three months and less
than one year. These term deposits are held until the maturity date and are not traded. Long-term available-for-sale securities primarily consist of investments
in other companies’ equity securities. Long-term held-to-maturity investments consist of foreign government bonds of $1,396 purchased pursuant to local
regulations, maturing in fiscal year 2023, and term deposits with maturities not exceeding one year. These term deposits are renewed due to certain
restrictions under the terms of an acquisition arrangement. Long-term cost-method investments consist of minority investments in equity securities of private
entities. The increase in cost-method investments as of November 30, 2017 represents the purchase of a minority investment in Datatec’s EMEA (Europe,
Middle East and Africa) and APAC (Asia Pacific) distribution businesses for $30,000 through the purchase of 10% of the shares of each of Westcon Emerging
Markets Group (Pty) Limited, a South Africa company, and Westcon Group European Holdings, Limited, a United Kingdom company. The Company has an
option to purchase up to an additional 10% equity interest in each of the EMEA and APAC distribution businesses within the twelve months following the
closing of the acquisition, for an additional cash consideration of up to $30,000 depending on the percentage of equity interest the Company determines to
purchase in either entity. The fair value of the option is not material to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value in each reporting period and therefore the carrying value of these securities equals their fair value.
For cost-method investments, the Company records an impairment charge when the decline in
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fair value is determined to be other-than-temporary. The fair value of cost-method investments is based on an internal valuation of the investees. The fair
value of foreign government bonds is $1,171 as of November 30, 2017.
Cash flows from purchases, sales, and maturities of trading, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are classified as cash flows from investing
activities and reported gross on a combined basis as these principally represent cash flows from held-to-maturity securities. Cash flows from other categories
of investments are not material for the periods presented. Gains on trading investments during any period presented were not material.
NOTE 8—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS:
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, equity risk and credit risk. The Company’s
transactions in most of its foreign operations are primarily denominated in local currency. The Company enters into transactions, and owns monetary assets
and liabilities, that are denominated in currencies other than the legal entity’s functional currency. The Company may enter into forward contracts, option
contracts, swaps, or other derivative instruments to offset a portion of the risk on expected future cash flows, on net investments in certain foreign subsidiaries
and on certain existing assets and liabilities. However, the Company may choose not to hedge certain exposures for a variety of reasons including, but not
limited to, accounting considerations and the prohibitive economic cost of hedging particular exposures. There can be no assurance the hedges will offset
more than a portion of the financial impact resulting from movements in foreign currency exchange or interest rates.
All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of a derivative are recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations as “Other income (expense), net” or as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, as discussed below.
As part of its risk management strategy, the Company uses short-term forward contracts to offset the foreign exchange risk on assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities. These forward-exchange contracts are not designated as hedging
instruments. The forward exchange contracts are recorded at fair value in each reporting period and any gains or losses, resulting from the changes in fair
value, are recorded in earnings in the period of change.
As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company had interest rate swaps with aggregate notional amounts of $600,000 and $400,000, respectively, to
economically convert a portion of its variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. The swaps have maturities up to September 2022. These swaps are designated as
cash flow hedges of the variability in interest payments due to changes in the contractually specified interest rates of the Company's debt. Gains and losses on
cash flow hedges are recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. Deferred gains and
losses associated with cash flow hedges of interest expense are recognized in “Interest expense and finance charges, net” in the same period as the related
expense is recognized.
Derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges must be de-designated as hedges when it is probable the forecasted hedged transaction will not
occur in the initially identified time period or within a subsequent two-month time period. Deferred gains and losses in “Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss)” associated with such derivative instruments are reclassified immediately into “Interest expense and finance charges, net.” Any subsequent
changes in fair value of such derivative instruments are reflected in “Interest expense and finance charges, net” unless they are re-designated as hedges of
other transactions.
Generally, the Company does not use derivative instruments to cover equity risk and credit risk. The Company’s policy is not to allow the use of
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments are also disclosed in Note 9.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s derivative instruments as of November 30, 2017 and 2016:
Fair Value as of
Balance Sheet Line Item

November 30, 2017

Derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Other current assets
Other accrued liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps
Other assets
Other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

November 30, 2016

$
$
$

1,483
1,194
1,372

$
$
$

1,700
979
—

$
$
$

3,484
389
1,996

$
$
$

—
706
6,542

The notional amounts of the foreign exchange forward contracts that were outstanding as of November 30, 2017 and 2016 were $248,069 and
$275,163, respectively. The notional amounts represent the gross amounts of foreign currency, including the Canadian Dollar, Brazilian Real, Philippine
Peso, Indian Rupee, British Pound, Colombian Peso, the Euro, and Japanese Yen that will be bought or sold at maturity. The contracts mature or settle in six
months or less. In relation to its forward contracts not designated as hedging instruments, the Company recorded a loss of $2,217 in “Other income (expense),
net” in fiscal year 2017, a loss of $1,629 in fiscal year 2016 and a gain of $18,764 in fiscal year 2015. The gains and losses on the Company’s foreign
currency forward contracts are largely offset by the change in the fair value of the underlying hedged assets or liabilities.
For fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded a gain before tax of $7,042 and losses before tax of $1,459, and $5,789, respectively, in
“Other comprehensive income (loss)” related to changes in the fair value of its derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments. There are
no existing gains or losses in "Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)" that are expected to be reclassified into earnings in the normal course of
business within the next twelve months.
The net effect on earnings of the interest rate swaps are presented in "Interest expense and finance charges, net." The net earnings effect is shown in the
following table:

Period

Gains/(losses) reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) into income

Year ended November 30, 2017
Year ended November 30, 2016
Year ended November 30, 2015

(1,762)
(1,436)
(458)

Total Interest expense and finance
charges, net

(45,357)
(28,993)
(26,296)

In the Consolidated Balance Sheets, the Company does not offset derivative assets against liabilities in master netting arrangements. If derivative
exposures covered by a qualifying master netting agreement had been netted in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the total derivative asset
and liability positions would have been reduced by $1,352 each as of November 30, 2017 and $1,364 each as of November 30, 2016.
Credit exposure for derivative financial instruments is limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counterparties’ obligations under the contracts
exceed our obligations to the counterparties. We manage the potential risk of credit losses through careful evaluation of counterparty credit standing and
selection of counterparties from a limited group of financial institutions.
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NOTE 9—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:
The Company’s fair value measurements are classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:
Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
asset or liability;
Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e., supported by
little or no market activity).
The following table summarizes the valuation of the Company’s investments and financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis:
As of November 30, 2017

As of November 30, 2016

Fair value measurement category

Fair value measurement category

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Assets:
Cash equivalents

$

157,935

$

157,935

$

—

$

—

$

43,043

$

43,043

$

—

$

—

Available-for-sale securities

3,376

3,376

—

—

1,883

1,883

—

—

Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

1,483

—

1,483

—

1,700

—

1,700

—

Interest rate swaps

3,484

—

3,484

—

—

—

—

—

Liabilities:
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

$

Interest rate swaps
Contingent consideration payable

2,566

$

2,385
$

33,098

—

$

—
$

—

2,566

$

2,385
$

—

$

—

$

979

$

—

$

979

$

—

—

7,248

—

7,248

—

33,098

—

—

—

—

The Company’s cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid investments in money market funds and term deposits with maturity periods of three
months or less. The carrying values of cash equivalents approximate fair value since they are near their maturity. Investments in available-for-sale securities
consist of equity securities and are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices. The fair values of forward exchange contracts are measured based on
the foreign currency spot and forward rates quoted by the banks or foreign currency dealers. Fair values of long-term foreign currency exchange contract and
interest rate swaps are measured using standard valuation models using inputs that are readily available in public markets, or can be derived from observable
market transactions, including London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) spot and forward rates. The effect of nonperformance risk on the fair value of
derivative instruments was not material as of November 30, 2017 and 2016.
Contingent consideration payable represents acquisition related future potential earn-out payments. The fair value of the contingent consideration
liability was based on a probabilistic analysis using an option pricing model as implemented via a Monte Carlo simulation. The model considered an
expected case forecast for the remainder of the earn-out period, estimated volatility around the forecast, a measure of systematic risk as captured by a market
price of risk adjustment, and a discount rate including non-performance risk. There was no change in fair value during fiscal year 2017.
The carrying values of held-to-maturity securities with maturities less than one year, accounts receivable, accounts payable and short-term debt
approximate fair value due to their short maturities and interest rates which are variable in nature. The fair value of long-term held-to-maturity investments in
foreign government bonds is based on quoted market prices. The carrying value of the Company’s term loans approximate their fair value since they bear
interest rates that are similar to existing market rates.
During fiscal years 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers between the fair value measurement category levels.
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NOTE 10—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ARRANGEMENTS:
The Company has an uncommitted supply-chain financing program with a global financial institution under which trade accounts receivable of a
certain customer and its affiliates may be acquired, without recourse, by the financial institution. Available capacity under this program is dependent on the
level of our trade accounts receivable with this customer and the financial institution’s willingness to purchase such receivables. As of November 30, 2017
and 2016, accounts receivable sold to and held by the financial institution under this program were $49,826 and $61,858. Discount fees related to the sale of
trade accounts receivable under this facility are included in “Interest expense and finance charges, net” in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. During
the years ended November 30, 2017 and 2016, discount fees were $968 and $1,201, respectively.
SYNNEX Infotec, the Company's Japanese Technology Solutions subsidiary, has arrangements with various banks and financial institutions for the sale
and financing of approved accounts receivable and notes receivable. The amounts outstanding under these arrangements that were sold, but not collected, as
of November 30, 2017 and 2016 were $2,306 and $3,564, respectively.
The Company also has other financing agreements in North America with various financial institutions (“Flooring Companies”) to allow certain
customers of the Company to finance their purchases directly with the Flooring Companies. Under these agreements, the Flooring Companies pay to the
Company the selling price of products sold to various customers, less a discount, within approximately 15 to 30 days from the date of sale. The Company is
contingently liable to repurchase inventory sold under flooring agreements in the event of any default by its customers under the agreement and such
inventory being repossessed by the Flooring Companies. Please see Note 17 — Commitments and Contingencies for further information.
The following table summarizes the net sales financed through the flooring agreements and the flooring fees incurred:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

Net sales financed

$

Flooring fees(1)

1,262,325
8,192

2016

$

1,264,117
8,240

____________________________________
(1) Flooring fees are included within “Interest expense and finance charges, net.”

As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, accounts receivable subject to flooring agreements were $65,684 and $65,099, respectively.
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1,306,859
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NOTE 11—BORROWINGS:
Borrowings consist of the following:
As of November 30
2017

SYNNEX United States accounts receivable securitization arrangement

$

SYNNEX Canada accounts receivable securitization arrangement
Westcon-Comstor North America revolving line of credit facility
Westcon-Comstor Latin America revolving lines of credit facilities
SYNNEX Japan credit facility - revolving line of credit component
Concentrix India revolving lines of credit facilities
SYNNEX United States credit agreement - current portion of term loan component
SYNNEX Japan credit facility - current portion of term loan component
Other borrowings
Borrowings, current
SYNNEX United States credit agreement - term loan component
SYNNEX Infotec credit facility - term loan component
Other term debt
Long-term borrowings, before unamortized debt discount and issuance costs
Less: unamortized debt discount and issuance costs
Long-term borrowings

288,400
19,389
220,241
78,407
52,426
12,000
60,000
53,314
21,294

2016

$

262,900
—
—
—
28,831
12,000
35,157
—
24,001

805,471

362,889

1,140,000
—
569

550,781
52,420
28

$
$

1,140,569
(4,480)

$
$

603,229
(2,134)

$

1,136,089

$

601,095

SYNNEX United States accounts receivable securitization arrangement
In the United States, the Company has an accounts receivable securitization program to provide additional capital for its operations (the “U.S. AR
Arrangement”). The U.S. AR Arrangement expires on November 1, 2019. Under the terms of the U.S. AR Arrangement, the Company’s subsidiary that is the
borrower under this facility can borrow up to a maximum of $600,000 based upon eligible trade accounts receivable denominated in United States dollars.
The U.S. AR Arrangement includes an accordion feature to allow requests for an increase in the lenders' commitment by an additional $120,000. The effective
borrowing cost under the U.S. AR Arrangement is a blended rate that includes prevailing dealer commercial paper rates and the daily LIBOR, plus a program
fee of 0.75% per annum based on the used portion of the commitment, and a facility fee of 0.35% per annum payable on the adjusted commitment of the
lenders.
Under the terms of the U.S. AR Arrangement, the Company and one of its U.S. subsidiaries sell, on a revolving basis, their receivables (other than
certain specifically excluded receivables) to a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote subsidiary. The borrowings are funded by pledging all of the rights, title
and interest in and to the receivables acquired by the Company's bankruptcy-remote subsidiary as security. Any borrowings under the U.S. AR Arrangement
are recorded as debt on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets.
SYNNEX Canada accounts receivable securitization arrangement
In May 2017, SYNNEX Canada Limited (“SYNNEX Canada”) entered into an accounts receivable securitization program with a bank to transfer
eligible trade accounts receivable, on an ongoing revolving basis, up to CAD65,000, or $50,411, through May 10, 2020. The program includes an accordion
feature to allow a request to increase the lender's commitment by an additional CAD25,000, or $19,389. Any borrowings under this arrangement are recorded
as debt on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets. The effective borrowing cost is based on the weighted average of the Canadian Dollar Offered Rate
plus a margin of 2.00% per annum and the prevailing lender commercial paper rates. In addition, SYNNEX Canada is obligated to pay a program fee of 0.75%
per annum based on the used portion of the commitment. It will pay a fee of 0.40% per annum for any unused portion of the commitment below CAD25,000
and an additional 0.55% per annum if the unused portion exceeds CAD25,000.
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Westcon-Comstor North America revolving line of credit facility
In connection with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas effective September 1, 2017, the Company assumed a credit facility of some of the
North American subsidiaries the Company acquired. The facility maintained with certain banks comprises a $350,000 commitment for revolving credit
facility and matures in January 2021. The Company may request incremental commitments to increase the principal amount of the revolving line of credit by
$75,000. Advances under the Westcon-Comstor N.A. Facility are subject to a borrowing base calculation based on eligible accounts receivable and
inventories of these subsidiaries and are secured by the assets of these borrowers and the stock of one of the Company’s subsidiaries which is their direct
parent company. Interest on Westcon-Comstor N.A. Facility is based on LIBOR plus a margin which could range from 1.25% to 1.75%, or an index rate, plus
a margin which could range from 0.25% to 0.75%, at the borrowers option, and a commitment fee of 0.20%. The borrower subsidiaries under the WestconComstor N.A. Facility are required to maintain a minimum fixed charge ratio covenant of 1.0x if excess availability falls below a certain level.
Westcon-Comstor Latin America revolving lines of credit facilities
In connection with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas effective September 1, 2017, the Company also assumed credit facilities of some of the
Central and South American subsidiaries the Company acquired (the "Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities"). The Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities
maintained with financial institutions in the respective countries are denominated in local currency of such countries or United States Dollars and aggregate
to $96,246 in revolving commitments. One of the Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities comprising $40,000 in revolving commitments matures in February
2020. The remaining Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities aggregating $56,246 in revolving commitments mature in one year or less. The Company
guarantees the obligations under these credit facilities. The terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary from country to country, depending on local
market conditions, and the interest rates range from 5.50% to 15.13%.
SYNNEX Japan credit facility
SYNNEX Infotec has a credit agreement with a group of financial institutions for a maximum commitment of JPY14,000,000, or $124,400. The credit
facility is comprised of a JPY6,000,000, or $53,314, term loan and a JPY8,000,000, or $71,086, short-term revolving credit facility. The interest rate for the
term loan and revolving credit facility is based on the Tokyo Interbank Offered Rate plus a margin of 0.70% per annum. The unused line fee on the revolving
credit facility is 0.10% per annum. This credit facility expires in November 2018. The term loan can be repaid at any time prior to the expiration date without
penalty. The Company has guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX Infotec under this facility.
Concentrix India revolving lines of credit facilities
The Company's Indian subsidiaries have credit facilities with a financial institution to borrow up to an aggregate amount of $22,000. The interest rate
under these facilities is the higher of the bank's minimum lending rate or LIBOR plus a margin of 0.9% per annum. The Company guarantees the obligations
under these credit facilities. These credit facilities can be terminated at any time by the Company’s Indian subsidiaries or the financial institution.
SYNNEX United States credit agreement
In September 2017, the Company entered into an amendment to its U.S. senior secured credit agreement (the "U.S. Credit Agreement"). As a result of the
amendment, the U.S. Credit Agreement includes a $600,000 commitment for revolving credit facility and a $1,200,000 term loan. The Company may request
incremental commitments to increase the principal amount of the revolving line of credit or term loan by $400,000. The maturity of the U.S. Credit
Agreement was extended until September 2022. The outstanding principal amount of the term loan is payable in quarterly installments
of $15,000 commencing on February 28, 2018, with the unpaid balance due in full on the September 2022 maturity date. Interest on the borrowings under the
U.S. Credit Agreement was amended to change the margin for LIBOR loans, which may now range from 1.25% to 2.00% and for base rate loans, which may
now range from 0.25% to 1.00%, provided that LIBOR shall not be less than zero. Base rate is a variable rate which is the highest of (a) the Federal Funds
Rate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest announced from time to time by Bank of America as its “prime rate” or (c) the Eurodollar Rate plus 1.0%. In addition,
the commitment fee was modified to range from 0.175% to 0.30% per annum. The margins above the applicable interest rates and the revolving commitment
fee for revolving loans are based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, as calculated under the U.S. Credit Agreement. The Company’s obligations
under the U.S. Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of the parent company’s and its United States domestic subsidiaries’ assets and are
guaranteed by certain of our United States domestic subsidiaries.
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There were no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility as of either November 30, 2017 or 2016.
SYNNEX Canada revolving line of credit
In May 2017, SYNNEX Canada entered into an uncommitted revolving line of credit with a bank under which it can borrow up to CAD35,000, or
$27,144. Borrowings under the facility are secured by eligible inventory and bear interest at a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.50% to 2.25%
depending on the base rate used. The base rate could be a Banker's Acceptance Rate, a Canadian Prime Rate, LIBOR or US Base Rate. As of November 30,
2017, there were no borrowings outstanding under this credit facility.
Other borrowings and other term debt
Other borrowings include lines of credit with financial institutions at certain locations outside the United States, factoring of accounts receivable with
recourse provisions, capital leases, building mortgages and book overdrafts aggregating $30,558 in commitments for revolving credit. Interest rates and other
terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary from country to country, depending on local market condition. Borrowings under these facilities are
guaranteed by the Company or secured by eligible inventory or accounts receivable.
The maximum commitment amounts for local currency credit facilities have been translated into United States Dollars at November 30, 2017 exchange
rates.
Future principal payments
Future principal payments under the above loans as of November 30, 2017 are as follows:
Fiscal Years Ending November 30,

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

805,471
60,066
60,042
60,461
960,000

$

1,946,040

Interest expense and finance charges
For fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, the total interest expense and finance charges for the Company’s borrowings were $47,367, $31,130 and
$27,935, respectively. The variable interest rates ranged between 0.58% and 15.13%, between 0.73% and 4.00% and between 0.57% and 4.50% in fiscal
years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Covenant compliance
The Company's credit facilities have a number of covenants and restrictions that, among other things, require the Company to maintain specified
financial ratios and satisfy certain financial condition tests. The covenants also limit the Company’s ability to incur additional debt, make or forgive
intercompany loans, pay dividends and make other types of distributions, make certain acquisitions, repurchase the Company’s stock, create liens, cancel
debt owed to the Company, enter into agreements with affiliates, modify the nature of the Company’s business, enter into sale-leaseback transactions, make
certain investments, enter into new real estate leases, transfer and sell assets, cancel or terminate any material contracts and merge or consolidate. As of
November 30, 2017, the Company was in compliance with all material covenants for the above arrangements.
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NOTE 12—EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for the periods indicated:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

Basic earnings per common share:
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation
Less: net income allocated to participating securities(1)
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation common stockholders
Weighted-average number of common shares - basic
Basic earnings attributable to SYNNEX Corporation per common share

Diluted earnings per common share:
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation
Less: net income allocated to participating securities(1)
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation common stockholders
Weighted average number of common shares - basic
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units
Weighted-average number of common shares - diluted
Diluted earnings attributable to SYNNEX Corporation per common share

$

301,173
(2,790)

$

234,946
(2,419)

$

208,525
(2,429)

$

298,383
39,556

$

232,527
39,321

$

206,096
39,061

$

7.54

$

5.91

$

5.28

$

301,173
(2,778)

$

234,946
(2,408)

$

208,525
(2,413)

$

298,395
39,556

$

232,538
39,321

$

206,112
39,061

202
39,758
$

Anti-dilutive shares excluded from diluted earnings per share calculation

7.51
14

____________________________________
(1) Restricted stock awards granted to employees by the Company and its subsidiaries are considered participating securities.
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NOTE 13—SEGMENT INFORMATION:
Summarized financial information related to the Company’s reportable business segments for fiscal years 2017, 2016, and 2015 is shown below:
Technology
Solutions

Fiscal Year ended November 30, 2017:
Revenue
External Revenue
Operating income
Depreciation and amortization expense
Total assets
Fiscal Year ended November 30, 2016:
Revenue
External Revenue
Operating income
Depreciation and amortization expense
Total assets
Fiscal Year ended November 30, 2015:
Revenue
External Revenue
Operating income
Depreciation and amortization expense
Total assets

$

$
$

$
$

$

Inter-Segment
Elimination

Concentrix

15,071,185
15,070,871
394,320
30,040
7,124,884

$

12,490,718
12,490,427
315,485
16,592
4,844,271

$

11,936,660
11,936,282
302,950
15,105
4,149,080

$

$

$

$

Consolidated

1,990,180
1,974,829
114,623
129,869
1,677,728

$

(15,665) $

$

22
(23)
(1,104,086) $

1,587,736
1,571,410
63,877
104,935
1,614,623

$

(16,617) $

$

234
(234)
(1,243,613) $

1,416,670
1,402,115
51,127
88,881
1,057,880

$

(14,933) $

$

475
(476)
(762,813) $

17,045,700
17,045,700
508,965
159,886
7,698,526
14,061,837
14,061,837
379,596
121,293
5,215,281
13,338,397
13,338,397
354,552
103,510
4,444,147

Inter-segment elimination represents services and transactions, principally intercompany loans, between the Company’s reportable segments that are
eliminated on consolidation.
Geographic information
Shown below is summarized financial information related to the geographic areas in which the Company operated during fiscal years 2017, 2016 and
2015. The revenue attributable to countries is based on the geography of the entities from where products are delivered or from where customer service
contracts are managed.
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

Revenue:
United States
Canada
Others
Total

$

12,491,539
1,683,080
2,871,081

$

10,316,259
1,522,527
2,223,051

$

9,869,789
1,429,774
2,038,834

$

17,045,700

$

14,061,837

$

13,338,397
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As of November 30,
2017

2016

Property and equipment, net:
United States
India
Philippines
Others
Total

$

144,015
37,490
30,805
134,279

$

129,633
41,285
36,219
105,579

$

346,589

$

312,716

During the fiscal years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, no other country represented more than 10% of total revenue. As of both November
30, 2017 and 2016, no other country represented more than 10% of the total net property and equipment.
NOTE 14—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
The Company has a business relationship with MiTAC Holdings Corporation (“MiTAC Holdings”), a publicly-traded company in Taiwan, which
began in 1992 when MiTAC Holdings became the Company’s primary investor through its affiliates. As of both November 30, 2017 and 2016, MiTAC
Holdings and its affiliates beneficially owned approximately 24% of the Company's outstanding common stock. Matthew Miau, the Company’s Chairman
Emeritus of the Board of Directors and a director, is the Chairman of MiTAC Holdings and a director or officer of MiTAC Holdings’ affiliates.
Beneficial ownership of the Company’s common stock by MiTAC Holdings
As noted above, MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates in the aggregate beneficially owned approximately 24% of the Company’s outstanding common
stock as of November 30, 2017. These shares are owned by the following entities:
As of November 30, 2017

MiTAC Holdings(1)
Synnex Technology International Corp.(2)
Total

5,449
4,209
9,658

_____________________________________
(1) Shares are held via Silver Star Developments Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MiTAC Holdings. Excludes 376 shares directly held by Matthew Miau and 218 shares
indirectly held by Mathew Miau through a charitable remainder trust.
(2) Synnex Technology International Corp. (“Synnex Technology International”) is a separate entity from the Company and is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan. Shares
are held via Peer Development Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synnex Technology International. MiTAC Holdings owns a noncontrolling interest of 8.7% in MiTAC
Incorporated, a privately-held Taiwanese company, which in turn holds a noncontrolling interest of 13.6% in Synnex Technology International. Neither MiTAC Holdings
nor Mr. Miau is affiliated with any person(s), entity, or entities that hold a majority interest in MiTAC Incorporated.

MiTAC Holdings generally has significant influence over the Company regarding matters submitted to stockholders for consideration, including any
merger or acquisition of the Company. Among other things, this could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change of control over the
Company.
The Company purchased inventories from MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates totaling $232,364, $170,053, and $87,149 during fiscal years ended
November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company’s sales to MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates during fiscal years ended November 30, 2017,
2016, and 2015 totaled $1,202, $1,809 and $1,290, respectively. In addition, the Company received reimbursements of rent and overhead costs for facilities
used by MiTAC Holdings amounting to $149, $216 and $126 during fiscal years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The Company’s business relationship with MiTAC Holdings has been informal and is not governed by long-term commitments or arrangements with
respect to pricing terms, revenue or capacity commitments. The Company negotiates pricing and other material terms on a case-by-case basis with MiTAC
Holdings. The Company has adopted a policy requiring that material transactions with MiTAC Holdings or its related parties be approved by its Audit
Committee, which is composed solely of independent directors. In addition, Matthew Miau’s compensation is approved by the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee, which is also composed solely of independent directors.
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Synnex Technology International is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan that currently provides distribution and fulfillment services to various
markets in Asia and Australia, and is also a potential competitor of the Company. Neither MiTAC Holdings, nor Synnex Technology International is
restricted from competing with the Company.
NOTE 15—PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS:
The Company has defined benefit pension or retirement plans for eligible current, retired and resigned employees in certain foreign subsidiaries.
Benefits under these plans are primarily based on years of service and compensation during the years immediately preceding retirement or termination of
participation in the plans. In addition, the Company provides postemployment benefits to former or inactive employees after employment but before
retirement in certain foreign subsidiaries. Net pension costs were $6,370, $3,879 and $3,897 in fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company
contributed $6,095, $2,721, $2,090 during fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, those plans were unfunded by
$17,214 and $16,113, respectively.
The Company has 401(k) plans in the United States under which eligible employees may contribute up to the maximum amount as provided by law.
Employees become eligible to participate in these plans on the first day of the month after their employment date. The Company may make discretionary
contributions under the plans. Employees in most of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are covered by government mandated defined contribution plans.
During fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company contributed $33,876, $30,903 and $22,215, respectively, to defined contribution plans.
The Company has a deferred compensation plan for certain directors and officers. Distributions under the plan are subject to Section 409A of the United
States Tax Code. The Company may invest balances in the plan in trading securities reported on recognized exchanges. As of November 30, 2017 and 2016,
the deferred compensation liability balance was $6,800 and $7,468, respectively.
NOTE 16—INCOME TAXES:
The sources of income before the provision for income taxes and non-controlling interest are as follows:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

United States

2016

2015

$

257,837
206,894

$

185,936
170,128

$

197,406
129,789

$

464,731

$

356,064

$

327,195

Foreign

Provision for income taxes consists of the following:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

2016

2015

Current tax provision:
Federal
State
Foreign

$

105,879
17,900
65,000

$

68,309
8,241
51,918

$

65,101
15,179
43,805

$

188,779

$

128,468

$

124,085

$

(16,303)
(1,379)
(7,539)

$

3,383
(1,608)
(9,184)

$

(3,536)
(173)
(1,788)

$

(25,221)

$

(7,409)

$

(5,497)

$

163,558

$

Deferred tax provision (benefit):
Federal
State
Foreign

Total tax provision
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The following presents the breakdown net deferred tax liabilities:
As of November 30,
2017

2016

Deferred tax assets

$

$

Deferred tax liabilities
Total net deferred tax liabilities

31,687
(113,527)

58,564
(58,639)

$

(81,840)

$

(75)

Net deferred tax liabilities consist of the following:
As of November 30,
2017

2016

Assets:
Inventory reserves
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales return reserves
Other reserves and accruals
State tax credits
Deferred and prepaid compensation
Net operating losses
Deferred revenue
Share-based compensation expense
Others
Gross deferred tax assets

$

15,591
14,819
45,711
10,063
6,661
14,537
7,000
7,709
6,969

$

10,804
10,444
21,950
5,345
10,569
19,243
4,255
6,558
4,449

129,060
(18,604)

Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets

93,617
(21,176)

$

110,456

$

72,441

$

(28,043)
(164,253)

$

(6,231)
(66,285)

$

(192,296)

$

(72,516)

$

(81,840)

$

(75)

Liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization
Intangible assets
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liabilities

The valuation allowance relates primarily to certain foreign net operating loss carry forward, foreign deferred items and state credits. The Company’s
assessment is that it is not more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be realized.
A reconciliation of the statutory United States federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate is as follows:
Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2017

Federal statutory income tax rate
State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit
Foreign taxes
Others
Effective income tax rate

2016

2015

35.0 %
2.9
(3.2)
0.5

35.0 %
2.3
(4.7)
1.4

35.0 %
2.5
(1.3)
—

35.2 %

34.0 %

36.2 %

The Company’s United States business has sufficient cash flow and liquidity to fund its operating requirements and the Company expects and intends
that profits earned outside the United States will be fully utilized and reinvested outside of the United States. Accordingly, the Company has not provisioned
United States taxes and foreign withholding taxes on non-U.S. subsidiaries for which the earnings are permanently reinvested. The Company estimates that
its total undistributed earnings upon which it has not provided deferred tax is approximately $771,721 as of November 30, 2017. It is not currently practical
to estimate the amount of income tax that might be payable if any earnings were to be distributed by individual foreign
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(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
subsidiaries. As discussed in Note 18—Subsequent Events, undistributed earnings and profits of foreign subsidiaries will be taxed in fiscal year 2018. The
Company is currently analyzing its impact and will provide additional disclosure in the fiscal 2018 first quarter Form 10-Q.
As of November 30, 2017, the Company had net operating loss carry forward of approximately $15,521 and $13,166 for federal and state purposes,
respectively. The federal net operating loss carry forward will start expiring in fiscal year ending November 30, 2021, if not used and the state net operating
loss carry forward will start expiring in fiscal year ending November 30, 2018, if not used. The Company also had $46,492 of foreign net operating loss carry
forward, primarily from SYNNEX Infotec Japan and Concentrix entities that will also start expiring in fiscal year ending November 30, 2018, if not used. In
addition, the Company has $1,014 of various state income tax credit carry forwards that if not used, will begin expiring in fiscal year ending November 30,
2020.
The Company enjoys tax holidays in certain jurisdictions including China, Costa Rica, Nicaragua and Philippines. The tax holidays provide for lower
or zero rates of taxation and require various thresholds of investment and business activities in those jurisdictions. The estimated range of tax benefits from
the above tax holidays on diluted earnings per share for fiscal years 2017, 2016, and 2015 were approximately $0.07 to $0.08, $0.07 to $0.08 and $0.03 to
$0.04 respectively.
The aggregate changes in the balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits, excluding accrued interest and penalties, during fiscal years 2017, 2016, and
2015 were as follows:
Balance as of November 30, 2014
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Lapse of statute of limitations
Changes due to translation of foreign currencies

$

21,874
3,485
923
(3,441)
(26)

Balance as of November 30, 2015
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Lapse of statute of limitations
Changes due to translation of foreign currencies

22,815
6,727
5,613
(2,241)
(140)

Balance as of November 30, 2016
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Settlements
Lapse of statute of limitations
Changes due to translation of foreign currencies

32,774
9,022
231
(1,624)
(2,300)
179
$

Balance as of November 30, 2017

38,282

The Company conducts business globally and files income tax returns in various U.S. and foreign tax jurisdictions. The Company is subject to
continuous examination and audits by various tax authorities. In the United States, the Company is subject to examination and audits by tax authorities for
tax years after fiscal year ended 2014. The Company is subject to various audits in other tax jurisdictions. As of November 30, 2017, the Company is unable
to estimate the range of any possible adjustments. Although timing of the resolution of audits and/or appeals is highly uncertain, the Company believes it is
reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of November 30, 2017 will not materially change in the next twelve months.
As of November 30, 2017, the total uncertain tax position is $38,282, of which $37,540 of the unrecognized tax benefits, net of federal benefit would
affect the effective tax rate, if realized. The Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties related to income taxes, including unrecognized tax
benefits, within the provision for income taxes. As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company had accrued $5,867 and $4,461, respectively, in income
taxes payable related to accrued interest.
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NOTE 17—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
The Company leases certain of its facilities under operating lease agreements, which expire in various periods through 2027. Future minimum
contractually required cash payment obligations under non-cancellable lease agreements as of November 30, 2017 were as follows:
Fiscal Years Ending November 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
thereafter
Total minimum lease payments

$

94,006
84,129
68,548
44,558
33,479
58,508

$

383,228

Rent expense for the years ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to $115,480, $105,350 and $93,505, respectively. Sublease income
was immaterial for each of the periods presented and is immaterial for the amounts entitled to be received in future periods under non-cancellable sublease
arrangements.
The Company was contingently liable as of November 30, 2017 under agreements to repurchase repossessed inventory acquired by flooring companies
as a result of default on floor plan financing arrangements by the Company’s customers. These arrangements are described in Note 10—Accounts Receivable
Arrangements and do not have expiration dates. As the Company does not have access to information regarding the amount of inventory purchased from the
Company still on hand with the customer at any point in time, the Company’s repurchase obligations relating to inventory cannot be reasonably estimated.
Losses, if any, would be the difference between the repossession cost and the resale value of the inventory. There have been no repurchases through
November 30, 2017 under these agreements and the Company is not aware of any pending customer defaults or repossession obligations. The Company
believes that, based on historical experience, the likelihood of a material loss pursuant to these inventory repurchase obligations is remote.
From time to time, the Company receives notices from third parties, including customers and suppliers, seeking indemnification, payment of money or
other actions in connection with claims made against them. Also, from time to time, the Company has been involved in various bankruptcy preference
actions where the Company was a supplier to the companies now in bankruptcy. In addition, the Company is subject to various other claims, both asserted
and unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company is currently not involved in any material proceedings.
In December 2009, the Company sold China Civilink (Cayman), which operated in China as HiChina Web Solutions, to Alibaba.com Limited. In
conjunction with this sale, the Company has recorded a contingent indemnification liability of $4,122.
Guarantees
The Company, as the ultimate parent, guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX Investment Holdings Corporation up to $35,035 in connection with the
sale of China Civilink (Cayman), which operated in China as HiChina Web Solutions, to Alibaba.com Limited. The guarantee expires in fiscal year 2018.
The Company does not believe that the above commitments and contingencies will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.
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NOTE 18—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
On December 22, 2017, Public Law 115-97, informally referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“the TCJA”) was enacted into law. The TCJA provides
for significant changes to the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, that impact corporate taxation requirements. Effective January 1, 2018, the
federal tax rate for corporations was reduced from 35% to 21% for US taxable income and requires one-time remeasurement of deferred taxes to reflect their
value at a lower tax rate of 21%. Also, mandatory repatriation of untaxed foreign earnings and profits will be taxed at 15.5% to the extent the underlying
assets are liquid and 8% on the remaining balance. There are other provisions to the TCJA, such as conversion of a worldwide system to a territorial system,
limitations on interest expense and domestic production deductions, which will be effective in fiscal 2019. The Company anticipates its effective tax rate to
be 28% to 30%, excluding the one-time impact of the TCJA for fiscal 2018 primarily due to the reduction in the federal tax rate. The Company’s actual
effective tax rate for fiscal 2018 may differ from management’s estimate due to changes in interpretations and assumptions. Due to the timing of enactment
and complexity of the TCJA, the Company is unable to estimate a reasonable range of the one-time impact associated with mandatory repatriation,
remeasurement of deferred taxes and other provisions of the TCJA and will provide additional disclosure in the first quarter Form 10-Q filing.
On January 9, 2018, the Company announced a change in executive leadership whereby Kevin Murai, President and Chief Executive Officer, will retire
from his position and become Chairman of the Board of Directors effective March 1, 2018. Concurrently, Dennis Polk, current Chief Operating Officer, will
become President and Chief Executive Officer and will remain on the Board of Directors.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)
The following table presents selected unaudited consolidated financial results for each of the eight quarters in the two-year period ended November 30,
2017. In the Company’s opinion, this unaudited information has been prepared on the same basis as the audited information and includes all adjustments
(consisting of only normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair statement of the financial information for the periods presented.
Fiscal Year 2017
Three Months Ended
Statements of Operations Data: (currency and
share amounts in thousands except per share
amounts)

Feb. 28,
2017

May 31,
2017

Fiscal Year 2016
Three Months Ended

Aug. 31,
2017

Nov. 30,
2017

Feb. 29,
2016

May 31,
2016

Aug. 31,
2016

Nov. 30,
2016
$ 3,390,665

Revenue:
Products

$ 3,046,621

$ 3,458,243

$ 3,784,599

$ 4,781,408

$ 2,784,837

$ 3,047,638

$ 3,267,287

Services

474,248

478,025

492,087

530,469

340,785

331,861

402,527

496,237

Total revenue

3,520,869

3,936,268

4,276,686

5,311,877

3,125,622

3,379,499

3,669,814

3,886,902

Products

(2,880,553)

(3,265,630)

(3,590,007)

(4,525,904)

(2,631,130)

(2,880,859)

(3,096,529)

(3,206,961)

Services

(298,533)

(298,393)

(311,735)

(324,005)

(210,300)

(204,610)

(247,328)

(301,155)

341,783

372,245

374,944

461,968

284,192

294,030

325,957

378,786

(240,024)

(247,115)

(252,728)

(302,108)

(208,566)

(218,724)

(227,935)

(248,144)

101,759

125,130

122,216

159,860

75,626

75,306

98,022

130,642

(18,459)

(6,216)

(6,512)

(7,517)

Cost of revenue:

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income
Interest expense and finance charges, net
Other income (expense), net
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling
interest

(8,182)

(8,962)

(323)

(206)

(9,754)
1,854

(202)

4,034

949

(8,748)

(378)

856

93,254

115,962

114,316

141,199

73,444

69,743

90,127

122,750

(31,465)

(42,814)

(39,153)

(50,126)

(26,807)

(25,386)

(31,426)

(37,440)

61,789

73,148

75,163

91,073

46,637

44,357

58,701

85,310

—

—

—

—

(75)

5

3

8

$

61,789

$

73,148

$

75,163

$

91,073

$

46,562

$

44,362

$

58,704

$

85,318

Basic

$

1.55

$

1.83

$

1.88

$

2.28

$

1.17

$

1.12

$

1.48

$

2.14

Diluted

$

1.54

$

1.83

$

1.87

$

2.26

$

1.17

$

1.11

$

1.47

$

2.13

Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation
Earnings attributable to SYNNEX Corporation per
common share:

Weighted-average common shares outstanding basic

39,494

Weighted-average common shares outstanding diluted
Cash dividends declared per share

39,533

39,705
$

0.25

39,563

39,711
$

0.25

39,635

39,748
$

0.25

39,224

39,867
$

0.30

39,283

39,462
$

0.20

39,346

39,477
$

0.20

39,431

39,534
$

0.20

39,647
$

0.25

EPS for each quarter is computed using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during that quarter, while EPS for the fiscal year is
computed using the weighted-average of shares outstanding during the fiscal year. The sum of EPS for each of the four quarters may not equal EPS for the
fiscal year.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Fiscal Years Ended November 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands)
Additions/Deductions
Balances at
Beginning of
Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2015
Allowance for sales returns-gross
Allowance for deferred tax assets
Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2016
Allowance for sales returns-gross
Allowance for deferred tax assets
Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2017
Allowance for sales returns-gross
Allowance for deferred tax assets

Charged to Revenue
and Expense, net

$

55,309
7,101

$

$

44,215
16,891

$

$

49,991
21,176

$

Balances at
End of Fiscal
Year

Reclassifications and
Write-offs

(11,696) $
10,476

602
(686)

$

44,215
16,891

$

15
(366)

$

49,991
21,176

2,595 $
(2,385)

553
(187)

$

53,139
18,604

5,761
4,651

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures
We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,” as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that disclosure
controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
disclosure controls and procedures are met. Our disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to meet reasonable assurance standards. Additionally,
in designing disclosure controls and procedures, our management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship
of possible disclosure controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Report, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded
that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
Management’s Report on internal control over financial reporting
Management’s Report on internal control over financial reporting on page 47 is incorporated herein by reference.
Changes in internal control over financial reporting
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) identified in connection
with management’s evaluation during our last fiscal year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item (with respect to Directors) is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption “Election of
Directors” contained in our Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the solicitation of proxies for our
2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on March 20, 2018 (the “Proxy Statement”). Certain information required by this item concerning
executive officers is set forth in Part I of this Report under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”
Item 405 of Regulation S-K calls for disclosure of any known late filing or failure by an insider to file a report required by Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act. This information is contained in the section called “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.
We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our principal executive officer, our principal financial and accounting
officer, our controllers and persons performing similar functions. This code of ethics, called a Code of Ethical Business Conduct, is available free of charge on
our public website (www.synnex.com) on the investor relations webpage. Future amendments or waivers relating to the code of ethics will be disclosed on the
webpage referenced in this paragraph within five (5) business days following the date of such amendment or waiver.
Item 11.

Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions “Corporate Governance-Directors’
Compensation Table,” “Executive Compensation,” and “Corporate Governance-Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” contained in
the Proxy Statement.
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated by reference from
the information under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” contained in the Proxy Statement.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table sets forth certain information regarding our equity compensation plans as of November 30, 2017:

Plan Category

Weightedaverage
exercise price of
outstanding
options
(b)

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options
(a)

Equity compensation plan approved by security holders

616,579

(1)

$

72.42

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance
under equity compensation
plans (excluding securities
reflected in column (a)
(c)

2,023,278

(2)(3)

___________________________________________
(1) Includes the number of shares to be issued under our 2003 Stock Incentive Plan and 2013 Stock Incentive Plan. Please see Note 4 - Stockholders’ Equity of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding the plans.
(2) Includes the number of shares reserved for issuance under our 2013 Stock Incentive Plan. The number of shares authorized for issuance under our 2013 Stock Incentive
Plan will not exceed the sum of (1) 1,696,409 shares of common stock plus (2) any shares under the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan that are subject to outstanding awards to the
extent those awards expire, terminate or are canceled for any reason prior to exercise without the issuance or delivery of such shares, any shares subject to vesting restrictions
that are subsequently forfeited, and any reserved shares not issued or subject to outstanding awards, up to a maximum of 2,750,000 shares. Please see Note 4 - Stockholders’
Equity of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan.
(3) Includes 684,132 shares available-for-sale pursuant to our 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Shares of common stock will be purchased at a price equal to 95% of the
fair market value per share of common stock on either the first trading day of the offering period or on the last trading day of the accumulation period, whichever is less.
Please see Note 4-Stockholders’ Equity of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding the 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Item 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information contained under the caption “Certain Relationships and
Related Party Transactions” and “Election of Directors-Directors and Nominees” contained in the Proxy Statement.
91

Table of Contents

Item 14.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information contained under the caption “Ratification of the Appointment
of Independent Registered Public Accountants” contained in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV
Item 15.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements
See Index under Item 8.
(2) Financial Statements Schedule
See Index under Item 8.
(3) Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below. Each compensatory plan required to be filed has been identified.
(b) Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

2.1

Master Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 10, 2013, by and between the Company and International Business Machines
Corporation, a New York corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 10, 2013).

2.2+

Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 5, 2017, among the Company, Datatec Limited and Datatec PLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 6, 2017).

2.3+

Amendment No. 1 to Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2017, among the Company, Datatec Limited and Datatec PLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 7, 2017).

2.4+

Amendment No. 2 to Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 30, 2017, among the Company, Datatec Limited and Datatec PLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 7, 2017).

3(i).1

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i).3 to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-108543)).

3(ii).2

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii).1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April
2, 2008).

4.1

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-108543)).

10.1#

Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan and form of agreements thereunder (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2008).

10.2#

Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2008).

10.3#

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2008).
Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its officers and directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-108543)).

10.4
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.5#

Form of Change of Control Severance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-108543)).

10.6

Joint Sales and Marketing Agreement, dated May 6, 2002, between the Company and MiTAC International Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-108543)).

10.7

Credit Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2013, by and among the Company, the subsidiaries of the Company named therein, the
lenders signatories thereto from time to time, and Bank of America, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report in Form 8-K filed on November 27, 2013).

10.8

Third Amended and Restated Receivables Sale and Servicing Agreement, dated as of January 23, 2009, among the Originator, the
Servicer and SIT Funding Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the Company’s Annual Report in Form 10-K for the
year ended November 30, 2008).

10.9

Fourth Amended and Restated Receivables Funding and Administration Agreement, dated as November 12, 2010, among SIT Funding
Corporation, the lenders party thereto and The Bank of Nova Scotia (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current
Report in Form 8-K filed on November 18, 2010).

10.10#

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation Change of Control Severance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2007).

10.11#

SYNNEX Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2007).

10.12#

Offer Letter, dated as of March 27, 2008, by and between the Company and Kevin Murai (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2008).

10.13#

Offer Letter between the Company and Marshall Witt dated April 1, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 3, 2013).

10.14#

Amendment to the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, dated November 21, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2008).

10.15#

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended May 31, 2009).

10.16#

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).

10.17#

2009 Executive Profit Sharing Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended May 31, 2009).

10.18#

Form of Restricted Stock Award (Directors) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).

10.19#

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award (Performance Vesting) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 4, 2010).

10.20

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of November 11, 2010, by and among the Registrant, SB Pacific Corporation Limited, a Hong Kong
corporation and Marubeni Corporation, a Japanese corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2010).

10.21

Fourth Omnibus Amendment, dated as of January 11, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on January 15, 2010).

10.22#

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2011).
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.23#

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2011).

10.24#

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation 2009 Executive Profit Sharing Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2011).

10.25

Master HP Partner Agreement dated March 1, 2011, by and between the Company and Hewlett-Packard Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2011).

10.26#

SYNNEX Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2013 Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A
(File No. 001-31892) filed on February 22, 2013).

10.27

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2013).

10.28#

Promotion Letter to Christopher Caldwell dated February 1, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2014).

10.29#

Form of incentive award agreements related to the SYNNEX Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2014).

10.30

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 28, 2014, by and among the Company, the subsidiaries of the Company named
therein, the lenders signatories thereto from time to time, and Bank of America, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2014).

10.31#

SYNNEX Corporation 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement on
Schedule 14A (File No. 001-31892) filed on March 3, 2014).

10.32#

Amendment No. 1 to SYNNEX Corporation 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2014).

10.33#

Amendment No. 2 to the SYNNEX Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2014).

10.34

Joinder Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2014, by Hyve Solutions Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2014).

10.35

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated May 21, 2015, by and among SYNNEX Corporation, the subsidiaries of SYNNEX
Corporation named therein, the lenders signatories thereto from time to time, and Bank of America, N.A., as agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 22, 2015).

10.36

Facility Agreement dated as of November 25, 2015, by and among SYNNEX Infotec Corporation, SYNNEX Corporation, the financial
institutions party thereto, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, UFJ, Ltd, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 25, 2015).

10.37

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2016, by and among the Company, the subsidiaries of the Company
named therein, the lenders signatories thereto from time to time, and Bank of America, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2016).

10.38†

Seventh Omnibus Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Receivables Funding and Administration Agreement and Third
Amended and Restated Receivables Sane and Servicing Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2016, by and among SIT Funding
Corporation, SYNNEX Corporation, Hyve Solutions Corporation, the lenders party thereto and The Bank of Nova Scotia (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 9, 2016).
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10.39

Amendment Agreement, dated August 26, 2016, by and among SYNNEX Infotec Corporation, SYNNEX Corporation, the financial
institutions party thereto, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, UFJ, Ltd, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2016).

10.40#

Amendment to Offer Letter, dated as of September 26, 2016, by and between the Company and Kevin Murai (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 26, 2016).

10.41#

Amendment No. 3 to SYNNEX Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2016).

10.42#

Amendment No. 4 to SYNNEX Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2017).

10.43

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2017, by and among the Company, the subsidiaries of the Company named
therein, the lenders signatories thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity as Administrative Agent and L/C Issuer (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2017).

10.44

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 7, 2017, among the Company, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders party
thereto and Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity as Administrative Agent, an L/C Issuer and the Swing Line Lender (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2017).

10.45

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2017, among the Company, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders
party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity as Administrative Agent, an L/C Issuer and the Swing Line Lender (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 7, 2017).

10.46

Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2017, among the Company, the guarantors party thereto, then lenders
party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity as Administrative Agent, an L/C Issuer and the Swing Line Lender.

10.47

Seventh Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Receivables Sale and Servicing Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2017, by and
among the Company, SIT Funding Corporation, Hyve Solutions Corporation, the lenders party thereto and The Bank of TokyoMitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
August 31, 2017).

10.48#

Employment Agreement, by and between the Company and Dennis Polk, dated as of January 4, 2018 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 9, 2018).

21.1

Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

24.1

Power of Attorney (see the signature page of this Report).

31.1

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32.1*

Statement of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350).

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
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101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

_____________________________________________

# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
*
In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986, Final Rule: Management’s Reports on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Certification of Disclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports, the certifications furnished in Exhibit
32.1 hereto are deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will not be deemed “filed” for purpose of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such
certifications will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent
that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.
†
Portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment.
+
The schedules and exhibits to this agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. A copy of any omitted schedule
and/or exhibit will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
(c) Financial Statement Schedules.
See Index under Item 8.
Item 16.

Form 10-K Summary

Not applicable.
96

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Date: January 29, 2018
SYNNEX C ORPORATION
By:

/s/ Kevin M. Murai
Kevin M. Murai
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Kevin Murai and Marshall Witt,
and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, each with full power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments
to this report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact or their substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Name
/s/ Kevin M. Murai

Title

Date

President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Director

January 29, 2018

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Principal Accounting Officer)

January 29, 2018

Chairman of the Board

January 29, 2018

Chairman Emeritus of the Board

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Director

January 29, 2018

Kevin M. Murai
/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt
/s/ Dwight A. Steffensen
Dwight A. Steffensen
/s/ Matthew F.C. Miau
Matthew F.C. Miau
/s/ Fred A. Breidenbach
Fred A. Breidenbach
/s/ Hau Lee
Hau Lee
/s/ Dennis Polk
Dennis Polk
/s/ Gregory L. Quesnel
Gregory L. Quesnel
/s/ Thomas S. Wurster
Thomas S. Wurster
/s/ Duane E. Zitzner
Duane E. Zitzner
/s/ Andrea M. Zulberti
Andrea M. Zulberti
/s/ Ann F. Vezina
Ann F. Vezina
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EXHIBIT 10.46

October 3, 2017
SYNNEX Corporation
44201 Nobel Drive
Fremont, California 94538
Re:

Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of November 27, 2013 (as amended, restated, extended, supplemented or
otherwise modified in writing from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”) among SYNNEX CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation (the “Borrower”), the Guarantors party thereto, the Lenders from time to time party thereto and Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and an L/C Issuer

Ladies and Gentlemen:
Reference is made to the Credit Agreement. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings
assigned thereto in the Credit Agreement.
The parties hereto agree that all references to “calendar quarter” in Sections 2.07(c) and 2.07(d) of the Credit Agreement shall be
amended to be references to “fiscal quarter”.
The Credit Agreement remains in full force and effect as modified to the extent set forth herein. This letter agreement may be executed
in any number of counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute but one
agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this letter by facsimile or other secure electronic format (.pdf) shall be effective as an
original. This letter agreement shall be effective upon receipt by the Administrative Agent of counterparts of this letter agreement
executed by the Loan Parties. This letter agreement is a Loan Document.
This letter agreement shall be a Loan Document. This letter shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of New York.
[signature pages follow].

Very truly yours,
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent
By:/s/ Brenda Schriner
Name: Brenda Schriner
Title: Vice President

Accepted and Agreed to:
BORROWER:

SYNNEX CORPORATION,
a Delaware corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

GUARANTORS:

SYNNEX FINANCE HYBRID II, LLC,
a California limited liability company
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
LASTING HOLDINGS CORPORATION,
a California corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
HYVE SOLUTIONS CORPORATION,
a California corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
HYVE SOLUTIONS US GLOBAL HOLDING CORP,
a Delaware corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
COMPUTERLAND CORPORATION,
a California corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
[Signature Pages Continue]

CONCENTRIX GLOBAL HOLDINGS, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
CONCENTRIX CORPORATION,
a New York corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
LICENSE ONLINE, INC.,
a California corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
WG-US HOLDCO, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
WESTCON GROUP, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung __
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
As of November 30, 2017
Name of the Subsidiary
2117974 Ontario Inc.
Afina Peru, S.A.C.
Afina Sistemas Informaticos, S.L
Afina Sistemas, Sociedade Ltda.
Afina Venezuela, C.A.
Afina, S.R.L.
Afinasis, S.A. de C.V.
Afina Sistemas Informaticos Limitada
Beijing Jumeng Technology Development Ltd.
BPO Holdco Coöperatief U.A.
CNX Services Jamaica Limited
ComputerLand Corporation
Comstor Colombia S.A.S.
Concentrix (Canada) Limited
Concentrix Brazil Outsourcing of Processes, Administrative Services
and Technologies to Enterprises Ltda.
Concentrix Business Services UK Limited
Concentrix Coop Holdco Limited
Concentrix Corporation
Concentrix Costa Rica, S.A.
Concentrix CRM Services Germany GmbH
Concentrix CRM Services Hungary Kft
Concentrix CRM Services RO S.R.L.
Concentrix CRM Services UK Limited
Concentrix Daksh Services India Private Limited
Concentrix Daksh Services Philippines Corporation
Concentrix Europe Limited

State or Country in Which Organized
Canada
Peru
Spain
Brazil
Venezuela
Argentina
Mexico
Chile
China
The Netherlands
Jamaica
California
Colombia
Canada
Brazil
The United Kingdom
Bermuda
New York
Costa Rica
Germany
Hungary
Romania
The United Kingdom
India
The Philippines
The United Kingdom

Concentrix Free Trade Zone, S.A.
Concentrix GBS Limited
Concentrix Global Holdings, Inc.
Concentrix Gmbh
Concentrix HK Limited
Concentrix Hungary KFT
Concentrix Insurance Administration Solutions Corporation
Concentrix Investment Holdings Corporation
Concentrix Investment Holdings Singapore 1 Pte. Ltd
Concentrix Investment Holdings Singapore 2 Pte. Ltd
Concentrix Logistics Corporation
Concentrix México, S. de R.L. de C.V
Concentrix New (BVI) Corporation
Concentrix NewHK Limited
Concentrix Nicaragua S.A.
Concentrix Services (Canada) Limited
Concentrix Services (Colombia) S.A.S.
Concentrix Services (Dalian) Co., Ltd.
Concentrix Services (Germany) GmbH
Concentrix Services (Ireland) Limited
Concentrix Services (Netherlands) B.V.
Concentrix Services (New Zealand) Limited
Concentrix Services (Poland) spółka z o.o.
Concentrix Services (Saudi Arabia) Corporation LLC
Concentrix Services (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Concentrix Services (South Africa) (Pty) Ltd
Concentrix Services (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Concentrix Services (Uruguay) S.A.
Concentrix Services Bulgaria EOOD
Concentrix Services Corporation
Concentrix Services India Private Limited
Concentrix Services Korea Limited

Costa Rica
Bermuda
Delaware
Austria
Hong Kong, China
Hungary
South Carolina
British Virgin Islands
Singapore
Singapore
British Virgin Islands
Mexico
British Virgin Islands
Hong Kong, China
Nicaragua
Canada
Colombia
China
Germany
Ireland
The Netherlands
New Zealand
Poland
Saudi Arabia
Singapore
South Africa
Thailand
Uruguay
Bulgaria
British Virgin Islands
India
South Korea

Concentrix Services Mexico, Sociedad Anonima De Capital Variable
Concentrix Services Philippines, Inc.
Concentrix Services Portugal, Sociedade Unipessoal, LDA
Concentrix Services Pty Ltd
Concentrix Services Pty Ltd ROHQ
Concentrix Services Slovakia s.r.o.
Concentrix Services Spain, S.L.U.
Concentrix Services UK Limited
Concentrix Services US, Inc.
Concentrix Technologies (India) Private Limited
Concentrix Technologies Limited
Concentrix Technologies Services (Canada) Limited
Concentrix Technology FZ-LLC
CyberLogistics Corporation
Dalian Jumeng Technology Development Ltd.
EMJ America, Inc.
GLS Software S. de R.L.
Guiyang Jumeng Technology Development Ltd.
Hyve IT Solutions Israel Ltd
Hyve IT Solutions South Africa (PTY) Ltd.
Hyve Solutions (Taiwan) Corporation
Hyve Solutions Beijing Information Technologies Ltd
Hyve Solutions Canada Limited
Hyve Solutions China Limited
Hyve Solutions Corporation
Hyve Solutions Europe Limited
Hyve Solutions HK Limited
Hyve Solutions Holding Company Limited
Hyve Solutions India LLP
Hyve Solutions Japan K.K.
Hyve Solutions Korea Limited
Hyve Solutions Malaysia SDN.BHD.

Mexico
Philippines
Portugal
Australia
The Philippines
Slovakia
Spain
The United Kingdom
Delaware
India
The United Kingdom
Canada
The United Arab Emirates
Japan
China
North Carolina
Panama
China
Israel
South Africa
Taiwan
China
Canada
China
California
The United Kingdom
Hong Kong, China
The United Kingdom
India
Japan
South Korea
Malaysia

Hyve Solutions New Zealand Limited
Hyve Solutions Singapore Pte. Ltd
Hyve Solutions US Global Holding Corporation
Infotec SYNNEX Holdings K.K.
Japan Concentrix KK
Lasting Holdings Corporation
License Online, Inc
Maple Investment Holdings 3 Pte. Ltd
Minacs Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V.
Pegasus Telecom LLC
Pt Konten Teknologi Servis (Indonesia)
SCGS (Malaysia) SDN. BHD.
Sennex Enterprises Limited
Servicios Afinasis S.A. de C.V.
Shenzhen Shunrong Telecommunication Technologies Ltd. Foshan
Branch
Shenzhen Shunrong Telecommunication Technologies Ltd. (dba
Concentrix China)
Sichuan 86Bridge Information Technology Ltd.
SIT Funding Corporation
SYNNEX Canada Limited
SYNNEX de México, S.A. de C.V.
SYNNEX Finance Hybrid II, LLC
SYNNEX Information Technologies (Beijing) Ltd.
SYNNEX Information Technologies (Chengdu) Ltd.
SYNNEX Information Technologies (China) Ltd.
SYNNEX Infotec Corporation
SYNNEX Servicios, S.A. de C.V.
SYNNEX Software Technologies (HK) Limited
SYNNEX-Concentrix UK Limited
The Global Email Trustee Limited
Tigerspike FZ-LLC

New Zealand
Singapore
Delaware
Japan
Japan
California
California
Singapore
Mexico
Delaware
Indonesia
Malaysia
Hong Kong, China
Mexico
China
China
China
Delaware
Canada
Mexico
California
China
China
China
Japan
Mexico
Hong Kong, China
The United Kingdom
The United Kingdom
United Arab Emirates

Tigerspike Holdings Pty Ltd
Tigerspike KK
Tigerspike Ltd
Tigerspike Products Pte. Ltd.
Tigerspike Pte. Ltd.
Tigerspike Pty Ltd
Tigerspike, Inc.
Velami Holdings Corporation
Vietnam Concentrix Services Company Limited
Westcon Brasil, Ltda.

Australia
Japan
The United Kingdom
Singapore
Singapore
Australia
Delaware
The Philippines
Vitenam
Brazil

Westcon CALA, Inc.

Delaware
Canada
Ecuador
Colombia
Costa Rica
El Salvador
Guatemala
Delaware
New York
Panama
Mexico
The United Kingdom
Delaware

Westcon Canada Systems (WCSI) Inc.
Westcon Corporation Ecuador WCE Cia. Ltda
Westcon Group Colombia Limitada
Westcon Group Costa Rica S.A.
Westcon Group El Salvador, S.A. de C.V.
Westcon Group Guatemala S.A.
Westcon Group Inc.
Westcon Group North America, Inc.
Westcon Group Panama S.A.
Westcon Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
WG-UK Holding Company Limited
WG-US HoldCo Inc

EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
SYNNEX Corporation:
We consent to incorporation by reference in the registration statements (Nos. 333-111799, 333-158571, 333-191442, and 333-201755)
on Form S-8 of SYNNEX Corporation (the Company) of our reports dated January 29, 2018, with respect to the consolidated balance
sheets of SYNNEX Corporation as of November 30, 2017 and 2016 , and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended November 30, 2017 ,
and related financial statements schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2017 ,
which reports appear in the November 30, 2017 annual report on Form 10-K of SYNNEX Corporation.
Our report dated January 29, 2018, on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2017, contains
an explanatory paragraph that states that management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and
our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company excludes an evaluation of internal control over financial reporting
of the acquired Westcon Group, Inc.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Santa Clara, California
January 29, 2018

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Kevin Murai, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of SYNNEX Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 29, 2018
/s/ Kevin M. Murai
Kevin M. Murai
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Marshall Witt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of SYNNEX Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 29, 2018
/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt
Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1
STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350
We, Kevin Murai, the president and chief executive officer of SYNNEX Corporation (the “Company”), and Marshall Witt, the chief financial officer of the
Company, certify for the purposes of section 1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the United States Code that, to the best of our knowledge,
(i) the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended November 30, 2017 (the “Report”), fully complies with the
requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and
(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: January 29, 2018
/s/ Kevin M. Murai
Kevin M. Murai
/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt

